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Chairman’s Statement

EREHE

Market conditions and the business environments in which Sustainable
Forest Holdings Limited (“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively “Group”)
operate remained difficult during the financial year ended 31 March 2014.
The Group recorded a consolidated net loss of approximately HK$490.2
million for the financial year. During the financial year ended 31 March 2014,
the harvesting operation in Acre, Brazil remained suspended. The business
environment continued to be difficult for the Group in Brazil. On 5 June
2014, the board of directors changed the operation model in Acre from own
harvesting to leasing out the forest in Brazil (the “Change in Operation Model”)
so as to enhance the income stream of the Group. The Group is actively
negotiating terms and conditions with potential lessees to the Group’s forest
in Brazil. However, due to the short period of time form 5 June 2014 to the
date of this report, the Change in Operation Model has not been crystallized
and no lease relating to the Group’s forest in Brazil has been entered into
by the Group. As there is no lease entered into by the Group, the economic
value of the future income stream from leasing out the Group’s forest cannot
be reasonably assessed at the date of this report. The Group has to preclude
the economic value of the future income stream from leasing out the Group’s
forest from measuring the fair value the goodwill for prudence. Overall, this
lead to a decrease in fair value of the biological assets and impairment loss
of goodwill for the sustainable forest management segment which mainly
accounted for the loss during the financial year.

The acquisitions of Travel Inn Limited and Good Magic Limited were
completed in February 2014 and will enable the Group to diversify into other
businesses.

The Group has significantly reduced staffing level and will continue to tightly
manage all expenses in the period ahead.

I ' would like to take this opportunity to thank our staff, shareholders and other
stakeholders for their continued support to the Group during this difficult time.
It is anticipated that the Group will continue to experience challenging times
ahead. However, the Group will work to identify new business opportunities
and to divest unprofitable business in order to restore and enhance
shareholders’ value.
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Financial Highlights

MBRE

2014 2013 Changes
—E-mEF —E—=F 2iEE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET R BETIT
Operating results ReExis
Revenue WA 63,946 76,550 (16.5%)
Gross profit EH 12,581 9,248 36.0%
Loss attributable to the owners ROTERAELNL
of the Company BA (490,133) (326,601) 50.1%
Financial position at year end RELH 2 BBEARR
Property, plant and equipment LEN S 157,769 190,274 (17.1%)
Investment properties BEWE 23,699 = N/A 738
Biological assets EWEE 17,538 344,172 (94.9%)
Goodwill kS - 302,118 (100%)
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBLEEY 8,965 216,640 (95.9%)
Net current (iabilities)/assets nE(8E)  BEEE (59,625) 59,024 (201.0%)
Total assets BEE 251,052 1,068,024 (76.5%)
Total interest bearing borrowings from BUE=F
independent third parties STEEEARE 28,304 36,132 21.7%)
Total interest bearing borrowings from BRR - FEIEARAR R &2
shareholders, non-controlling shareholder BEATGEEEEE
and related companies 21,427 241,933 (91.1%)
Total liabilities BAE 192,254 551,017 (65.1%)
Equity attributable to the owners RRREE A
of the Company e 2 58,723 517,000 (88.6%)
Restated
(geE51)
Per share information BRER
Basic loss per share FREXEE
(Hong Kong cents) (7)) (28.67) cents 1l (22.48) cents 1l 27.5%
Net asset value per share BREEFE 4.22 cents 1l 43.8 cents Il (90.4%)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERBNWmR DN

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The Group’s revenue decreased from HK$76.6 million to HK$63.9 million for
the year ended 31 March 2014. The total revenue consisted primarily of sales
of forestry and timber products. The Group’s net loss after tax increased from
HK$326.7 million to HK$490.2 million for the year ended 31 March 2014.
The net loss for the current year was primarily due to a decrease in fair value
of biological assets of HK$292.8 million and impairment loss on goodwill of
HK$302.1 million.

BUSINESS REVIEW

China

The PRC is the world’s largest consumer and importer of timber and logs and
it continues to be the primary market for our forestry and timber products.
Demand for the Group’s timber products remains sluggish.

Brazil

Business environment continued to be difficult for the Group in Brazil. On
27 March 2012, the board decided to suspend harvesting operations in
Acre, Brazil for one year and until the operating environment for its Brazilian
subsidiary improves. For the financial year ended 31 March 2014, Acre’s
operations remained suspended. On 5 June 2014, the board of directors
changed the operation model in Acre from own harvesting to leasing out the
forest in Brazil so as to enhance the income stream of the Group. The Group
is actively negotiating terms and conditions with potential lessees relating to
the Group’s forest in Brazil. However, due to the short period of time from
5 June 2014 to the date of this report, the Change in Operation Model has
not been crystallized and no lease relating to the Group’s forest in Brazil has
been entered into by the Group. As there is no lease entered into by the
Group, the economic value of the future income stream from leasing out the
Group’s forest cannot be reasonably assessed at the date of this report. The
Group has to preclude the economic value of the future income stream from
leasing out the Group’s forest from measuring the fair value the goodwill for
prudence. The details of the decrease in fair value of the biological assets are
disclosed in Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

Acquisitions of new business opportunities

The Group has been keen on identifying and considering new business
opportunities that diversifies the Group’s business portfolio and provides the
Group with a stable revenue stream. In February 2014, the Group completed
the acquisition of 95% interest in Travel Inn Limited for a total consideration
of HK$1.2 million. Travel Inn Limited is principally engaged in the business of
licensed travel agent under the Travel Agents Ordinance of the Laws of Hong
Kong. Also, in February 2014, the Group completed the acquisition of entire
interest of Good Magic Limited and its subsidiaries for a total consideration
of HK$0.4 million. Good Magic Limited and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the business of property investment. The acquisitions will enable
the Group to diversify into businesses of licensed travel agent and property
investment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWE DN

Share consolidation and reorganization

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 30 September 2013, the share
consolidation was approved and effective from 2 October 2013 every six
ordinary shares of HK$0.0533 each in the authorised and issued share capital
of the Company were consolidated into one ordinary share of HK$0.32 each
in the authorised and issued share capital of the Company.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 30 September 2013, the
capital reorganization was approved and effective from 2 October 2013 in
the following manner (i) the issued ordinary share capital of the Company
was reduced through a cancellation of paid up capital of the Company to
the extent of HK$0.31 on each of the ordinary shares of HK$0.32 such
that the nominal value of each issued ordinary share was reduced from
HK$0.32 to HK$0.01; (i) all of the authorised but unissued ordinary shares
of HK$0.32 each were cancelled; and (iii) the authorised share capital of the
Company was increased to HK$575,340,000 by the creation of an additional
28,608,305,027 unissued ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each so that the
authorised share capital of the Company comprised a total of 30,000,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each and 27,534,000,000 convertible preferred
shares of HK$0.01 each.

The share consolidation reduced the transaction costs for dealing in the
consolidated shares as the board lot value would increase after the share
consolidation became effective. While the capital reorganisation gave greater
flexibility to the Company to raise funds through the issue of new shares in the
future.

Fund raising

In terms of the financial position of the Group, the net assets of the Group
had been eroded by the unfavourable economic environment in the past
years. During the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the Group was actively
exploring opportunities to enhance the capital base and financial position of
the Group. By way of fund raising exercises, the Group successfully raised
funds of approximately HK$65.2 million before expenses from open offers
completed in May 2013 and funds of approximately HK$46.4 million before
expenses from open offers completed subsequent to the end of the reporting
period in May 2014. These funds have significantly strengthened the financial
position and enhanced the liquidity of the Group.

OUTLOOK

Uncertain market conditions and poor demand for timber products continued
to affect the Group’s near term outlook. The Group will continue to control
its expenses and look for new business opportunities as well as divest
unprofitable business to restore and enhance shareholders’ value.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERBNWmR DN

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had cash and cash equivalents that
amounted to HK$9.0 million (2013: HK$216.5 million).

The Group’s gearing ratio expressed as a percentage of total interest bearing
borrowings (including all interest bearing borrowings from shareholders, non-
controlling shareholder and related companies), over equity attributable to
the owners of the Company, increased from 53.8% as at 31 March 2013 to
84.7% as at 31 March 2014.

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had HK$28.3 million in interest bearing
borrowings from independent third parties of which HK$5.3 million were
repayable within one year and the remaining HK$23.0 million were repayable
after one year. As at 31 March 2013, the Group had HK$36.1 million
in interest bearing borrowings from an independent third party of which
were repayable within one year. As at 31 March 2014, the interest bearing
borrowings of HK$28.3 million from the independent third parties consisted
of HK$13.3 million in bank loans and HK$15.0 million in other borrowings.
As at 31 March 2013, the interest bearing borrowings of HK$36.1 million
from the independent third party were other borrowings. As at 31 March
2014, the Group’s had net current liabilities of HK$59.6 million (2013: net
current assets of HK$59.0 million). In addition, interest bearing borrowings
from shareholders, non-controlling shareholder and related companies totaled
HK$21.4 million and HK$241.9 million for the years ended 31 March 2014
and 2013, respectively.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 March 2014, property, plant and equipment of HK$3.2 million (2013:
HK$NIl) and investment properties of HK$23.7 million (2013: HKS$NIl) of
the Group were pledged to secure bank mortgages. As at 31 March 2014,
certain area of the freehold lands with carrying value of HK$33.1 million (2013:
HKS$NIl) was filed with a precautionary injunction by a claimant.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND LITIGATIONS

The Group’s contingent liabilities and litigations at 31 March 2014 are
disclosed in Notes 40 and 41 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEBNWmR DN

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group’s continuing operation mainly operates in Brazil, China and Hong
Kong.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, revenue from operations was
denominated mainly in Renminbi while its costs and expenses were primarily
in Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars and Brazilian Reais where the Group’s
operations are based. The Group is exposed to potential foreign exchange
risk as a result of fluctuations between those currencies that are not pegged.

In addition, the main operational assets of the Group are located and
denominated in local currencies in Brazil and China while the Group’s
reporting currency is in Hong Kong dollars. This also exposes the Group
to potential foreign exchange risk upon translation of those assets on each
reporting date.

The Group did not enter into any arrangements or financial instruments for
the purpose of hedging against the potential foreign exchange risks during
the year under review. Management believes that the Group’s exposure to
foreign exchange risks are minimal since Renminbi has been in strength
while Reais have been weakening somewhat against US dollars during the
current period. In the event that Reais were to rise substantially against US
dollars, the risk can be mitigated by increasing local sales denominated in
Reais. As for the operational assets of the Group, any foreign exchange gain
or losses due to translation of the carrying value of the assets to the Group’s
reporting currency on reporting dates are unrealised and non-cash in nature.
As such, active hedging activities are not considered warranted. Nonetheless,
management will monitor closely its foreign currency exposure to ensure
appropriate measures are taken promptly against any significant potential
adverse impact.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION

POLICY

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had approximately 24 employees (2013:
305) mainly in Hong Kong, China and Brazil (2013: Hong Kong, China,
Brazil and USA). The total remuneration paid by the Group to its employees
(including directors) for the year was approximately HK$10.3 million (2013:
HK$39.0 million).

The Group rewards its employees according to prevailing market practices,
individual experience, performance and requirements under applicable labor
laws in the Group’s operational locations. In addition to the provision of annual
bonus, provident fund scheme and medical insurance coverage, discretionary
bonuses and share options are also available to employees.
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SUSTAINABLE FOREST HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

Report of Directors
EEEHRE

The board of directors (“Board”) of Sustainable Forest Holdings Limited
(“Company”) has pleasure in presenting to the shareholders of the Company
(“Shareholders”) its annual report together with the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries of the Company comprise sustainable forest
management; manufacturing and sales of timber products including but
not limited to wooden door, furniture and wooden floor panels; leasing of
properties and travel and travel related business. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31 March 2014 by
geographical and business segments is set out in Note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
page 42.

The Board does not recommend any payment of final dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2014 (2013: HK$NIl per ordinary share and HK$Nil per
convertible preferred share).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary of the results and the financial position of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 180.

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS, PROPERTY, PLANTS
AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the biological assets, property, plant and equipment
and investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in Notes
20, 17 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the bye-laws of the
Company (“Bye-laws”) or laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31 March 2014.

RESERVES

Details of movement in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out
in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statement and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

On 31 March 2014, the aggregate amount of reserves available for the
distribution to owner of the Company calculated in accordance with
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (as amended) was HK$Nil (2013:
HK$147,130,000).

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors (“Executive Director(s)”)
Ms. ZHOU Jing (Chairman)
Mr. MUNG Wai Ming

Independent Non-Executive Directors
(“Independent Non-Executive Director(s)”)

Mr. William Keith JACOBSEN

Mr. WU Wang Li

Mr. NG Wai Hung

In accordance with Bye-law 87(2) of the Bye-laws, Ms. ZHOU Jing and
Mr. MUNG Wai Ming shall retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting (“AGM”) of the Company and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

The Company has received from each Independent Non-Executive Director
an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Rules (“Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) and the Company
considered all of them to be independent.
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EEEHRE

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Other than statutory compensation, no Directors proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Group
are set out on pages 23 to 26.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors had engaged in or were interested in any business
which competed or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2014, the interests or short positions of the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong, “SFQ”) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of the SFO;
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified to
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the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code (‘Model 578l ([MZ2 578 | ) B A& A Q 7 & 5 X2 By 2 18
Code”) for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in =~ e A ST
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:
Number and
class of
shares Approximate
and percentage of
underlying issued shares
shares held HERITRHG
s R4 &k BABE L
Name of Directors Nature of interest 1ERER D 2 (Note 1)
EEng EmEME 2B k&5 (K1az1)
Ms. ZHOU Jing (“Ms. Zhou”) (Note 2) Beneficial owner 191,507,571 13.76%
Bzt ([AxxLl) (#iz2) E=BEA A
Mr. MUNG Wai Ming (“Mr. Mung”) (Note 3) Beneficial owner 13,879,311 1.00%
SEREE ([REE£]) (B723) BB A
Notes: Wit -
1. The percentage figures were calculated based on 1,391,796,013 ordinary shares 1. ZEBOLEBFEIREAR —2—HW&E=A
(“Shares”) of the Company having a par value of HK$0.01 each in issue as of 31 March =+—HE#71,391,796, O13H HXE@% #0.01
2014. T2 EER ( [R5
2. Ms. Zhou was entitled to share options to subscribe for a maximum of 13,879,311 2. BAz+ZB A RNEBHITERRER213,879,311

Shares upon exercise of the options in full. Ms. Zhou was also the registered holder
of ordinary share warrants with nominal value of HK$54,754,149.13 and convertible
preferred share warrants with nominal value of HK$2,157,945.67 convertible into
170,893,099 and 6,735,161 underlying Shares respectively. Under Part XV of the SFO,
Ms. Zhou was therefore interested and deemed to have interests in 13,879,311 Shares
and 177,628,260 underlying Shares upon exercise of the ordinary share warrants and
convertible preferred share warrants.

8, Mr. Mung was entitled to share options to subscribe for a maximum of 13,879,311
Shares upon exercise of the options in full.

4. All interests stated above as at 31 March 2014 represented long positions of Shares or
underlying Shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, none of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in
any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning Part XV of the SFO) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of the SFO or as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL FTERREEMATHRRGRIEE
SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER PERSONS IN B0 2 =

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2014, the following persons, other than a Director or chiesf R-ZE—NE=A=+—H BESEH AN AH

i

executive of the Company, had interests or short positions in the Shares or  Z7TH A B840 AT A ERARR 7 B 5 248 B8 A%
underlying Shares of the Company which would be required to be disclosed {5 - B IBIE B 5 K& S KM EXVEE2 K& 53
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of 43> (& /BEARNGHE KB DEAD AR
the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the  p& s © HA (5 (& (5| B336(KBFE 2 B DM 2 #
Company under Section 336 of the SFO: HEKAIMT :

Number and

class of
Shares Approximate
and percentage of
underlying issued Shares
Shares held {2 ZTKH%
FriERH5 Rk BABED
Name of Shareholders Nature of interest HERGZ (Note 1)
BREEEB EatyE 2 A kE5 (Kiaz1)
Ms. LOH Jiah Yee, Katherine (“Ms. Loh”) (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 323,712,343 23.26%
GRERt ([zt]) (HiF2) ZEHER 2 s
Mr. LAU Jack (“Mr. Lau”) (Note 3) Interest of spouse 323,712,343 23.26%
BRE&E ([BEE]) (B23) Al B 2
Assure Gain International Limited Beneficial owner/ 314,067,736 22.57%
(“Assure Gain”) (Note 4) Interest of controlled corporation
Assure Gain International Limited BERBEE AN SIEHEBE 2 s
([Assure Gain |) (ffa#4)
Expert Plan Limited (“Expert Plan”) (Note 5) Beneficial owner 177,628,260 12.76%
Expert Plan Limited ([Expert Plan |) (#72#5) EmEAA
Mr. HO Ka Kui, Boniface (“Mr. Ho”) (Note 6) Interest in controlled corporation 177,628,260 12.76%
IR EEE ([ALE]) (Hat6) REHER
Ocean Honor Limited (“Ocean Honor”) (Note 7) Beneficial owner 695,796,804 49.99%
Ocean Honor Limited ([Ocean Honor |) (4/:#7) E=EA A
Mr. CHAN Yuen Ming (“Mr. Chan”) (Note 8) Interest in controlled corporation 695,796,804 49.99%
PRI=BAL A ([BR&EAE]) (HFE8) REHER
Head & Shoulders Securities Limited Beneficial owner 298,198,632 21.43%
(“Head & Shoulders”) (Note 7) E=EA A
teRAFARAE ([BMEESR]) (Mi27)
Ms. CHEUNG Fung Kuen, Maggie (“Ms. Cheung”) Interest in controlled corporation 298,198,632 21.43%
(Note 9) REHER
kBB ZcE ([sRzex]) (A7329)
Mr. CHOI Chiu Fai, Stanley (“Mr. Choi”) (Note 10) Interest in controlled corporation 298,198,632 21.43%

AL ([8554]) (HaZ10)

REHEE 2 S
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER PERSONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes:

1.

The percentage figures were calculated based on 1,391,796,013 Shares in issue as of
31 March 2014.

Ms. Loh was beneficially interested in 100% of the issued share capital of Assure
Gain, which held 100% of the issued share capital of Winner Global Holdings Limited
(“Winner Global”) and Splendid Asset Holdings Limited (“Splendid Asset”) respectively.
Ms. Loh was also beneficially interested in 50% of the issued share capital of Corp
Insights Holdings Inc. (“Corp Insights”) held through Corporate Insights Limited. Assure
Gain was the registered holder of 186,127,058 Shares and 621,346,723 convertible
preferred shares (“CPS”) of the Company convertible into 19,417,085 underlying
Shares; Winner Global was the registered holder of 53,340,183 Shares; Splendid Asset
was the registered holder of 55,183,410 Shares; and Corp Insights was the registered
holder of 308,627,424 CPS convertible into 9,644,607 underlying Shares. Under
Part XV of the SFO, Ms. Loh was therefore deemed to have interests in 294,650,651
Shares and 29,061,692 underlying Shares upon conversion of the CPS in which
Assure Gain, Winner Global, Splendid Asset and Corp Insights were interested.

Mr. Lau, being the spouse of Ms. Loh, was deemed to have an interest in the same
parcel of the Shares and underlying Shares in which Ms. Loh was interested under Part
XV of the SFO.

Assure Gain held 100% of the issued share capital of Winner Global and Splendid
Asset respectively. Assure Gain was the registered holder of 186,127,058 Shares and
621,346,723 CPS convertible into 19,417,085 underlying Shares; Winner Global was
the registered holder of 53,340,183 Shares and Splendid Asset was the registered
holder of 55,183,410 Shares. Under Part XV of the SFO, Assure Gain was therefore
interested and deemed to have interests in 294,650,651 Shares and 19,417,085
underlying Shares upon conversion of CPS in which itself, Winner Global and Splendid
Asset were interested.

Expert Plan was the registered holder of 170,893,099 Shares and 215,525,161 CPS
convertible into 6,735,161 underlying Shares. Under Part XV of the SFO, Expert Plan
was therefore interested and deemed to have interests in 170,893,099 Shares and
6,735,161 underlying Shares upon conversion of the CPS.

Mr. Ho was beneficially interested in 100% of the issued share capital of Expert
Plan. Under Part XV of the SFO, Mr. Ho was therefore deemed to have interests in
170,893,099 Shares and 6,735,161 underlying Shares upon conversion of the CPS in
which Expert Plan was interested.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER PERSONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes: (continueq)

7.

Ocean Honor and Head & Shoulders (as underwriters) and the Company entered into
an underwriting agreement dated 27 February 2014 in relation to underwriting of share
open offer and CPS open offer.

Under the share open offer and CPS open offer, not less than 139,173,247 offer
shares and not more than 165,665,906 offer shares and not more than 172,420,129
offer CPS together with bonus shares on the basis of five bonus shares for every offer
share subscribed and bonus CPS on the basis of five bonus CPS for every offer CPS
subscribed were expected to be allotted and issued by the Company.

In the event of the share open offer not being fully subscribed, up to 70% of the
underwritten offer shares will be first taken up by Ocean Honor to the fullest extent
and the balance of the underwritten offer shares will thereafter be taken up by Head &
Shoulders.

In the event of the CPS open offer not being fully subscribed, up to 70% of the
underwritten offer CPS will be first taken up by Ocean Honor to the fullest extent
and the balance of the underwritten offer CPS will thereafter be taken up by Head &
Shoulders.

Under Part XV of the SFO, the underwriters of a public offer of shares will have interests
in the shares which are to be offered even though they are unissued. Upon completion
assuming the full exercise of the share options, share warrants and CPS warrants
and the full conversion of the CPS before the record date for the share open offer and
CPS open offer, Ocean Honor and Head & Shoulders were therefore deemed to have
interests in 695,796,804 Shares and 298,198,632 Shares respectively.

Mr. Chan was beneficially interested in 100% of the issued share capital of Ocean
Honor. Under Part XV of the SFO, Mr. Chan was therefore deemed to have interests in
695,796,804 Shares in which Ocean Honor was interested.

Ms. Cheung was beneficially interested in 50% of the issued share capital of Grand
Rich Limited, which holds 100% interest in the issued share capital of Master Gold
Limited. Head & Shoulders is directly and wholly owned by Master Gold Limited.
Under Part XV of the SFO, Ms. Cheung was therefore deemed to have interests in
298,198,632 Shares in which Head & Shoulders was interested.

Mr. Choi was beneficially interested in 50% of the issued share capital of Grand Rich
Limited, which holds 100% interest in the issued share capital of Master Gold Limited.
Head & Shoulders is directly and wholly owned by Master Gold Limited. Under Part XV
of the SFO, Mr. Choi was therefore deemed to have interests in 298,198,632 Shares in
which Head & Shoulders was interested.

All interests stated above as at 31 March 2014 represented long positions of Shares or
underlying Shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, the Company had not been
notified of any other persons (other than the Directors or chief executive of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares of the Company which would be required to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE
SECURITIES

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” above, during
the year ended 31 March 2014, none of the Director nor the chief executive
of the Company had been granted any right to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporation and none of the Directors, their respective spouses nor their
respective children under the age of 18 had any right to subscribe for the
securities of the Company or had exercised any such rights.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the Shareholders on
27 November 2009 (“Share Option Scheme”), the Company may grant
share options to the directors, employees, executive or officers, managers,
consultants, any customers, suppliers of goods or services to any member of
the Group or any entity in which any member of the Group holds any equity
interests (“Invested Entity”) who, in the sole discretion of the Board, have
contributed or will contribute to the growth and development of the Group so
as to provide incentives or rewards for their contribution to the success of the
Group’s operation.

During the year, the movements in the share options under the Share Option
Scheme were as follows:

ESRERSZER

B EXTEZR&EHITHRABREN RHEBKH
ZHEmSORR | —BRAERBEEN REE-F 1
FZAZT—RALEFE BERARAESHTR
AB YW BB T AR ] R B A A B AR
HzB 2 mskErmEs AEFARES
BzRBREEEBRM18ms FRBMEERE
MRBARRE R ZEN METEEMNZSTE
e

B E
REBRRR_ZZNF+—A-TEARAZE
Pergst &l ([ E )  ARRAMESEE R
BRARSERIBEHAREZEERERELE
B AEBEEAKEXARBEMNKEFTEER
A ER([REERDZEZ RBE TK
ABRBE KB BR EAEF REEMK
fRiG2 HER R LB AE L RE R P RS
AEBERNLEMEL ZER

RER RIBERE S cBREZSHNT :

Number of share options
BREHE
Exercise Exercise
Outstanding Outstanding price price
at Adjusted at 31 March per share per share
1 April 2013 upon share 2014 before share after share
R-E-zf§ consolidation ~ R=F-RNF consolidation ~consolidation
Name Nature of interest BA-A Granted Exercised Lapsed Kfi&%#%  =A=t-A  DateofGrant Exercise period RA&HE  RAAHE
#e BEKE HATE (258 B B&H g3 HATE EEAH T8 SROEE  SROER
Directors
E£3
Ms. ZHOU Jing Personal = 83,215,866 = = (69,396,555) 13879311 30 August 2013 30 August 2013 HK$0.0534 HKS0.3204
Ly A 3 29 August 2023 RH00SUT  EH0304T
NA=1H A=
e g I
Mr. MUNG Wai Ming Personal - 83,275,866 - - (69,396,555) 13879311 30 August 2013 30 Augus 2013 HK$0.0534 HKS0.3204
SEMRE A St 3 2 At 2023 AR006UT  BE03204T
NA=1R NA=+RE
g/‘ \ q ‘H'L E!
Sub-total - 166,551,732 - - (138,793,110) 21,758,622
It
Employees and other 520,865 - - - 434,065) 86810 13 January 2010 13 January 2011 to HK$0.940 HK$5.640
participants “5-%F 12 January 2020 EEOMOT ST
EEREMSEE “3-—5-R+ZH%
“2-RE-AtCA
520,865 - - - (434,065) 86,810 13 January 2012 to HK$0.940 HK$5.640
n January 2020 AR  EES6A0T
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

B EST & (@)

Number of share options
BREHE
Exercise Exercise
Outstanding Outstanding price price
at Adjusted at 31 March per share per share
1 April 2013 upon share 2014 before share after share
RZB-ZF consolidation ~ R=F-RE consolidation ~ consolidation
Name Nature of interest mA-A Granted Exercised Lapsed Bfiad%  ZA=t-B DateofGramt Exercise period RA&6E K&
#e ERkE HA{TE &k B BN e HAE  RHAH %8 SRITEE  SROKE
Employees and other 520,867 - - - (434,056) 86,811 13 January 2010 13 January 2013 o HK$0.940 HK$5.640
participants (continued) “E-%F 12 January 2020 RE0MOT 56T
BERAMSEZ (B) -At=A -At=RZ
5,105,428 - - (5,105,428) NA - 13 January 2010 16 July 20100 HK$0.940 NA
il —E-%F 12 January 2020 AE0.U0T TER
—-A+=A F-2FtATHRE
5,105,427 = = (5,106,427) N/A - 13 January 2010 16 July 2011 to HK$0.940 N/A
ER 5% 12 January 2020 HEB0940T 1
—-A+=A —£tAtRAZ
“2-BE-AtCA
5,105,427 - - (5,105,427) N/A - TMay2010 15 July 2010 to HK$0.710 N/A
Gl i 6May 2020 ABOTI0T R
aAtH : tAtHAZ
ZE-EERARA
280,865 - - - (234,055) 46810 7May 2010 13 January 2011 to HKS0.710 HK$4.260
“E-%F 6 May 2020 AEOTI0T %4260
TAtH “E—45-Rt=RZ
ZRCTERARA
5,106,428 = = (5,105,428) NA - TMay2010 16 July 2011 to HKS0.710 N/A
il %% 6 May 2020 AEOTI0T TER
TAtA “5——%tAT+ARAE
CERANA
280,865 = = = (234,085) 46810 7May2010 13 January 2012 to HK$0.710 HK$4.260
5% 6 May 2020 EBOTI0T 42601
BAtA
280,867 - - - (234,056) 46811 7May 2010 13 January 2013 to HK$0.710 HK$4.260
“T-%% 6 May 2020 BROTIOT %4260
LAtA “2-=5-A+=A%
“T-TERARA
11,200,000 - - (11,000,000 (166,667) 33333 14 September 2010 14 September 2010 to HK$0.375 HKS2.250
“2-BF 27 Noveroer 2019 BROITT %2507
hATEA “3-ZENATMAZ
Z2-NET-AZTtA
18
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) BRRETE ()

Number of share options
BREHE
Exercise Exercise
Outstanding Outstanding price price
at Adjusted at 31 March per share per share
1 April 2013 upon share 2014 before share after share
RZF-Z% consolidation consolidation ~ consolidation
Name Nature of interest mA-A Granted Exercised Lapsed Rfabe Date of Grant  Exercise period RA&GE Rfab%
#% 503 HRTTE Bt g BAH fige RiAH 2] SROEE  SRAEE
Employees and other 1,433,333 - - (1,433,333) N/A - 18 February 2011 16 December 2011 to HK$0.42 N/A
partcipants (continued) TER 5-f 17 February 2021 8047 TER
EEREMSEE (8) AN Z5--F+-f1/RZ
ZR--FZAt+A
1,433,333 - - (1,433,333) N/A - 18February 2011 16 December 2012 to HK$0.42 N/A
TER 3 17 February 2021 EB0421 TER
At 5 i Y=Y
“2--F-At+A
1,433,334 - - (1,433,334) N/A - 18Februay 2011 16 December 2013 to HK$0.42 NA
FER It S 17 February 2021 80421 TEm
ZAt/A TZATAAR
F-At+H
Sub-total
Nt 38,326,904 = - (85,721,710) (2,170,999 434195
Totel
it 38,326,904 166,551,732 - (35,721,710) (140,964,109) 28,192,817
Notes: et -
1. The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which the options were 1. BORBEBRER-T—TF—A+=ARLE
granted on 13 January 2010 was HK$0.950. A Az YT {8 A& 7 #0.9507T ©
2. The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which the options were 2. RN EZBERER T ZTFRALARLEHR
granted on 7 May 2010 was HK$0.700. Al 2 YT {8 &7 #0.7007T °
3. The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which the options were 3. BORBEBRER-T—SFALATHARLE
granted on 14 September 2010 was HK$0.385. H Al 2z Y (B /&7 %0.3857T ©
4, The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which the options were 4. BRORBEEBRER-—Z——F AT+ \HRLEE
granted on 18 February 2011 was HK$0.415. B Al z Y B A E0.4157T
5. The closing price of the Share immediately before the date on which the options were 5. BORBEBRER-T—=F\A=+TAELE

granted on 30 August 2013 was HK$0.034. H Al Z Y (B &7 %0.0347T ©
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Summary of the terms of the Share Option Scheme is as follows:

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Purposes

The principal purposes are to recruit and retain high caliber employees
and attract human resources that are valuable to the Group or
any Invested Entity and to provide incentives or rewards to Eligible
Participants (as defined below) for their contribution to the Group.

Eligible Participants

Any employees (whether full time or part time), directors (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-executive directors)
of any members of the Group or any Invested Entity, any customer,
supplier of goods and services to any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity and such other persons or entities (‘Eligible
Participants”) who, in the sole discretion of the Board, have contributed
or will contribute to the growth and development of the Group or any
Invested Entity.

Maximum number of shares available for issue
The total number of shares (i.e. 670,236,433 Shares, before the share
consolidation, which should be consolidated into 111,706,072 Shares
upon the share consolidation effective from 2 October 2013) which
may be issued upon exercise of all options granted and to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme represented 10% of the total number
of issued Shares as at the date of passing the ordinary resolution on
11 April 2012 (being the date on which the mandate limit of the Share
Option Scheme was refreshed) and represented approximately 5.0% of
the total number of issued Shares of the Company as at the date of this
report.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Participant
The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
options (whether exercised or outstanding) granted in any 12-month
period to:

(i) each Eligible Participant must not exceed 1% of the total number
of Shares in issue; and

(i) a substantial shareholder of the Company or an independent
non-executive director must not exceed 0.1% of the total number
of Shares in issue and not exceed HK$5 million in aggregate
value.

Period within which the Shares must be taken up
under an option

An option must be exercised within 10 years from the date on which it
is granted or such shorter period as the Board may specify at the time
of grant.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(f) Minimum period, if any, for which an option must
be held
No minimum period for which the option has to be held before it can be
exercised is specified in the Share Option Scheme.

(g) Period open for acceptable of an option and
amount payable upon acceptance
An offer of grant of an option may be accepted by an Eligible
Participant within 28 days from the date of the offer of grant of the
option. A consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on acceptable of the
offer of grant of an option.

(h) Basis of determining the subscription price of an
option
The exercise price must be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of
the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on
the date of grant; (i) the average closing prices of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (i) the nominal value
of a Share.

(i) Validity of the Share Option Scheme
The Share Option Scheme has a life of 10 years and will expire on 27
November 2019 unless otherwise terminated in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

During the year, no contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted
for approximately 84.0% of the total sales for the year and sales to the
largest customer included therein amounted to 34.8%. Purchases from the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 43.1% of the total
purchases for the year and purchases from the largest supplier amounted to
29.9%.

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates or any
Shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
Group's five largest customers and/or five largest suppliers.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, there is sufficient
public float of more than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required
under the Listing Rules.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The subsequent events are set out in Note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2014
were audited by Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited (“Crowe Horwath”) who
retire and, being eligible, offer itself for reappointment at the forthcoming AGM
of the Company.

On Behalf of the Board

ZHOU JING
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June 2014
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Ms. ZHOU Jing

Ms. ZHOU Jing, aged 40, joined the Group in January 2013 as an Executive
Director and a member of the executive committee (“Executive Committee”)
of the Board of the Company and subsequently she was appointed as the
Chairman of the Board of the Company and acted as the chairman of the
Executive Committee. Ms. Zhou graduated from a university in the PRC with
a bachelor’s degree majoring in accounting and was awarded with Certified
Public Accountant qualification in the PRC in 2002. She worked in an imports
and exports company responsible for foreign trade accounting and has also
joined an accountant firm as a shareholder and carries out her duties in
auditing and asset valuation. Ms. Zhou has more than 10 years’ experience in
international trade accounting and corporate financial management. Ms. Zhou
is also an independent non-executive director of Perception Digital Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1822). Ms. Zhou was an executive director of Yun Sky
Chemical (International) Holdings Limited (currently known as King Stone
Energy Group Limited) (stock code: 663), and resigned in February 2010.
Save as disclosed above, Ms. Zhou did not hold any other directorships in
any other publicly listed companies in the last three years and does not have
any relationship with any other Directors, senior management or substantial
or controlling shareholders of the Company. Ms. Zhou is not a director or
employee of a company which has an interest in the Shares and underlying
Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong, “SFO”).

Mr. MUNG Wai Ming

Mr. MUNG Wai Ming, aged 51, joined the Group in January 2013 as an
Executive Director and a member of the Executive Committee. Mr. Mung
has more than 20 years’ experience in property and car park management.
He has accumulated extensive concept in the operation management from
his operation in different industries. Mr. Mung worked in various industries
including property trading, financing, wedding witnesses, club management,
car park operation and foot massage etc. Mr. Mung is the chairman of Eli Car
Park Ltd. and director of Pure Massage Group Ltd and is also an executive
director of Perception Digital Holdings Limited (stock code: 1822). He devotes
himself in charity and was elected as the member of the sixth standing
committee of the Overseas Congress of Yue Xiu District of Guangzhou,
member of the forth standing committee of the Overseas Congress of Qingxin
District of Qingyuan, member of Friends of Qing Yuan Association (H.K.)
Ltd. and founding chairman of International Industry and Commerce Experts
Association Ltd. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Mung did not hold any other
directorships in any other publicly listed companies in the last three years and
does not have any relationship with any other Directors, senior management
or substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company. Mr. Mung is not a
director or employee of a company which has an interest in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. William Keith JACOBSEN

Mr. William Keith JACOBSEN, aged 48, joined the Group in January
2013 as an Independent Non-Executive Director. He is also the chairman
and a member of each of the audit committee (‘Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (“Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination
committee (“Nomination Committee”) of the Board of the Company.
Mr. Jacobsen is the managing director of a licensed corporation to advise
on corporate finance matters. He has more than 20 years of experience in
corporate finance and business development. Mr. Jacobsen is an executive
director of Auto Italia Holdings Limited (formerly known as Wo Kee Hong
(Holdings) Limited, stock code: 720) and is also an independent non-
executive director of HyComm Wireless Limited (stock code: 499), abc
Multiactive Limited (stock code: 8131), China Financial Leasing Group Limited
(stock code: 2312) and Perception Digital Holdings Limited (stock code:
1822). He was also an independent non-executive director of King Stone
Energy Group Limited (stock code: 663) for the period from 26 September
2008 to 30 September 2011. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Jacobsen did
not hold any other directorships in any other publicly listed companies
in the last three years and does not have any relationship with any other
Directors, senior management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company. Mr. Jacobsen is not a director or employee of a company which
has an interest in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. WU Wang Li

Mr. WU Wang Li, aged 40, joined the Group in January 2013 as an
Independent Non-Executive Director. He is also a member of each of
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. He obtained his bachelor of commerce degree from Deakin
University, and has over 14 years of experience in auditing and accounting
profession and consulting services. Mr. Wu is a director of Skywise
Consultants Limited and is admitted to the status of Certified Practicing
Accountant of CPA Australia. Currently, Mr. Wu is the director of Skywise
Consultants Limited and an independent non-executive director of HyComm
Wireless Ltd (stock code: 499) since December 2007. He was appointed
as an independent non-executive director on several listed companies in
main board and growth enterprise market in Hong Kong. He has appropriate
accounting and related financial management expertise as required under
Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules by virtue of his experience in accounting
and financial consulting services. Mr. Wu was the independent non-executive
director of Hao Wen Holdings Limited (formerly known as Everpride
Biopharmaceutical Company Limited) (stock code: 8019), King Stone Energy
Group Limited (formerly known as Yun Sky Chemical (International) Holdings
Limited) (stock code: 663) and Talent Property Group Limited (formerly known
as Tomorrow International Holdings Limited) (stock code: 760) and resigned
in July 2009, January 2010 and January 2011 respectively. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Wu did not hold any other directorships in any other publicly listed
companies in the last three years and does not have any relationship with any
other Directors, senior management or substantial or controlling shareholders
of the Company. Mr. Wu is not a director or employee of a company which
has an interest in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. NG Wai Hung

Mr. NG Wai Hung, aged 51, joined the Group in February 2013 as an
Independent Non-Executive Director. He is also a member of each of
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. He is a practising solicitor and a partner in lu, Lai & Li, a
Hong Kong firm of solicitors. Mr. Ng practises in the areas of securities
law, corporate law and commercial law in Hong Kong. Mr. Ng is also
an independent non-executive director of six companies listed on Stock
Exchange, namely Fortune Sun (China) Holdings Limited (stock code: 352),
Gome Electrical Appliances Holding Limited (stock code: 493), HyComm
Wireless Limited (stock code: 499), Trigiant Group Limited (stock code:
1300), Perception Digital Holdings Limited (stock code: 1822) and Tech
Pro Technology Development Limited (stock code: 3823). Mr. Ng was also
an independent non-executive director of Yun Sky Chemical (International)
Holdings Limited (currently known as King Stone Energy Group Limited, stock
code: 663), KTP Holdings Limited (currently known as Ares Asia Limited,
stock code: 645) and Tomorrow International Holdings Limited (currently
known as Talent Property Group Limited, stock code: 760) and resigned
in February 2010, February 2011 and January 2012, respectively. Save as
disclosed above, Mr. Ng did not hold any other directorships in any other
publicly listed companies in the last three years and does not have any
relationship with any other Directors, senior management or substantial or
controlling shareholders of the Company. Mr. Ng is not a director or employee
of a company which has an interest in the Shares and underlying Shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Jairo Alfonso RAMOS SUAREZ

(Vice President of Field Operations)

Mr. Jairo Alfonso RAMOS SUAREZ, aged 43, is the vice president of
field operations of the Group. He joined the Group in November 2009.
Mr. Ramos Suarez is a trained mechanical engineer, has more than 16 years
of experience in production, maintenance programming, quality control,
mechanical design, marketing and procurement in tropical timber products
and other materials. Mr. Ramos Suarez was in charge of trading of forest
products for a private Columbian company in Shanghai, China from 2006 to
2008. Mr. Ramos Suarez is responsible for the field operations in Acre. Save
as disclosed above, Mr. Ramos Suarez did not hold any other directorships in
any other publicly listed companies in the last three years and does not have
any relationship with any other Directors, senior management or substantial or
controlling shareholders of the Company. Mr. Ramos Suarez is not a director
or employee of a company which has an interest in the Shares and underlying
Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

2c |

EE (5
BIYFHTES (8)

REELE

REBEEE 515 RZE—=FZANMALRE
B HAEBIERTES - BADRABZEE
g FHZECRIERZEEE KB -HAE—H
HMEL WAEEEURTEZMTZEABA-R
EEREZREBERFEE S 2FHE QA
NEEE  REENBARERF LM AG 2B
VHERTEE ZARAADANBEER (REH)
TR AR A E (BRDARSR:352)  BEET [T
BRAR (BRDAREE:493) ERERLBEEAR
A (RMHARSE:499) ENEEFR A A (B
P R5% 1 1300) ~ A EF S IZER AR A A (BRMDAR
9% :1822) RIEERIFRERAER AT (BRHOKR
3823) e RAEELFrm AL T (HE)IERER
AR (RB2LEREEFR AR BHKMR:
663) - HBEAEEARAR RBLEEMER
NERRDAREE 645) R BB EBEER A A
(BB RESBEERA R BRHRSE:760) 2
BYATES WEHIR_ZE—ZF_F-
B F-ARE—F-ABE-BLX
WEEIN REERBE=FTVERNMEMEM L
MAR L EEAE A E SR - BEARR B ER
HitEE SEEEASRTERIERBREMRE
IR - R AW IE— R AR RISk A8 4
D R BRI ES R EIEFIEXVEE2 R
FEIWPDZIEXERARNRBIBEER I ARIZE
EHE T

)

EEEEAR

Jairo Alfonso RAMOS SUAREZ ¢t &£
(BBEXRER)

Jairo Alfonso RAMOS SUAREZZ: 4 © 4355 A&
ERBEEIBE R-ZETAF+—ANAR
& @ - Ramos Suarezft 4 A& & £ 5 5l 58 2 #E
TR RAEE HEHRE H2E6H BRR
AT & RIRBE AT AN E M E iR EEe
16F &5 B _TTFE-_ZFZ \F Ramos
SuarezZt AR B EEEE —KIFMETEALAR
AZAMERESEG - FARMN R EMN2R5
YEZE - B2 EIFFEE D Ramos Suarezit £ B
E=FWEAEMEM ET AR L EEREME
EBA - BEAQBAMNEMES SETEAS
ok B AR AR R BE (£ B8R - Ramos Suarez
SEWIE—ERARRRMG BT #HE
RIEE SR E IR EXVEBE2 K 381D Z 15X
ARARRFBEER L AR ZEEHE T -



KRMEZRERAR —T—= /" NFFR

Corporate Governance Report

TEERHRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Company has applied the
principles of, and complied with, the applicable code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (“the CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules, except for the deviations mentioned below:

Code Provision A.2.1

Under the Code Provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief executive
should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
The roles of the chairman (“Chairman”) and the chief executive (“CE”)
of the Company are segregated and are clearly defined to ensure their
respective independence, accountability and responsibilities. The Chairman is
responsible for the formulation of the Group’s overall business development
policies while the CE is responsible for the implementation of major decisions
of the Board and overall management of the Group’s businesses.

On 6 April 2011, Mr. LEUNG Chau Ping, Paul was re-designated from the
position as an executive director of the Company to a non-executive director
and resigned as the CE. Since then and to up the date of this report, the
position of the CE has not been appointed. Since the beginning of the current
financial year, Ms. ZHOU Jing acted as the Chairman. During the current
financial year when no CE was appointed, the functions of the CE have been
performed by the Executive Directors with the assistance of the management
of the Company. The Board considers that such structure does not impair the
balance of power and authority between the Board and the management of
the Company. The Board will however regularly review the effectiveness of this
structure to ensure that such structure is appropriate in view of the Group’s
prevailing circumstances.

Code Provision A.6.7

Under Code Provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors and
non-executive directors should attend general meetings. However, Mr. NG
Wai Hung was unable to attend the special general meeting held in Hong
Kong on 30 September 2013 as he had another business engagement.

The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance practices to
ensure that it continues to meet the requirements under the Code Provisions.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

As at 31 March 2014, the Board comprised five Directors in total, with two
Executive Directors and three Independent Non-Executive Directors.

Executive Directors:
Ms. ZHOU Jing (Chairman)
Mr. MUNG Wai Ming

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. William Keith JACOBSEN

Mr. WU Wang Li

Mr. NG Wai Hung

There is no family or other material relationship (including financial and
business) among members of the Board. Composition of the Board
including the names and categories of Directors, is set out on page 2. The
brief biographical details of each Director are set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 23 to
26. Each Director possesses the necessary expertise and experience and
provides checks and balances for safeguarding the interests of the Group and
the Shareholders as a whole. The Company has during the year ended 31
March 2014 maintained a balanced board composition.

During the year, the Independent Non-Executive Directors provided the Group
with a wide range of expertise and experience. Their active participation in
the Board and committee meetings brought independent judgment on issues
relating to the Group’s strategy, performance and management process,
taking into account the interests of all Shareholders.

During the year under review, the Company has three Independent Non-
Executive Directors representing not less than one-third of the Board. One
of the Independent Non-Executive Directors, being Mr. WU Wang Li, has
the appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules.
The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors a written confirmation of his independence and has satisfied itself of
such independence up to the approval date of this report in accordance with
the independent guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Board Meetings

The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis and on an ad hoc basis
of at least four times a year to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operation and financial performance of the Group, and to review and approve
the Group’s annual and interim results. Board members are provided with
all agendas and adequate information for their review at least 3 days before
the meetings. After the meeting, draft minutes are circulated to all Directors
for comments before confirmation and sign-off. Minutes of board meetings
and meetings of board committees are kept by the company secretary of
the Company (“Company Secretary”) and are available for inspection by any
Director at any reasonable time on reasonable notice. Each Director is entitled
to seek independent professional advice under appropriate circumstances
at the expense of the Company. During the year, 9 physical board meetings
were held by way of telephone conference and 2 written resolutions for
separate matters signed by all Directors were passed. Attendance of each
Director at the board meetings is set out in the paragraph headed “Board
Committees” below.

Responsibilities of the Board and Delegation of Work
The Board is accountable to the Shareholders for the development of the
Group with the goal of maximizing Shareholders’ value in the long run. The
Board also takes the responsibility for the overall strategies and policies of the
Group, approves and monitors the strategic plans, investment and funding
decisions, and reviews the Group’s financial and operational performance.
The Group’s day-to-day operations and administration are overseen by the
Executive Directors and the management.

The Board is responsible for setting the strategic direction and policies of
the Group and supervising our management. Some functions including the
monitoring and approval of material transactions, matters involving a conflict
of interest for a substantial Shareholder or Director of the Company, the
approval of the interim and annual results and other disclosures to the public
or regulators are reserved by the Board for consideration and approval.
Matters not specially reserved to the Board and necessary for the daily
management and operation of the Company are delegated to the Executive
Committee and management of the Company.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance

The Directors are fully insured under the directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance policy for indemnification against costs, charges, losses, expenses
and liabilities that may be incurred by them in the execution and discharge of
their duties.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

All members of the Board have participated in continuous professional
development through internal training provided by the Company on various
areas including, but not limited to, the connected transaction, the Model Code
and the duties and responsibilities of Directors, so as to ensure that they
have appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Group
as well as fully aware of the responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and the relevant regulatory requirements.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Every newly appointed Director will receive an induction package from the
Company Secretary on the first occasion of his/her appointment, including
materials briefly describing the operations and business of the Company
and the latest published financial reports of the Company. Directors will be
continuously updated on any major developments of the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of
good corporate governance practices.

All Non-Executive Directors of the Company were appointed for a specific
term of 2 years but subject to the relevant provisions of the Bye-laws or any
other applicable laws whereby the Directors shall vacate or retire from their
office but eligible for re-election.

According to the Bye-laws, each Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy
shall be subject to re-election at the next following general meeting or until
the next following AGM in case of an addition to the Board and shall then be
eligible for re-election at such meeting. Moreover, one-third of the Directors for
the time being, (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not greater than one-third), shall retire from office by
rotation, provided that every Director (including those appointed for a specific
term but excluding those holding office as Chairman or Managing Director)
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Every
Director holding the office of Chairman or Managing Director shall be subject
to re-election once every three years. The rotating Directors who are subject
to retirement and re-election at the forthcoming AGM are set out on page 11.

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as
a Director are available and accessible on the Company’s website at
http://www.susfor.com.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company adopted a board diversity policy during the financial year ended
31 March 2014. The board diversity policy sets out that the Company should
endeavour to ensure that its Board members have the appropriate balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives that are required to support the
execution of its business strategy and in order for the Board to be effective.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will
be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has established four board committees, namely the Executive
Committee, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee, to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs and to assist in the execution of the Board’s responsibilities. All board
committees have clear and specific written terms of reference and they report
their work to the Board after each meeting. Copies of minutes of all meetings
and resolutions passed at the board committees are kept by the Company
Secretary.

Executive Committee

As at 31 March 2014 and the date of this report, the Executive Committee
comprised Ms. ZHOU Jing (chairman of the Executive Committee) and
Mr. MUNG Wai Ming. The Executive Committee was established with specific
written terms of reference to, among other duties, implement, review and give
recommendations to the Board on the daily operation of the Group from the
time to time. The Executive Committee held 13 meetings during the year. The
attendance records of each member are set out on page 33.

Audit Committee

As at 31 March 2014 and the date of this report, the Audit Committee
comprised three members, namely Mr. William Keith JACOBSEN (chairman
of the Audit Committee), Mr. WU Wang Li and Mr. NG Wai Hung and all of
them are Independent Non-Executive Directors. The Audit Committee was
established with specific written terms of reference. The terms of reference
of the Audit Committee is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company. The Board resolved that the responsibility to perform the
corporate governance functions as set out in the CG Code was delegated to
the Audit Committee. The principle role and functions of the Audit Committee
are to review and supervise the Company’s financial reporting and internal
control systems. The Audit Committee also provides an important link
between the Board and the Company’s external auditors in matters within the
scope of the financial audit of the Group.

During the year, the Audit Committee held 3 physical meetings by way of
telephone conference. Two of the physical meetings were held together
with management and the external auditors. The attendance records of
each member are set out on page 33. The Audit Committee has reviewed
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, reviewed
the financial statements for the interim and final results for the year ended
31 March 2014 and discussed the internal controls together with the
management.

The Audit Committee and the Board have not taken a different view regarding
the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external auditors of
the Company.
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To comply with the requirements under the CG Code in respect of
responsibilities for performing the corporate governance duties, the Board
delegated its responsibilities to the Audit Committee to develop and review
the Company’s policy and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board; to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior management;
to review and monitor the Company’s policy and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; to develop, review and monitor the
code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Remuneration Committee

As at 31 March 2014 and the date of this report, the Remuneration
Committee comprised Mr. William Keith JACOBSEN (chairman of the
Remuneration Committee), Mr. WU Wang Li and Mr. NG Wai Hung. The
Remuneration Committee was established with specific written terms of
reference to, among other duties, review and give recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration policy of the Directors and senior management.
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee is available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The remuneration of all
the Directors and senior management is monitored by the Remuneration
Committee. To determine the emoluments of Directors, the Remuneration
Committee takes into consideration factors such as salaries of directors
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
Directors. The Remuneration Committee ensures that no Director is involved
in deciding his/her own remuneration. During the year, the Remuneration
Committee held 2 physical meetings by way of telephone conference.
The attendance records of each member are set out on page 33. During
the year under review, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the existing
remuneration policy and packages of all existing Directors. Details of the
Directors’ remuneration for the year under review are set out in Note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Nomination Committee

As at 31 March 2014 and the date of this report, the member of Nomination
Committee comprised Mr. William Keith JACOBSEN (chairman of the
Nomination Committee), Mr. WU Wang Li and Mr. NG Wai Hung. The
Nomination Committee was established with specific written terms of
reference to, among other duties, give recommendations to the Board on
relevant matters relating to the appointment, re-appointment and succession
planning for the Board members. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. The Nomination Committee has the responsibility to review
the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board at least annually and to identify individuals suitably
qualified to become members of the Board in accordance with the board
diversity policy. It is also responsible for assessing the independence of
independent non-executive directors and making recommendations to the
Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of directors and succession planning for directors. During the year, the
Nomination Committee held 2 physical meetings by way of telephone
conference. The attendance records of each member are set out on below.
During the year under review, the Nomination Committee reviewed the
structure, size and composition of the Board and reviewed the objectives set
for implementing the board diversity policy.

The individual attendance records of each Director at the physical meetings of
the Board, Executive Committee, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee and at the general meeting of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2014 are set out below:
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Number of physical meetings attended/held during his/her tenure

REEHALE /B2 e84A
Executive Audit Remuneration  Nomination General
Name of Directors Board  Committee = Committee = Committee =~ Committee Meeting
BEpg ETg YUfZBE® EWZEE HMZEEe REZEE BRRAE
Ms. ZHOU Jing Agat 99 13113 N/A N/A N/A 202
TER TER TER
Mr. MUNG Wai Ming RERALE 9/9 1318 N/A N/A N/A 2/2
TER TaR TaR
Mr. William Keith JACOBSEN ERHEAE 8/9 N/A 3/3 212 212 212
TER
Mr. WU Wang Li RaLBEE 99 N/A 3/3 2/2 2/2 2/2
TER
Mr. NG Wai Hung REHEE 8/9 N/A 3/3 2/2 2/2 1/2
TER
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct for
dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors. Having made specific
enquiries of all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have complied with
the required standards set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31
March 2014.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2014, in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Listing Rules. In preparing the financial statements, the
Directors have adopted IFRSs and suitable accounting policies and applied
them consistency, made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.
No material uncertainties relating to any events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern
were identified by the Directors during the course of preparing and reviewing
the financial statements for the year under review.

The reporting responsibility of the external auditors of the Company on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group are set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 38 to 40.

External Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the fees in respect of audit and non-audit
services provided to the Group by the external auditors amounted to
approximately HK$1,255,000 (2013: HK$1,088,000) and HK$655,000 (2013:
HK$718,000), respectively. The non-audit service fees for the year ended
mainly consisted of fees in relation to open offers.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective system
of internal control. The internal control system helps to ensure effective
measures are in place to protect the Group’s assets and maintain the
accounting records and the compliance with relevant legislation and
regulations.

During the financial year under review, the Board has reviewed operational
and financial reports in order to ensure the effectiveness and adequacy of the
internal control system through the Audit Committee.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company endeavors to provide its Shareholders accurate, clear,
comprehensive and timely information of the Group via the publication
of annual reports, announcements and circulars as well as through
the Company’s website. The Board resolved to adopt a Shareholders’
communication policy. The policy aims to set out the provisions with the
objective of ensuring that the company’s Shareholders, both individual and
institutional Shareholders, and, in appropriate circumstances, the investment
community at large, are provided with ready, equal and timely access to
balanced and understandable information about the Company and its
subsidiaries (including its financial performance, strategic goals and plans and
governance, etc.), in order to enable the Shareholders to exercise their rights
in an informed manner, and to allow the Shareholders and the investment
community to engage actively with the Company.

The AGM is a useful forum for the Board to communicate directly with the
Shareholders. The Directors, senior executives and external auditors make
their best effort to attend the AGM of the Company to answer any questions
from the Shareholders.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedure for Shareholders to convene a special
general meeting

Shareholders can submit a requisition to convene a special general meeting
pursuant to Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Act”).
The number of Shareholders necessary for a requisition shall be representing
not less than one-tenth of the Company’s paid-up capital as at the date of
requisition having the right to vote at the general meeting.

The written requisition must:
= state the purposes of the special general meeting;

- be signed by all the requisitionists (may consist of one or several
documents in like form each signed by one or more requisitionists); and

- be deposited at the Company’s office in Hong Kong for the attention of
the Company Secretary.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of the deposit
of the requisition proceed duly to convene a special general meeting, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one-half of the total
voting rights of all of them, any themselves convene a special general
meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
three months from the said date.
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Procedure for Shareholders to put forward proposals

at general meetings

Shareholders can submit a requisition to move a resolution at an annual
general meeting pursuant to Section 79 of the Act. The number of

Shareholders necessary for a requisition shall be:

- representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of

all Shareholders having at the date of requisition a right to vote at the
meeting to which the requisition relates; or

not less than 100 Shareholders.

The written requisition must:

state the resolution, with a statement not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in the proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at the meeting;

be signed by all the requisitionists (may consist of one or several
documents in like form each signed by one or more requisitionists);

be deposited at the Company’s office in Hong Kong for the attention
of the Company Secretary not less than six weeks before the meeting
in case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution and not less than
one week before the meeting in case of any other requisition; and

be deposited with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s expenses in giving notice of the resolution and circulating
the statements of the proposed resolution to all Shareholders in
accordance with the requirements under the applicable laws and rules.

Enquires to the Board

The Company’s website provides email address and telephone to enable the
Shareholders to make any enquiries and concerns to the Board. Shareholders
may send their enquiries by post or by email to the attention of the Company
Secretary who will direct the enquiries to the Board for handling.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 30 September 2013, the bye-
laws of the Company were amended by the inserting the words “or in such
other manner as may be approved by Members” immediately after “the
words distributed by way of dividend and in the same proportions” to bye-law
148.

Save as disclosed above, there are no changes in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the year ended 31 March 2014.

On behalf of the Board

Ms. ZHOU Jing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June 2014
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Crowe Horwath.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SUSTAINABLE FOREST HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of
Sustainable Forest Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 41 to 179, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31 March
2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the

consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Except for the inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence as
explained below, we conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
as to whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement. Because of the matters described in the basis for disclaimer
of opinion paragraphs, however, we were not able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion.
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Basis for disclaimer of opinion

Scope limitation - fair value of biological assets,
change in fair value of biological assets, carrying
amount of goodwill, impairment of goodwill and
deferred tax credit

During the year, an impairment loss of goodwill of approximately
HK$302,118,000 and change in the fair value of the biological assets of
approximately HK$292,758,000 have been recognized and charged to the
profit or loss. As set out in note 20 and 21 to the consolidated financial
statements, the directors of the Company engaged an independent valuer to
perform the valuation of the fair value of the biological assets and valuation
of the fair value of the business value for sustainable forest management for
assessing the recoverabilities of the goodwill.

However, we were unable to obtain sufficient evidence to satisfy ourselves as
to whether the assumptions adopted by the valuer in these valuations were
appropriate. Whether the cash generating unit (‘CGU”) of the sustainable
forest management is able to generate future economic benefits to the
Group is dependent on the feasibility of the future business plan provided
by the Company. We were unable to obtain sufficient information to verify
the reasonableness of the assumptions and the feasibility of the business
plan based on which the valuations were performed, and accordingly, we
were unable to satisfy ourselves as to whether the fair value of the biological
assets of approximately HK$17,538,000 and the carrying amount of the
goodwill HK$NIl and interest in subsidiaries of approximately HK$19,896,000
as at 31 March 2014, and whether the impairment loss of goodwill of
approximately HK$302,118,000, the change in fair value of the biological
assets of approximately HK$292,758,000 and the related deferred tax credit
of approximately HK$73,187,000 recognized in the profit or loss for the year
ended 31 March 2014 and the impairment of amount due from subsidiaries of
approximately HK$588,196,000 recognised in the company level profit or loss
for the year ended 31 March 2014 were free from material misstatement.

Any adjustments that might have been found to be necessary in respect of
the above would have a consequential effect on the net assets of the Group
and the Company as at 31 March 2014, and of its loss and cash flows for
the year then ended and the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.

Qualification arising from scope limitation - trade and
other payables

Included in the trade and other payables of approximately HK$56,910,000
in the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2014
was trade payable of approximately HK$36,032,000 which was subject to
an interest of 1% per month for overdue payment. During the audit of the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2011, the
related trade creditor confirmed that no interest was billed to the Group.
Therefore, the Group did not accrue interest for overdue payment. However,
due to the non-reply to our confirmation request, absence of new information
of the trade creditor, and no sufficient appropriate audit evidence to prove
that no interest was required to be accrued, there were no other alternative
audit procedures that we could carry out to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to verify the existence, completeness and valuation of the trade
payable as at 31 March 2014, 2013 and 1 April 2012. Accordingly, we were
unable to satisfy ourselves as to whether these amounts were fairly stated in
the financial statements as at 31 March 2014 and 2013. Our audited opinion
on the Group’s financial statements for the years ended 31 March 2013 and
2012 was also qualified accordingly.
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Any adjustments that might have been found to be necessary in respect of
the above would have a consequential effect on the net assets of the Group
as at 31 March 2014 and 2013 and 1 April 2012 and of its loss and cash
flows for the years then ended and the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.

Disclaimer of opinion

Because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion paragraphs, we have not been able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as to whether they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2014 and of the Group’s
loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and as to whether the consolidated financial
statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 30 June 2014

Alvin Yeung Sik Hung
Practising Certificate Number P05206
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
melEsER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZE—ZT—NF=A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& # 271))
2014 2013
—EF-pmF —E=%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
Bt BET T BT
REVENUE A 7 63,946 76,550
Cost of sales 85 & AR (51,365) (67,302)
GROSS PROFIT EX 12,581 9,248
Other income E A 8 24,461 122,962
Other net loss H b E518)F 58 8 (1,139) (9,618)
Selling and distribution costs SHE R A A (1,647) (10,398)
Administrative expenses TBX (35,695) (61,040)
Other operating expenses Hih&iEmY 9 (315,232) (47,546)
Change in fair value of biological assets EYEERNTES
less costs to sell B B XN 20 (292,758) (482,190)
LOSS FROM OPERATIONS REEE (609,429) (478,582)
Finance income B E WA 41 5,332
Finance costs REEA (2,051) (16,571)
Net finance costs BEBRFE 10() (2,010) (11,239)
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION RRE A1 B 18 10 (611,439) (489,821)
Income tax Frig i 13(a) 121,285 163,145
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FEER (490,154) (326,676)
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: FE4h -
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIE Z SN (490,133) (326,601)
Non-controlling interests FEVE AR AR B M (21) (75)
(490,154) (326,676)
Loss per share BREE 16
- Basic — XK (28.67) cents 1l (22.48) cents il
— Diluted — s (28.67) cents 1l (22.48) cents il

The notes on pages 41 to 179 form part of these consolidated financial

statements
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
meEa ﬁﬂéﬁﬂ& SE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZ—ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  ( LA/%’#% = §‘J)

2014 2013
—E-mF —ET—=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt BT T FE T T
Loss for the year FEB#E (490,154) (326,676)
Other comprehensive loss for the year SR HEMt2EEE
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to ~ E{Z A[fEEF DI Ea 2
profit or loss I5 H
Exchange differences on translation of REGINGT B A R iR
financial statements of overseas subsidiaries EECZEHRZERE 13(c) (11,884) (49,534)
Other comprehensive loss for the year, FRHMEEHEE:
net of income tax MERFTEH (11,884) (49,534)
Total comprehensive loss for the year SRAZXHESIEESE (502,038) (376,210)
Total comprehensive loss DTATEGEZHEEBEARE:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIE ZE N (502,017) (376,131)
Non-controlling interests FEVE AR AR B A 2 (21) (79)
(502,038) (376,210)

The notes on pages 41 to 179 form part of these consolidated financial 41 B EF 1798 2 Witk Lt SR 4 KRS
statements. 2 —#B5 e
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
me AR R R

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZE—ZT—NF=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& # 271))

2014 2013
—E—-NF —T—=%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k3 BET T BT IT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB R 17 157,769 190,274
Intangible assets A E 18 - -
Investment properties TE Y 19 23,699 =
Biological assets EMEE 20 17,538 344,172
Goodwill EES 21 - 302,118
199,006 836,564
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories FE 23 3,741 4,337
Trade and other receivables U E 5 FRIE K&
H b el 3k 18 24 39,340 10,583
Cash and cash equivalents BehEeEEY 25 8,965 216,540
52,046 231,460
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade and other payables BNEZHRER
H & FRIE 26 82,776 79,401
Loans and borrowings BEREkEE 27 5,310 36,132
Provision for taxation T IE B 29(a) 2,158 50,255
Promissory notes AN EE 33 6,782 6,648
Amount due to non-controlling shareholder ANERZ & 42(b) 1,235 =
Amount due to shareholder e AR SR FRIE 31 13,410 =
111,671 172,436
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS e (AE) BEFE (59,625) 59,024
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERABAER
LIABILITIES 139,381 895,588

R
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e BRI R

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZ—ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& 2751))

2014 2013
—E-mF —F=FF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt BT T BT IT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FEREBEE
Loans and borrowings ERxkEE 27 22,994 =
Amounts due to shareholders e A% SR FRI8 31 - 231,568
Amounts due to related companies e REE R RIFIA 32 - 3,717
Financial liabilities M aE 30 1,984 =
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFIBEE 29(b) 55,605 143,296
80,583 378,581
NET ASSETS BEEFE 58,798 517,007
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR#E
Share capital f& A 34 29,005 390,832
Reserves (] 36(a) 29,718 126,168
Total equity attributable to BATEEAEBEER
the owners of the Company 58,723 517,000
Non-controlling interests FEFE B IR R AE 36(a) 75 7
TOTAL EQUITY MR 58,798 517,007

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 June HEZE&R -ZT—PUFE A=+ BIERZET

2014.

On behalf of the board

ZHOU Jing
A&

Director

BF

The notes on pages 41 to 179 form part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Statement of Financial Position
B A& AR =

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZE—ZT—NF=A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A8 # 271))
2014 2013
—EF-HmEF —T-=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Kt BETT BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FEREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB R 17 2 4
Interest in subsidiaries NI 22 19,896 340,713
19,898 340,717
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Other receivables H th & U R I8 24 456 769
Cash and cash equivalents HehBEeEEY 25 7,722 216,281
8,178 217,050
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables H b B 308 26 4,561 3,303
Promissory note NS 33 6,782 6,648
11,343 9,951
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS RE(BE) BEFE (3,165) 207,099
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBERE
LIABILITIES 16,733 547,816
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Financial liabilities WigaE 30 1,984 -
NET ASSETS BEEFE 14,749 547,816
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR#E
Share capital &N 34 29,005 390,832
Reserves s 36(b) (14,256) 156,984
TOTAL EQUITY MRS 14,749 547,816

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 June

2014.

On behalf of the board

ZHOU Jing
A&
Director

BF

The notes on pages 41 to 179 form part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEEREER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZ—ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& 2751))

Attributable to the owners of the Company

RLAEE AR
Shares held
by the
Company for
settlement of
acquisition Distri- Capital Exchange Share Non-
consideration butable redemption fluctuation option controling
Share Share HER  Contibuted reserve reserve reserve reserve  Accumulated interests Total
caplal premium suplus AR RAEE ERED B [osses Sutotel  FEREF equity
o

kx RbEE § EhRE i G Ei BE  zHER gt s
Notes HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO0  HKSOOD  HKSO0D  HKSOOD  HKBOOD  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSO00
A¥Tn  BMTn  B%Tr B%Tn BT #%Tn BMTr E%Tn BMTn T #%Tn B%Tr

At 1 April 2012 384,328 2458674 (115,920) 10,003 2216 8,000 11,638 19,524 (1,903,154) 875,309 86 875,395
Change in equity for 2013
Loss for the year - - - - - - - - (326,601) (326,601) (19 (326,676)
Exchange diferences on translaton of HEs

financiel statements of overseas subsidiares BB HEZERZE - - - - S = 49,530) - - 49530 [ (49534)
Total other comprehensive income Et2ERAEE - - - - - - 49,5%0) - - 49,530) “ (49,534)
Total comprehensive loss for the year AEEREFBEE - - - - o S (49,530) = (326,601) (376,131) (1] (376210)
Transactions with owners
Issuance of shares pursuant

to the equity line facilty e 6,504 11,867 - - - - - - - 18,171 - 18,171
Equity-settled share-based payment - - - - - - - (349) - (349) - (349)
Forfeiture of share options Pt e = = = = = = 9.321) 9321 - - -
Total transactions with owners RERAETIRHHE 6,504 11,667 - - - - - 9,670) 9321 17822 - 17822
At 31 March 2013 R=F-=%=f=1-R 390,832 2470341 (115,920) 10003 2216 8,000 (37.8%) 9854 (2200434) 517,000 7 517,007
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEEREEX

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZE—ZT—NF=A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA7B# 271))
Attributable to the owners of the Company
KAAFEARG
Shares held
by the
Company for
settlement of
acquisition Distri- Capital Exchange Share Non-
consideration butable  redemption fluctuation option controlling
Share Share  ADFREN  Contributed reserve feserve reserve reserve  Accumulated interests Total
capital premium BBRE surplus pLY B4RE Eixe BRE losses Subtotl  FERER equity
& RAAR iR RiéEs L] i fif ik giths it 5 BR%
Notes HKS'000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
i3 EBTn g LR g AT Lo A8 EBIR EBTR Ein Lo LR
At Apr 2013 R-%-=5mA-8 30832 2470341 (115.920) 10003 2216 8000 (3789 9854 2220434 517,00 1 517,007
Change n equt for 2014
Loss for the year - - - - - - - - 490,133 {90,133 @) 490,154
Exchange differences on translaton of
finenciel satements of overseas subsidares = = = = = = (11.884) = = (11.884) = (11,884)
Total other comprehensive
income: - - - - - - (11,884) - - (11,884) - (11,884)
Total comprehensive loss
for e yeer - - - - - - (11,884 - 490,133 302,017 ] (302,088
Trensaction with onners
Issue of ew shares in connection
with e open offer uy 65,138 81 = = = = ° o o 65219 = 65219
Capital reorgenization
- cancelation of paid up captal and
share premium el (431.425) (2467.340) = 2808765 - - - - - - - -
Sheres issue upon exercise of
ordinary share wanants 30 49l 4460 1112 - - - - - - - 5472 - 5572
Shere issue expenses = (4:160) = = = - - - - 4.160) = (4:160)
Equity-setfied shere-based payment - - - - - - - ip - ) - )
Forefure of share optons - - - - - - - (8640) 8640 - - -
Accuistion of subsiceries 3 - - - - - - - - - - 8 8
Deemed distiuion o shashader FEERRRAR
through the open offer - - - 23,331 = = = = = 23337 = (23,331
Tota ransectons wih BEEARTIRAEE
owrers (361,627) (2470307 - 2875428 - - - (8194 8640 8740 o 889
At 31 March 2014 R-%-ME=A=1-A 2005 U (115.920) 2885831 2216 8000 49776 1660 2701920 723 7 5798
The notes on pages 41 to 179 form part of these consolidated financial 5541

statements.

Y

Zi

AEE179A 2 MEBR It ERaMBERE
7By e




SUSTAINABLE FOREST HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GeREenEx

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZ—ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& 2751))

2014 2013
—E-F —ET—=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
Bt BET T BT TT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REXBHRENE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation R %% B B 18 (611,439) (489,821)
Adjustments for: BRI
Finance costs BEEMA 10(a) 2,051 16,571
Finance income BhE WA 10(a) (41) (5,332)
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE BE &
plant and equipment X2 E1E 9 76 736
Impairment of property, Y RE R E 2 BE
plant and equipment 9 13,038 -
Impairment loss of goodwil B R EEE 21 302,118 =
Write off of property, plant and equipment MH Y2~ R K 5% 9 - 1,686
Depreciation neE 17 3,027 2,300
Change in fair value of financial liabilities BB aEATEE 30 (20,278) (6,030)
Write down of inventories MomFEE 9 23 - 44,840
Reversal of write down of inventories, net Bl 17 B MUk F 5 8 23 (22,933) =
Waiver of liabilities by creditors BERAREEE 8 - (119,603)
Write off of other receivables il &8 H b pE kIR 9 - 284
Exchange difference, net ME 5 = RE)F 58 22,227 19,539
Share-based payment PARS 7 2 1+ 10(b) 446 (349)
Gain on bargain purchase on acquisition B2 WS 37(a) (503) =
Change in fair value of biological assets EMEERTFEEER
less costs to sell SHE AR 20 292,758 482,190
Operating loss before changes RTEEESRHI2KEHE
in working capital (19,453) (52,989)
Decrease in inventories FERL 23,412 16,382
(Increase)/Decrease in trade and other FEW B 5 5K I8 & E A
receivables FEM RIE (3 0) (28,007) 6,859
Increase/(Decrease) in trade and FENB S 5RIE R E M
other payables FERTFRIBE AN, (R D) 6,674 (8,814)
Cash used in operations REERFTHESE (17,374) (38,562)
Income tax paid B FTSHE
— Hong Kong Profits Tax paid —BRNBEBNER - =
— PRC Enterprise income tax paid — B REREMSH - =
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING REXBREREFHE
ACTIVITIES (17,374) (38,562)

.




KRMEZRARDA —F

E——

=/ —NFEFR

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n\l_\éiﬁﬁﬁgi

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZE—ZT—NF=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& # 271))

2014 2013
—E-MmF —ET—=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt BET T BT IT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZEHRER
ACTIVITIES
Payment to acquire property, BAYE BEREHEZMR
plant and equipment 17 - (2,689)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE BB RFREMSHIR
plant and equipment 103 703
Net cash outflow from acquisition of g An ) == N o R aintan e
subsidiaries 37 (701) -
Interest received 2 U A8 10(a) 41 5,332
Proceeds of consideration received BWREFSHIE - 208,000
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED REZTEHES (RH) HRAFE
FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (557) 211,346
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RMEETHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Loans and borrowings raised ESERNMEER 17,000 33,000
Repayment of loans and borrowings EEEARNEE (50,036) (7,118)
Advance from shareholders EEEN - 24,923
Advance from a related company —XRBAERF)ER - 18,500
Repayment of amounts due to shareholders &3 & < AL 3R 5118 (217,360) (13,393)
Repayment of amount due to EEEN —XBE R RIFIE
a related company (3,720) (17,500)
Interest paid B F & (1,000) (2,010)
Interest element of finance lease payments REE A FKIE 2 F) S Zp 5 - (49
Capital element of finance lease payments REEAFRIE 2 BEARIBD - (350)
Proceeds from share issue upon exercise of 771 R & B TR (D 2
share warrant P15 508 4,497 =
Proceeds from share issue BERRAD Z FT1S 58 65,219 =
Share issue expense R 2 F (4,160) -
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED BMEFTEHRE GRE)
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RARE (189,560) 36,003
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE ReRESZEEY
IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CRA) B E (207,491) 208,787
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FOESERREZEEY
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 216,540 7,760
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE EREE &
RATE CHANGES (84) (7)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRESRESEEY
AT END OF YEAR 25 8,965 216,540
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH ReERBELEBYEEIW
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents HeRREEEYD 25 8,965 216,540

The notes on pages 41 to 179 form part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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SUSTAINABLE FOREST HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTG R M

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZE—ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Sustainable Forest Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and its ordinary shares are listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The address of its registered office and the principal
place of business is Suites No. 302-305, 3rd Floor, Sino Plaza, 255-
257 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries of the Company comprise
sustainable forest management; manufacturing and sales of timber
products including but not limited to wooden door, furniture and
wooden floor panels; leasing of properties; and travel and travel related
business.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These consolidated financial statements had been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial Reporting
Standards (‘IFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual International Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards (‘IASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (‘IASB”). These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provision of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange and the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, which for this financial year and the comparative
period continue to be those of the predecessor Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 32), in accordance with transitional and saving arrangements
for Part 9 of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622), “Accounts and Audit”, which are set out in Sections 76 to
87 of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance. A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) is set out below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs which are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group and the Company. Note 4 provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the
current and prior accounting periods reflected in these consolidated
financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

(a) Basis of preparation of the financial
statements
The Group incurred a loss attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately HK$490,133,000 (2013: HK$326,601,000)
and had negative operating cash flows of approximately
HK$17,374,000 (2013: HK$38,562,000) for the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTG R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZE—ZT—NF=A=+—HILtFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FTES:HBEHEE )
POLICIES (continued)

MBHRERREE (F)

(a) Basis of preparation of the financial (@)

statements (continued)

In preparing these financial statements, the directors of the
Company have given careful consideration to the impact of the
current and anticipated future liquidity of the Group and the ability
of the Group to attain positive cash flow from operations in the
immediate and long term.

In order to strengthen the capital base of the Group and to
improve the Group’s financial position, liquidity and cash flows in
the immediate foreseeable future, and otherwise to sustain the
Group as a going concern, the Group has adopted the following
measures.

The Company completed to issue 139,179,601 Shares through
the open offer at the subscription price of HK$0.32 per offer
share on the basis of one offer share for every ten existing shares
held with an issue of five bonus share for every offer share
subscribed.

The Company also completed to issue 150,867,613 convertible
preferred share (the “CPS”) through the open offer at the
subscription price of HK$0.01 per offer CPS on the basis of one
offer CPS for every ten existing CPS held with five bonus CPS for
every offer CPS allotted and issued.

The open offers were completed on 12 May 2014 and
approximately HK$46.4 million before expenses were raised.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, in light of the
measures taken to date, together with the expected results
of other measures in progress, the Group will have sufficient
working capital for its current requirements. Accordingly, the
directors of the Company consider that it is appropriate to
prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.
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SUSTAINABLE FOREST HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTG R M

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZE—ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (continued)

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2014 comprise the Group.

[tems included in the financial statements of each entity in the
Group are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (‘HK$”), rounded to the nearest thousand except
for per share data. Hong Kong dollar is the Company’s functional
and the Group’s presentation currency.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that the biological
assets, the warrants and investment properties are stated at their
fair value as explained in the accounting policies set out in Notes
3(g), 3(y) and 3(z) respectively.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRSs
that have significant effect on the financial statements and major
source of estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 5.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTG R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZE—ZT—NF=A=+—HILtFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FTES:HBEHEE )
POLICIES (continued)

(b) KMEARARFEZERRRES

(b) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealized
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the owners of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on the face of
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests and
the owners of the Company. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. Loans from holders
of non-controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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SUSTAINABLE FOREST HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTG IR M

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZE—ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions,
whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling
and non-controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect
the change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (Please
refer to Note 3(i)), unless the investment is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale).

Business combinations

Acquisitions of business are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of
the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the
Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs
are generally recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair values, except that:

° a deferred tax asset or liability arising from the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination
and the potential tax effects of temporary differences and
carryforwards of an acquiree that exist at the acquisition
date or arise as a result of the acquisition are recognised
and measured in accordance with IAS12 lncome Taxes;
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KRMEZRERAR —T—=/"FTNFFR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTG MR

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZE—ZT—NF=A=+—HILtFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FTES:HBEHEE »)
POLICIES (continued)

(c) %i%Aﬁwt

(c) Business combinations (continued)

° assets or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance
with IAS 19 Employee Benefits;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with IFRS 2 Share-
based Payment at the acquisition date; and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment,
the net of the acquisition date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognized immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are measured at their fair value or, when applicable, on
the basis specified in another IFRS.
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SUSTAINABLE FOREST HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR E MR

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZE—ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(c) Business combinations (continued)
Where the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business

3. FESHHERE (&)

(c)

EBa6t (&)

WAREREHAHTERZRER
RIARBLHIELEZEEXRAR:
FARBIREWE A A FEFEL
FAREBAHHAEEREZ —F
Do HARBZATEEDNFESE
RIERERNAR ASERFAE

combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during
the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from
the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed
at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset
or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in
accordance with IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement, or |AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

Where a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to
fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group
obtains control) and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognized
in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree
prior to the acquisition date that have previously been recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest were
disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete
by the end of the reporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for
which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts
are adjusted during the measurement period (see above), and
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed
at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the
amounts recognised at that date.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
(Please refer to the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may be impaired.
If some or all of the goodwill allocated to a cash-generating
unit was acquired in a business combination during the current
annual period, that unit shall be tested for impairment before
the end of the current annual period. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets
of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognized for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or
loss on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Freehold lands are measured on initial recognition at cost. The
cost of freehold land acquired in a business combination is the
fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Freehold land and construction in progress are not depreciated.

The following items of property, plant and equipment are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses
(Please refer to Note 3(i)):

= property, furniture and fixtures, machinery, engineering and
other equipment, and motor vehicles

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and
removing the items and restoring the site on which they are
located, and an appropriate proportion of production overheads
and borrowing costs.
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SUSTAINABLE FOREST HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTG R M

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZE—ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FTES:HEBEHEE )
POLICIES (continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (continued) (e) M¥E BMERSZE (B
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of MENFERESEEDE BERR
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value, BIEB AN 25T A= BB - DA
if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated useful SHARIEE ZRRANE - WHIBRE A
life as follow: FlgpEE (NF)

Property Over the lease term LS REEFEHA
Furniture and fixtures 5-10 years EMREE 5-10%F
Machinery, engineering and other equipment 5-10 years MES - T2 R AR 5-104F
Motor vehicles 10 years RE 104F
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have W% BB REHEER 2 S EF D
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a FEAFHATRE - BIZIEB 2R AER
reasonable basis between the parts and each part is depreciated EREENZET > 2HH A BE
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if BE D EBTIRITE-BEZ A {E
any, are reviewed annually. AFEHRERGEER(WNE)TFR
e
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable BEKABFEWIEEEB 2 E#E EaTH
to the acquisition of the items. Cost may also include transfers X o BRI EIE B i am R R A SNE
from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of BEME BREREEMESERR
foreign currency purchases of property, plant and equipment. SREEREE 2T AR -
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount BREBEZKARESREBERZ
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when RIREEER 25 A Al gem A& E I8
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with B AR Rt 2R AIIAZEELZ
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be FEESX (FEEERLT)DRER
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is RB—HEE BERHS REEHIR
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised SHTERR « FT B b IS REKARE
in profit or loss during the financial period in which they are IR Z W HR R A B e P R o
incurred.
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its BB 2 BRTE A w8 A A AT =
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than B R BN R = H A YK Bl 1E -

its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item WRENHEDE BERZHBEBF
of property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference EEABELEMERIEFEEER
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount FREERZZBET  WHRREENK L
of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of EEHEREBRE-

retirement or disposal.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or RREE REEMHITERAZZY
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised AR AR B FE BB B 5 18 51 R © A
impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for ABEEREXERAR (REEREE
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with mE) I BREAEBSFERERNME 2
the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties are classified BERAR - ZM T LEWEZTERTE
to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment REREED BYE BEREREZ
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation AR HEMYEEE EE—
of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, B ZEEAEEERTEARRKRRI
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. o

.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZE—ZT—NF=A=+—HILtFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FTES:HBEHEE )
POLICIES (continued)

(f)

(9)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
Intangible assets, other than goodwill, identified on business
combinations are capitalised based on their fair values.

Intangible assets acquired by the Group are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful life is finite)
and impairment losses (Please refer to Note 3(i)). Expenditure
on internally generated goodwill and brands is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of patent with finite useful lives is charged to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over its useful lives.

Amortisation of outstanding sales contract with finite useful life
is charged to profit or loss based on the percentage of revenue
recognised on the contract.

Trademark has an indefinite useful life.

Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Biological assets

Biological assets are living plants involved in the agricultural
activities of the transformation of biological assets into agricultural
produce for sale or into additional biological assets. Biological
assets and agricultural produce are measured at fair value less
costs to sell at initial recognition and at each reporting date. The
fair value less costs to sell at the time of harvest is deemed as the
cost of agricultural produce for further processing, if applicable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTG R M

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZ—=%

—HE=ZA=+—RHLFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets
for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether
the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets held by the Group under leases which transfer
to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases, with the following exception:

Land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair
value of which cannot be measured separately from the fair
value of a building situated thereon at the inception of the
lease, is accounted for as being held under a finance lease,
unless the building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the lease is the
time that the lease was first entered into by the Group, or
taken over from the previous lessee.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZE—ZT—NF=A=+—HILtFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FTES:HBEHEE )
POLICIES (continued)

(h) Leased assets (continued)

(i)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged as an expense in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

(i) Impairment of assets

()

Impairment of receivables

Current and non-current receivables that are stated at cost
or amortised cost are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the Group
about one or more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtors;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

= significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTG R M

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZE—ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3. FESHHERE (&)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued) (i) EEZRME(E)

FEW B 2 e (48)
WMFEAE A BIR R EEEE
BTy AAEE RER:

(i)  Impairment of receivables (continued) )
If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

For trade receivables and other current receivables
and other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition of these assets), where the
effect of discounting is material. This assessment
is made collectively where financial assets carried
at amortised cost share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decrease and the decrease can
be linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZE—ZT—NF=A=+—HILtFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FTES:HBEHEE )
POLICIES (continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)

()

(i)

Impairment of receivables (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised
in respect of trade receivable included within trade and
other receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful
but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses for
doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance account.
When the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off against trade
receivable directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or, except in the case
of goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;
- intangible assets;
- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZE—ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, intangible
assets that are not yet available for use and intangible
assets that have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or not there is any
indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwiill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a
pro rata basis, except that the carrying amount of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value
in use (if determinable).
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FTES:HBEHEE )
POLICIES (continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange, the Group is required to prepare an
interim financial report in compliance with IAS 34, Interim
Financial Reporting, in respect of the first six months of the
financial year. At the end of the interim period, the Group
applies the same impairment testing, recognition, and
reversal criteria as it would at the end of the financial year
(Please refer to Notes 3(i)(i) and (ii).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities and
unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not reversed
in a subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss,
or a smaller loss, would have been recognised had the
impairment been assessed only at the end of the financial
year to which the interim period relates. Consequently,
if the fair value of an available-for-sale equity security
increases in the remainder of the annual period, or in any
other period subsequently, the increase is recognised in
other comprehensive income and not profit or loss.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

1))

(k)

m

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and, where
applicable, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition,
is determined on the first-in first-out basis. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write down
of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period the write down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write down
of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value
and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts,
except where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables
are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts
(see Note 3(i)).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees
payable, using the effective interest method.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FTES:HBEHEE )
POLICIES (continued)

(m) Preferred share capital

(n)

(o)

(n)

Preferred share capital is classified as equity if it is non-
redeemable, or redeemable only at the Company’s option, and
any dividends are discretionary. Dividends on preferred share
capital classified as equity are recognised as distributions within
equity.

Preferred share capital is classified as a liability if it is redeemable
on a specific date or at the option of the shareholders, or
if dividend payments are not discretionary. The liability is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policy for interest-
bearing borrowings set out in Note 3(l) and accordingly dividends
thereon are recognised on an accruals basis in profit or loss as
part of finance costs.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value.
Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in accordance
with Note 3(r)(i), trade and other payables are subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within three months of
maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows.

Employee benefits

() Short term employee benefits and contributions to

defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZE—ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(p) Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

(iii)

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
for all of its employees in Hong Kong. The employees
of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government.
The subsidiaries are required to contribute a percentage
of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with rules of the central pension
scheme.

Share-based payments

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in share option reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the binomial option pricing
model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the share options, the total
estimated fair value of the share options is spread over the
vesting period, taking into account the probability that the
options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that
is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year under
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the share option reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of share options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the share option reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the Company’s shares.
The equity amount is recognised in the share option
reserve until either the option is exercised (when it is
transferred to the share premium account) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).

Share options granted to consultants

Share options granted to consultants in exchange for
goods or services are measured at the fair values of
goods or services received, unless that fair value cannot
be reliably measured, in which case the goods or services
received are measured by reference to the fair value of the
share options granted. The amounts are recognised as
expenses, with a corresponding increase in equity (share
option reserve), when the Group obtains the goods or
when the counterparties render services, unless the goods
or services qualify for recognition as assets.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FTES:HEBEHE )
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also
arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise from
the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, provided
that those differences relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is,
those differences are taken into account if they relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwiill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent
that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. =E®FHEHE »

POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Income tax (continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note 3(z), the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using the tax
rates that would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying
value at the reporting date unless the property is depreciable and
is held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
property over time, rather than through sale. In all other cases,
the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction
is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the
Company or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FTES:HEBEHE )
POLICIES (continued)

(r) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities

(i

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for
a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the terms of
a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value
of the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. The fair value of financial
guarantees issued at the time of issuance is determined by
reference to fees charged in an arm’s length transaction
for similar services, when such informance is obtainable,
or is otherwise estimated by reference to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged by
lenders when the guarantee is made available with the
estimated rates that lenders would have charged, had the
guarantee not been available, where reliable estimates of
such information can be made. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee,
the consideration is recognised in accordance with the
Group’s policies applicable to that category of asset,
Where no such consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial
recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are recognised
in accordance with Note 3(r)(iii) if and when (i) it becomes
probable that the holder of the guarantee will call upon
the Group under the guarantee, and (i) the amount of that
claim on the Group is expected to exceed the amount
currently carried in trade and other payables in respect
of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(r) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Contingent liabilities assumed in business
combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
which are present obligations at the date of acquisition
are initially recognised at fair value, provided the fair value
can be reliably measured. After their initial recognition at
fair value, such contingent liabilities are recognised at the
higher of the amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation where appropriate, and the amount that
would be determined in accordance with Note 3(r)(iii).
Contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
that cannot be reliably fair valued or were not present
obligation at the date of acquisition are disclosed in
accordance with Note 3(r)(iii).

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z—=%
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FTES:HEBEHE )
POLICIES (continued)

(s) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided that it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered at the customers’ premises or agreed
point of delivery which is taken to be the point in time when
the customer has accepted the goods and the related risks
and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value added
tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Rental income from investment property

Rental income receivable from investment property is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.

Service income

Service income is recognised upon services in respect of
the sales of air tickets, hotel accommodation and other
travel related products are provided.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZE—ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(t)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss.

3. FESHHERE (&)

() HhemeE

FRETZINERZIEZFAH 2 EA
ERHE - INETIE 2 BB EER
B RS REEE B 2 ERE XK
HoERBEGN RS NER -

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
that are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Items of statement
of financial position, including goodwill arising on consolidation
of foreign operations acquired on or after 1 April 2005, are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. The resulting

RIBESE AT EILAINE BB 2
FEBEERAE DERANKSA
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ZRNEMEEREER LR
[ERRBHET < EmP Rate At

exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign
operation acquired before 1 April 2005 is translated at the foreign
exchange rate that applied at the date of acquisition of the
foreign operation.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FTES:HEBEHE )
POLICIES (continued)

(t)

(u)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation or a partial disposal of an interest in an associate
that includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest
becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal of a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation that does not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests
and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial
disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates that do not result in
the Group losing significant influence), the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit or
loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing
costs are expensed in profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset
is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and
activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
is suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or
sale are interrupted or completed.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZE—ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FTES:HEBEHEE )
POLICIES (continued)

(v) Related parties (v) BEEAL
(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is @ fWEBURNAL ZALHEA
related to the Group if that person: T2 R BN AR E A A
() has control or joint control over the Group; () 2k E AR E
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (iy HAEEBESEATE
B
@iy  is a member of the key management personnel of (iy AAKEHASE YN
the Group or the Group’s parent. RIZEBEBAR
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (o) HFEFE TIEMA R BEEEAD
conditions applies: BN &= (B 75 A H
) The entity and the Group are members of the same () ZEEEAESEHER-—
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and SEZKEQR (AEE
fellow subsidiary is related to the others). NGINL Y-S INGT DS )
B EE L E A )
(i) ~ One entity is an associate or joint venture of the iy —XREEBRS—EE£Z
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a B NS A BB (3

member of a group of which the other entity is a EE
member). SEETKE AR 2

(iiy  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third (i) MREBHARR—F=
party. AzeahEe
(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the vy —REBRFE=TERE
other entity is an associate of the third entity. ZEELE ME—EE
BEZEBE=ZFERBZBE
Ao
(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the V) ZERBAMASEENE
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity REHE ﬁ R 2 B
related to the Group. EENZERLZ BRI
BAEHE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZE—ZT—NF=A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FTES:HEBEHE )
POLICIES (continued)

(v)

(w)

Related parties (continued)
(o)  (continued)

(v The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)() has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified from
the financial information provided regularly to the board of
directors of the Company (the chief operating decision maker)
for the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZE—ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(x)

(v)

()

Shares held by the Company for settlement
of acquisition consideration

The Company issued shares and held them on behalf of the
vendor for the settlement of acquisition consideration payables to
the vendor in future years upon meeting of net profit guarantee
by the vendor in connection with acquisition of its Originate Tech
Global Investments Limited and its subsidiaries. The shares,
valued at HK$0.414 per share, before share consolidation
effective from 2 October 2013, including any directly attributable
incremental costs, are presented as “Shares held by the
Company for settlement of acquisition consideration” and
deducted from total equity. As a result of the failure to meet net
profit guarantee by the vendor as per the acquisition agreement,
these shares are held by the Company awaiting disposal by the
Company. Proceeds recovered from the disposal of these shares
shall be returned to the Company.

Warrants

Warrants issued by the Company that will be settled by other
than a fixed amount of cash for a fixed number of the Company’s
own equity instruments are derivative financial instruments.
Warrants classified as derivative financial instruments are
recognised at their fair values at the date of issue. Changes in
fair values in subsequent periods are recognised through profit or
loss.

Investment properties

Investment property is property held either to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation or for both, but not held for sale
in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
Investment property is measured at cost on initial recognition and
subsequently at fair value with any change therein recognised in
profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZE—ZT—NF=A=+—HILtFE

4. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 4. BT RIS BT %R
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING 28|
STANDARDS
The Group has adopted the following new and revised Standards, REBBERM TR AT HIH &R E
Amendments and Interpretations (“new and revised IFRSs”) that are first ] RAAERT R BRT R 2 B ([575]
effective for the current accounting period. MASIEFT BB B IS s & 2281 ) -
Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs ROBHREERN —TTNFE-T——F
2009-2011 Cycle S-HE) BRI B G ER 2
FEYHIEE
Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of ltems of Other e e Htt2EBAEEM
Comprehensive Income E15% (BT K) kS
Amendments to IFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial BRSEREEN BE-SREEK
Assets and Financial Liabilities E7% (B3IK) cMBEIHE
Amendments to IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, ERMBREEN GEWBERE ARRHER
IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 Joint Arrangements and Disclosure F10% BERHMB  REMEBIERRE:
of Interests in Other Entities: WEERFENHER  BEED
Transition Guidance B R B g 4R 2R
£12%; (BT A)
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements HEMBREEL  GREWBERE
2103
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements BRSEEHREN  HRATH
F1158
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities BB EIREN REMER I ERRE
£128%
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement BIRABEREN  AFEAE
£13%
IAS 19 (as revised in 2011) Employee Benefits ReTEAE105R EEFE
(R=F——F
51B)
IAS 27 (as revised in 2011) Separate Financial Statements R PEAER BUNKHREK
(R=F——F
51B)
IAS 28 (as revised in 2011) Investments in Associates and Joint REEREST REERRREERER
Ventures (RZ2——F K&
K51BE)
IFRIC - Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production BRpBRE2E BREFEERERD
Phase of a Surface Mine ZEEREF0E  HEKK

g
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZE—ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

4. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is
not yet effective for the current accounting period with the exception
of the amendments to IAS 36 /mpairment of Assets — Recoverable
Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets, which modify the
disclosure requirements for impaired non-financial assets. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2014, but as permitted by the amendments, the Group has
adopted the amendments early. The disclosures about the Group’s
impaired non-financial assets have been conformed to the amended
disclosure requirements.

Except as described below, the application of other new and revised
standards and interpretations in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

This cycle of annual improvements contains amendments to five
standards with consequential amendments to other standards and
interpretations. Among them, IAS 1 has been amended to clarify
that an opening statement of financial position is required only when
a retrospective application of an accounting policy, a retrospective
restatement or a reclassification has a material effect on the information
presented in the opening statement of financial position. The
amendments also remove the requirement to present related notes
to the opening statement of financial position when such statement
is presented. The adoption of the amendments does not have any
material impact on these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments require entities to present separately the items of
other comprehensive income that would be reclassified to profit or
loss in the future if certain conditions are met from those that would
never be reclassified to profit or loss. The presentation of other
comprehensive income in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income in these financial statements
has been modified accordingly. In addition, the Group has chosen
to use the new titles “statement of profit or loss” and “statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income” as introduced by the
amendments in these financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 7 Disclosures - Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments introduce new disclosures in respect of offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities. Those new disclosures are
required for all recognised financial instruments that are set off in
accordance with IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and
those that are subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement
or similar agreement that covers similar financial instruments and
transactions, irrespective of whether the financial instruments are set off
in accordance with IAS 32.

The adoption of the amendments does not have an impact on these
financial statements because the Group has not offset financial
instruments, nor has it entered into master netting arrangement or
similar agreement which is subject to the disclosures of IFRS 7 during
the periods presented.

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

IFRS 10 replaces the requirements in IAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements relating to the preparation of
consolidated financial statements and SIC 12 Consolidation — Special
Purpose Entities. It introduces a single control model to determine
whether an investee should be consolidated, by focusing on whether
the entity has power over the investee, exposure or rights to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and the ability to use its
power to affect the amount of those returns.

As a result of the adoption of IFRS 10, the Group has changed its
accounting policy with respect to determining whether it has control
over an investee. The adoption does not change any of the control
conclusions reached by the Group in respect of its involvement with
other entities as at 1 January 2013.

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

IFRS 11, which replaces IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures, divides
joint arrangements into joint operations and joint ventures. Entities
are required to determine the type of an arrangement by considering
the structure, legal form, contractual terms and other facts and
circumstances relevant to their rights and obligations under the
arrangement. Joint arrangements which are classified as joint
operations under IFRS 11 are recognised on a line-by-line basis to the
extent of the joint operator’s interest in the joint operation. All other joint
arrangements are classified as joint ventures under IFRS 11 and are
required to be accounted for using the equity method in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements. Proportionate consolidation is no
longer allowed as an accounting policy choice. The adoption of IFRS
11 does not have any material impact on these consolidated financial
statements.
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4. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

IFRS 12 brings together into a single standard all the disclosure
requirements relevant to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and unconsolidated structured entities. The
disclosures required by IFRS 12 are generally more extensive than
those previously required by the respective standards. The adoption of
IFRS 12 does not have any material impact on the disclosure in these
consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

IFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual IFRSs with a single
source of fair value measurement guidance. IFRS 13 also contains
extensive disclosure requirements about fair value measurements for
both financial instruments and non-financial instruments. To the extent
that the requirements are applicable to the Group, the Group has
provided those disclosures in these consolidated financial statements.

IAS 19 Employee Benefits (as revised in 2011)

IAS 19 (as revised in 2011) introduces a number of amendments to the
accounting for defined benefit plans. Among them, IAS 19 (as revised
in 2011) eliminates the “corridor method” under which the recognition
of actuarial gains and losses relating to defined benefit schemes could
be deferred and recognised in profit or loss over the expected average
remaining service lives of employees. Under the revised standard, all
actuarial gains and losses are required to be recognised immediately in
other comprehensive income. IAS 19 (as revised in 2011) also changed
the basis for determining income from plan assets from expected return
to interest income calculated at the liability discount rate, and requires
immediate recognition of past service cost, whether vested or not. The
adoption of IAS 19 (as revised in 2011) does not have any material
impact on these consolidated financial statements.
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5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies which are
described in Note 3, management has made certain key assumptions
concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, as described below.

@

(b)

(c)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group management determines the estimated useful lives
and related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment of
similar nature and functions. It could change significantly as
a result of technical innovations and competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycles. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives are less than previously
estimated lives, or it will write off or write down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or
sold.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group estimates impairment losses on trade and other
receivables resulting from inability of the customers or debtors
to make the required payments. The Group bases the estimates
on the ageing of the trade and other receivables, customer or
debtor credit-worthiness, and historical write off experience.
If the financial condition of the customers or debtors were to
deteriorate, actual write off would be higher than estimates.

Write down of inventories

Inventories are written down to net realisable value based
on an assessment of the realisability of inventories. Write
down of inventories are recorded where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be realised.
The identification of write downs requires the use of judgements
and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying amount of
inventories and write down of inventories in the periods in which
such estimate has been changed.
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5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

(@

(e)

®

Impairment of goodwill

The Group performs annual tests on whether there has been
impairment of goodwill in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 3(). The recoverable amounts of cash-generating
units are determined based on fair value less costs of disposal
calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates and
assumptions made by management on the future operation of
the business, and other assumptions underlying the fair value less
costs of disposal calculations.

Impairment loss of intangible assets

The Group performs annual tests on whether there has been
impairment of intangible assets with indefinite useful life. In
the event that the carrying values of the intangible assets are
higher than their recoverable amounts (i.e. the greater of its fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use), impairment loss
is recognized. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating
units are determined based on fair value less costs of disposal
calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates and
assumptions made by management on the future operation of
the business, and other assumptions underlying the fair value less
costs of disposal calculations.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes. There are transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that are initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination
is made.
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5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

)]

B E R H ()

A THABERZE 2 EEHRR (8)

Fair values of biological assets (@ “EYEERFE
Management estimates at the end of the reporting period the EREERNREAFREERA2EMER
fair value less costs to sell of biological assets with reference to BEGHBEMBTEMEE 2 AT ERE
market prices and professional valuations. Unanticipated volatile B HEAREmME LR ZEI
changes in market prices of the underlying agricultural produce RENVEBME AR S EREAEMEEL
could significantly affect the fair values of these biological ATEEEASERATE WEBKRKE
assets and result in fair value re-measurement losses in future FFEEHRE A FEENTEEE
accounting periods.
The Group’s forestry business is subject to the usual agricultural AEBMEEBT —REFLRE
hazards from fire, wind and insects. Forces of nature such 2 A B R o RB & E
as temperature and rainfall may also affect harvest efficiency. MESRAEARNDA LT EMEK
Management considers adequate preventive measures are in R-BRERAL HEEHEHER
place and the relevant legislation under forestry laws in Brazil will EHE - BTN A R EMREE G5B
assist in minimising exposure. Nevertheless, to the extent that BmESE AT FEREYK
un-anticipated factors affecting harvestable agricultural produce B2 NA]TEEt A R AT RE S BOR AR & 5T
may result in re-measurement or losses in future accounting SN EE Ao EREER-
periods.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of TRFIAERE AR S KA
the reporting period to a reasonable possible change in cost of RAEBRRIFNE 2 SRR LS E)
revenue, log price and discount rate, with all other variables held AT A H b S B M35 T & NEEBR
constant, of the Group’s loss before tax (due to changes in the MAEECHRE (BEMEEZRA
fair value of biological assets). FEZS) o
Increase/ (Increase)/
(decrease) decrease
in production in loss
cost before tax
EERA RREiAIES 18
®m GRd)  (Em), RS
% HK$’'000
Change in cost of revenue W1 2% FR A 2 B BT
If the production cost increases i) 4 2 A 2N 388 0 5 (17,416)
If the production cost decreases iy 4 72 A AN Rk > ®) 34,148
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5. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

(9

)

5. 2t RHEE )

At THAMERZE 2 EERR (&)

Fair values of biological assets (continued) @ H“£YEELFE(E)
(Increase)/
Increase/ decrease
(decrease) in loss
in log price before tax
RARE® RRELAIES 1B
®m CRd)  (Em), RS
% HK$’'000
Change in log price RARERSE BT
If the log price increases i ER 7R (B 48 385 0 5 30,392
If the log price decreases fis R AR (B 4K ek 4> (5) (17,416)
Increase/ (Increase)/
(decrease) decrease
in discount in loss
rate before tax
=R BRELAIES 1R
#m, ORd) (M) md
Percentage point HK$’000
Change in discount rate THREE ERari BB T
If the discount rate increases fiK 37 $0 2= 32 A0 1 (683)
If the discount rate decreases fis 37 $0 20 (1) 1,024
Revenue recognition (h) W R
The Group assesses its business relationships with customers REFFHEERS 2 HA) XK E
and determines that it is acting as an agent in the majority B UHETEEARZHEAHEE K
of transactions relating to the sales of air-tickets, hotel T OBEFTEREMREABERD
accommodation and other travel related products, and RGPEERE A EZEREIR
accordingly report those revenue on a net basis. FRE AT o
Estimates of fair value of investment properties () 1FEAREYFEILE

The Group’s investment properties were revalued at the end of
the reporting period by an independent professional valuer. Such
valuations were based on certain assumptions which are subject
to uncertainty and might materially differ from the actual results.
In making the judgement, the Group considers information from
current prices in an active market for similar properties and uses
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing
at the end of the reporting period.

..

AERENRENEHBYERMEE
BRI EIRERGE -BRBED
ERETERR ZEFBRITEERA
ERE YRR ERERAEAE
R REHHER  AEEEERA
MERERTISNREER  WEH
TERBRSBEHRRZRTHRM
1EHHIRER °
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SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are organised
by a mixture of both business lines (products and services) and
geography. In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the board of directors (“Board”) (the chief
operating decision maker) of the Company for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the Group has presented the
following reportable segments. In 2014, the Group has introduced two
new segments, as a result of the acquisition of subsidiaries as disclosed
in Note 37. No operating segments have been aggregated to form the
following reportable segments.

Sustainable forest management: sustainable management of and
investment in natural forests; timber and wood processing; trading and
sales of forestry and timber products.

Manufacturing and sale of timber products: manufacturing and sales
of timber products including but not limited to wooden doors, furniture
and wooden flooring (previously named as Zhongshan Operations).

Leasing of properties: lease of premises to generate rental income and
to gain from the appreciation in the property values in the long term.

Travel and travel related business: sales of air-tickets, hotel
accommodation and other travel related products.

In accordance with IFRS 8, segment information disclosed in this
consolidated financial statements has been prepared in a manner
consistent with the information used by the Board of the Company
for the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources among segments. In this regard, the Board of the Company
monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all non-current assets and current assets
attributable to an individual reportable segment with the exception of
certain unallocated corporate assets including unallocated cash and
cash equivalents.

Ny
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6.

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than current,
deferred tax liabilities, promissory notes and unallocated corporate
liabilities.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments with
reference to sales generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise from the
depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

Segment profit/(loss) represents the profit earned by/(loss) from each
segment without allocation of central administration cost such as
director’s salaries and other head office or corporate administration
costs, unallocated corporate income and unallocated interest expense.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning the
profit earned by/(loss) from each segment, the Board is provided
with segment information concerning revenue (including inter-
segment sales), interest income and expense from cash balances
and borrowings managed directly by the segments, depreciation,
amortisation and impairment losses and additions to non-current
segment assets used by the segments in their operations.

.
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DEIRE (B

THEER BERAR
AR BT 2 AT R 5 82 5 AT i

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6.

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities
An analysis of the Group’s reportable segment is reported below:

T

2014
—E-mE
Manufacturing
Sustainable and sale Travel and
forest of timber travel related
management products business Leasing of

THE HER MR i properties Total

ZHER  BEAHER HEER NERE L

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Jifi3 BT BRI BRI BRI BRI

Revenue from external customers RENRERZHA - 63,762 175 9 63,946

Reportable segment revenue DEEGEE - 63,762 175 9 63,946
Reportable segment (loss)/profi DE GRS

before taxation (E8) /&5 (640,285) 19,583 85 (59) (620,676)

Impairment loss of property, nE BERSEZ

plant and equipment REEE 9 (13,038) - - - (13,038)

Impairment loss of goodwil EERERE 21 (302,118) - - - (302,118)
Change in fair value of EMEEATES

biological assets less costs to sl WEERA 20 (292,758) - - - (292,758)

Depreciation il (628) (2,381) 1) (13) (3,023)
Reversal of write down of inventories, & EI77 & 38

net 8 6,551 16,382 - - 22,033
Loss on disposal of property, HENE BE R

plant and equipment REZER 9 (76) - - - (76)

Interest expense FIEFE® (1,914) - - 3) (1,917)

Reportable segment assets THREDPEE 173,521 41,143 4,344 23,854 242,862

Additions to non-current FRBIPEERE
segment assets - - 3,281 23,738 27,019
Reportable segment liabilites THE S HEE (69,975) (25,204) (2,466) (23,523) (121,168)
., oo
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6. TEPEE (®)
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (a) PHEE - BEEREE(H)
(continued)
An analysis of the Group’s reportable segment is reported below: AEBFEFRABEDF 2D
(continued) T (8)
2013
-3 =f
Manufacturing
Sustainable and sale Travel and
forest of timber travel related
management products business Leasing of
i HER iRl I B properties Total
FMER  HEAMER HEES VEE @z
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
his# BETT BETT BT BETT BETT
Revenue from external customers RENREFZHA - 76,550 - - 76,550
Inter-segment revenue AHERA - - - - -
Reportable segment revenue ~ THEI KA = 76,550 = = 76,550
Reportable segment loss REHBRBAEE
before taxation (419,092) (50,825) - - (469,917)
Change in fair value of EMEEATES
biological assets less costs to sell FHERA 20 (482,190) - = = (482,190)
Depreciation il (1,019) (1272) = = (2,289)
Write off of other receivables M E A pE YR B 9 (64) (220) = = (284)
Write down of Inventories HMAFE 9 (13,789) (31,051) - - (44,840)
Loss on disposal of property, HENE BEREEL
plant and equipment BB 9 (736) - - - (736)
Write off of property, MEmE  BERRE
plant and equipment 9 (1,686) - - - (1,686)
Waiver of liabilties by trade creditors ~ E5EEARE EE 8 119,603 = = = 119,603
Interest income FIEMA 10) 5332 - - - 5332
Interest expense FlERE (14,505) - - - (14,508)
Reportable segment assets THEIDEE 836,011 14,906 - - 850917
Additions to non-current FRBIPEERE
segment assets 450 2,239 - - 2,639
Reportable segment liabilities TH%2HEE (319,476) (26,038 - - (345,514)
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment

()

(i)

6. TEIME B

(b) THRED YA EFREE -

revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities: EERBEZHER:
Revenue 0 KA
2014 2013
—ZE-mF —E—=F
HKS$’000 HK$’000
BET T FE T T
Reportable segment revenue Al #R5  FOUA 63,946 76,550
Elimination of inter-segment revenue i AU A - -
Consolidated revenue A WA 63,946 76,550
Loss (i) EE
2014 2013
—E-pmEF —T=%
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT ook
Reportable segment loss before taxation Al 2R 5 SRBR TR A A 18 (620,676) (469,917)
Unallocated corporate income ROMEFERA 20,798 8,969
Depreciation e (4) (17
Unallocated corporate expenses Ao EERT (11,423) (26,790)
Unallocated interest expense RoOEF BRI (134) (2,066)
Loss before taxation Br 5 A ES 18 (611,439) (489,821)
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b)

Reconciliations of reportable segment
revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities:

(continued)

(ii)  Assets

(iv)

6. 7P

- C-)

(b) THED YA EFREE -
BEEREBBZHER: (B

(i) EE
2014 2013
—ZE-F —Zz—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T VST T
Reportable segment assets AR EDIHEE 242,862 850,917
Unallocated: KoL
— Unallocated corporate assets —ROBBHEEE 438 817
— Unallocated cash and cash —RDERE R
equivalents REEEY 7,752 216,290
Total assets per consolidated R BRI 25
statement of financial position BEHRE 251,052 1,068,024
Liabilities (v EBE
2014 2013
—E-NEF —ET—=%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T PEHE T T
Reportable segment liabilities AR E DI AaE 121,168 345,514
Unallocated: KoL
— Provision for taxation —FIE B 2,158 50,255
— Deferred tax liabilities —REHIBEE 55,605 143,296
— Promissory notes — A& g 6,782 6,648
— Unallocated corporate liabilities —ROEEEEE 6,541 5,304
Total liabilities per consolidated e BRARTES
statement of financial position BEERE 192,254 551,017

o2 |
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6. TEIME B
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment (b) AIHED WA RFISEE -
revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities: EERBEZHE: (8)
(continued)
(v)  Other items v) HtEH
2014
—2-mF
Manufacturing
and
Sustainable sale of Travel and
forest timber travel related
management products business Leasing of
THE 2ER  KERMKE  properties  Unallocated Total
AMEE HEANER RB%K NERE FAE @it
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BETR BETRT BRI BETT
Depreciation il (628) (2,381) 1) (13) (4) (3,027)
Interest expense IR (1,914) - - 3) (134) (2,051)
Loss on disposal of property; HENE BERXEZER
plant and equipment (76) - - - - (76)
2013
3%
Manufacturing
and
Sustainable sale of Travel and
forest timber  travel related
management products business Leasing of
W& gk REREE properties Unallocated Total
RNER  HEAMER HE%S NERE AOE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BRI BB BRI BETT BETT
Depreciation ik (1,011) (1272 - - (17) (2,300
Interest expense Em% (14,505) - - - 2,066) (16,571)
Write off of other receivables HsEE B IR (64) (220) - - = (284)
Write off of property, MM BE R&E
plant and equipment (1,686) - - = = (1,686)
Loss on disposal of property, HENR BERSELER
plant and equipment (736) - - - - (736)
(c) Revenue from major products and services: (c) REFEEMRBRE2ZBA:
2014 2013
—EF-mF —F-=F
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
BT T BT T
Manufacturing and sales of timber products SE RHEARME M 63,762 76,550
Travel and travel related business T 35 1% i 467 48 A 35 75 175 =
Leasing of properties YEHE 9 -
63,946 76,550
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6.

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6. DIWME (@)

Geographical information ih & & R

The following is an analysis of geographical location of () the Group’s ATAROIAEERBINARE ZWA : Ki)
revenue from external customers and (i) the Group’s property, plant AEEYE BEMEHE BREEE KE
and equipment, intangible assets, investment properties, biological M EMEEREEZHE ST - K
assets and goodwill. The geographical locations of customers refers BIER PR 2t o W12 - R Ml fls
to the locations at which the customers reside. The geographical WEMEANRENEEZ2 R ABEBEE
locations of property, plant and equipment, investment properties REMVEZ M BEEEREERME
and biological assets is based on the physical locations of the asset EIEH[E 5 IR

under consideration. In the case of intangible assets and goodwill, the
allocation is based on the location of the operation to which they are

allocated.
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
RENREF ZWA ERBEE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE 2= CZB-mNF —ZT-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT BT BETT
South America BAEN - - 170,256 832,360
Asia Pacific (other than Hong Kong) TRE(TBREER) 63,762 76,550 1,622 4,016
Hong Kong (place of domicile) 55 (BELE) 184 = 27,128 188

63,946 76,550 199,006 836,564
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6.

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6. DIEHE @)
Information about major customer EBFEEFZ2EHR
Revenue from customer contributing 10% or more of the total revenue REMAEEBLRAIOBKIAEZREZ
of the Group is as follows: WAL
2014 2013
—E-NEF —T—=
HK$’000 HK$' 000
BETT FE T T
Customer A — revenue from manufacturing and EPA-RERERIEE
sales of timber products AMEmZ WA 22,237 60,567
Customer B - revenue from manufacturing and XEFPB—REHERHE
sales of timber products ANMEGRZ A 16,648 =
Customer C — revenue from manufacturing and EPC—RERERIHE
sales of timber products ANMEGRZ A 8,765 =
REVENUE 7. KA
Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, (after WABEINRREREENNEEREZLE
allowances for returns and trade discounts) and revenue from ERZBREFEUAMBERBEEARME
manufacturing and sales of timber products; lease of premises to moHEMENEEHSIWA : RIHE#
generate rental income; and sales of air-tickets, hotel accommodation EOREFEEMEMRERBES WA -
and other travel related products.
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WADHTIT
2014 2013
—E-NEF —FT—=
HKS$’000 HK$’000
BETT ST T
Manufacturing and sales of timber products 2 R HEARME G 63,762 76,550
Travel and travel related business DR 352 M Jiik 352 AE A 22 755 175 =
Leasing of properties YERE 9 -
63,946 76,550
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZE—ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

8. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER NET LOSS 8.

H WA R Etb &8558

2014 2013
—E-mF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T PR T T
Other income Habug A
Rental income AL A 5 30
Waiver of liabilities by trade creditors (Note j) BEoEEABRREE
(Kiazi) - 119,603
Reversal of write down of inventories, net Bl 7 E MU F 5
(Note 23)(c)(i)) (Kt 5#23(c)i)) 22,933 -
Others Hib 1,523 3,329
24,461 122,962
Other net loss HihEiEFE
Net exchange loss bE 5 8% 58 (21,920) (15,648)
Change in fair value of financial liabilities (Note 30) P EaEAFEEES
(K17#30) 20,278 6,030
Gain on bargain purchase on acquisition (Note 37(a)) B 2 s
(K1:#37(a)) 503 =
(1,139) (9,618)

Notes:

In March 2011, the Group purchased logs and timber from independent
suppliers in Democratic Republic of Congo (“DRC”) and Virginia, USA and
sold them at a total sale prices of approximately HK$396 million to some PRC
customers who were independent to the Group and its directors on an ex-
yard basis. Ex-yard means the seller were required to deliver the goods to
its yard. All other transportation costs and risks are assumed by the buyers.
The customers inspected and accepted the goods sold at the respective
designated yards in DRC and USA. The sales contracts were signed under
Hong Kong laws. According to the terms and conditions of the sales contracts,
the customers were responsible for arranging transportation after inspection
and acceptance of delivery.

In April 2011, China placed a ban on importation of logs from Virginia, USA. No
one could move any logs originated from Virginia to China. The ban was only
lifted, on a test basis, beginning 1 June 2012.

..
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZE—ZT—NF=A=+—HILFE

8. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER NET LOSS

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

@0

The Group understood that Chinese customs places ban on importation
of products and goods from time to time. These bans might be politically
motivated as retaliations to discriminatory policies against Chinese goods by
foreign countries. Bans based on such motivations might be difficult for market
participants to predict the duration. The Group was not aware of any similar
rationale behind the April 2011 ban which stemmed from pests being found in
some shipments from those selected states involved. Pest problems in general
should be easily addressed by proper fumigation. Based on public information,
the US government from those states involved seemed to be working actively
and immediately to resolve the problem with the Chinese customs. In addition,
the views of the Group’s sales in the PRC and market views collected by them
indicated that the concerns could be resolved quickly. As such, the Group
believed that the ban would be short-lived.

Concurrently, the customers began looking for vessels to transport the African
logs and timber from DRC to China since signing of the sales contracts. It
proved to be very difficult to secure vessels as there were limited choice of
shipping lines due to the perceived security risks associated with DRC, the
limiting conditions of the port and the lack of proper port facilities for loading.
The Group tried to assist the customers out of courtesy but was also not
successful.

Timber prices in China began to soften in the second half of 2011 and
continued with a downward trend for the rest of the year. Demand and prices
dropped significantly after Chinese New Year in February 2012 generally due to
poor housing market and negative economic outlook in China.

The sales contracts required payments be made in five instalments by the
customers with the last of the installments paid by 31 August 2011. Up to 20
December 2012, only a total of approximately HK$84 milion was collected
from the customers. No further payments were received from the PRC
customers since July 2011. The Group requested the customers to settle
the outstanding payments due to it numerous times while understanding
the unusual circumstances surrounding the delays in shipment of the goods
sold both from the USA and DRC to China. When considering to allow the
customers to make deposit payments slower than the original plan, the
Company took into consideration amongst other factors that it might physically
block the movement of the logs and timber if payments received were not
adequate to cover the quantity of logs and timber that the buyers ship. The
physical block would be feasible as the Brazilian logs sold were stored inside
the hydropower plant at our log yards; and the African logs and timber sold
were stored at our supplier's warehouse at the port which we helped to
arrange.

Timber prices began decreasing during the last quarter of 2011 and dropped
significantly and suddenly during the first quarter of 2012 due to slow down
in the Chinese housing market and economy. The customers notified the
Group its intention to default on the contracts in May 2012. After repeated
unsuccessful attempts in collecting the outstanding receivables from the PRC
customers, the Group agreed with the African and US suppliers to terminate
its purchase agreements with them on 31 May 2012. The African and US
suppliers took back the logs and timber with no further liabilities due from the
Group. The Group understood that the supplier sold the logs in the domestic
market with some profit after taking back the logs. The Group recognised the
waiver of liabilities HK$119,603,000 as other income during the year ended 31
March 2013.

. o7

HW AR HMEIEFE ()

Hrat: ()

0

ANEE T ARE] P AR T OER K
B TERES ZERSARHNBUAE#
BENIEEPEERZIBRRRE 52 H
ERRHEATAERZEDR T EZES

BER -ARBYTAE _—_F——FNMA
ZELHEBRABEBALIEE EXZEARR
BEMD2ETHREDHERESR - F&
RE—RAAEERRBESHEE SR -
RELFER  BAZEMNBF—EERT
1 30 BB B2 rh BB RA AR R B BA R RE - L5
ENBRASEETRHE 2B R RERK
Bezm5ER  BEREHEBGRREUH
BBt AREREZESKBREEIEE -

HRE TP AKIHESNRARKS
MERRREZFEMRARAMERE M
REHDERRAR R 2AR BOZR
5 1 R R = IEAR 78 O S SRk e - AT G ERGE
ZMEBRRTS BEPHIESHE A%
BN B S E B RS BTN ED ME o

PEAMEBHER-Z ——F N EFERREE
WRFRR TR EZ T8 - FRRE
BRR_T——F_ARBEHFRRBTHK
I B A B4 T R 58 I A B Al s RAE PR

WEANERTFAS AN MxE—H
HBBAR-Z——FN\A=+—HAIXfF-
i ——&F+-A-+H EREFEK
B HH8184,000,0007Tc B = E——F+
ARBEKRIFREEFZER -NEE SR
EREFEBERMNAEEZ KK EERERFE
B2 TEE BRI BNHERARAREEE S
EREPREZER - EERBEFP URRT
ERZEEI TSR REMEERIN A
RRIINE BRI AT EGRBET R A ERER
HBREARRAM 2 8 E - A G 7 PR ER
RARRAM - AR FTE BT RARFRREM
MREAGHZ K NEERA - AKEHER
RAPEEE : 1 AT FEIN IR AR R A1 Bl 77 U
MR Z A ABO 2 EEEAEER

AMEBRR-ZZ——FENFHBNE H
BETRRETREBEREMR T ——F%
—ZE2BE M -N_T——FHA ZE/EFF
MEAEEEBEEREN EZXERAMPEH
BEEKERRIETRE RNEEEIEMNR
ERZHEEONN -_E——FRA=1+—
BER B RIEAEERABEMIIZHEE
% o JEIMN B 3= B A FE g MR B R AR R R4+
EEMNERAEEZ 8E - BASETH #
R ERA%ZERBEATSEERAL
KPR - BE—_T—=F=HA=+—H1t
FEAEEFE R A EB119,603,0007T
HERBEAMBA -



SUSTAINABLE FOREST HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTG R M

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZE—ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

o018 .
8. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER NET LOSS 8. HMWARHMEIEFE @)

(continued)

Notes: (continued) Hiat: (%)

0] The Group was consulting legal advice from its Hong Kong lawyer and (0] AEBEREBABREBRMEEER W&
was preparing to take legal actions against the PRC customers for breach HRENRFBRLAHBEESRIVART
of contract and loss of profit. It was uncertain as to the amount that may e AREBAREEEEARPRTFKEZE
be recovered from the PRC customers and whether the courts of Hong BHOURESERER ARZETEAQRR
Kong will be the convenient forum to handle the claims against these PRC HRE & EFA - Bt AEERARE
companies. As such, the Group considered that the value of the total receivable ZERBRP 2 AR E R R IE RS
outstanding with these PRC customers of HK$299 million was impaired and 299,000,000t RERMERRBE-T——F
the amount was written off during the year ended 31 March 2012. = A=t HIEFERMBEZKIE
In hindsight, the customers might have underestimated the difficulties in ERFR TRAREGAEMEEZAM
sourcing transportation for such volume of timber and logs. Also, the slowdown RIFEAKSE® <R - 1IN TPAAEE
of the housing market and the drop in timber prices in China that began in the BRI RPEETRAMEREN T ——
fourth quarter of 2011 was not anticipated by the customers or the Group. EENETRBER TR - EAZERERSE
These factors together contributed to the default by the customers eventually. FaRER-

At the time of publishing the 31 March 2011 results on 29 June 2011, the RZE——FNAZTNABRHE=Z—%F
intention to default by the customers was not known to the Group and as A=+ BEER FEERBARFE
mentioned previously, there was no objective evidence of impairment. In June/ BEA - man EXXArt - S ERE . BEE
July 2011, while it might have been difficult, the Group did not consider that it B-R-ZT——FE A/ tA #HAEESR
was impossible to secure vessels. The Group’s senior logistic manager went to RE EAEETRASELEEHE AL
DRC in July 2011. After his trip, for the Group’s other purchases, he was able ESRYnSER T ——F A LR
to arrange one vessel that departed in July 2011 and one vessel for departure Rk FERASEEMEE T —
in September 2011. Accordingly, the Company did not consider the business EWER—T——F L AML M3 — i
of the Group at the time would be adversely affected, and no disclosure, ERZT——FNARL Bt - RARER
impairment or announcement was considered necessary. RANEHEBEKSZHTFZE TR
AERERBEREXTIRAS -
9. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 9. Hih&EMX

2014 2013
—E-mF T
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
BT R BT
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWE - BKE R&HE 2 EBE 76 736

Impairment of property, plant and equipment Yz B R & 2 R E
(Note 17(c)) (Hiat17(c)) 13,038 -

Write off of property, plant and equipment WY 2 - BB & - 1,686

Write down of inventories WoR T & - 44,840

Impairment loss of goodwill (Note j) PR EEE (M) 302,118 =

Write off of other receivables S B A e s R OE - 284

315,232 47,546

Notes:

Impairment loss of goodwill was a non-cash item resulting from the annual
impairment test of the cash-generating unit of the segment of sustainable forest
management. Please refer to Note 21 for details.

.
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10. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 10. BRB{ATES 18
The Group’s loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): N5 B B AT ESIE 0840k (RFA) T3
FHEESE:
2014 2013
—E-NF —E—=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HtaE BT T ok e
(a) Net finance costs @QBEERFE
Interest income from ERREZFEHA
consideration receivable - (5,324)
Interest income from bank deposits RITIFERZF B WA (41) ©®)
Total interest income on financial I IER A FEF ABE
assets not at fair value R BEEZ
through profit or loss FBEWA 4258 (41) (5,332)
Finance costs FhE &R
Interest on loans and other ARAFRBEEEER
borrowings wholly repayable REMEER 2 F A
within five years 921 5,083
Interest on promissory notes ENERZAE 33 134 131
Interest on amounts due to FERT IR R ARIR 2 72
shareholders 42(b) 990 10,640
Interest on amounts due to FERTRRE R R FRIB 2 FLE
related companies 42(b) 6 668
Finance charges on obligations BEBNREZMERX
under finance leases - 49
Total interest expenses on WIER A FERTA
financial liabilities not at BaEWKagEs
fair value through profit FMEFRZ R
or loss 2,051 16,571
2,010 11,239
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZE—ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

10. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

10. BRBIAIET 18 (&)

2014 2013
—ZE-0mE —ET—=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B it BT T BEET T
(b) Staff costs (including (Y ERN#:N
directors’ remuneration) (BIEEEHE)
Salaries, wages and other e TEREMET
benefits 8,869 38,198
Contributions to defined contribution TE R FOR IRET B R
retirement plans 964 1,137
Equity-settled share-based LARR R A H 2 R 1D 1T 3K
payment 35 446 (849)
10,279 38,986
(c) Other items (c) HfbE R
Cost of inventories* FE A~ 23 49,453 65,458
Depreciation e 17 3,027 2,300
Minimum lease payments T REF (BRESE
under operating leases FIRERO e xERE
for land and buildings B
(including directors’ quarters) 551 2,485
Auditor’s remuneration Gl
— audit services —BIZRTE 1,255 1,088
— other services —E A AR 75 655 718
1,910 1,806
Gross rental income from investment "EMERS WA
properties less direct outgoings of REREZEI N
approximately HK$6,000 (2013: HK$Nil) #7745 #6,0007T
—E-=F:
BT IT) 3 _
* Cost of inventories includes depreciation of approximately HK$13,000 (2013: * PR AN B 79T EE 498 813,000 (= F—

HK$NI), the amount of which is also included in the respective total amounts
disclosed separately above.

100 |
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to Section 78 of Schedule
11 to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), with
reference to Section 161 of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 32) and the chief executive’s remuneration are as

MM1.EERERSTHAECZHE

BB BB R REH (F622F ) I FR115E
781K (2 ZE BB AN ERERE B D AIE
Bl B2 EERESITTHRABZ
BanT -

follows:
2014
“E-mE
Salaries Retirement
and other scheme Share-
benefits contributions based
Fees HeN BRI payment Total
ne HitEA FEME  ARGAXA @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETR BETR BETR BETR BETR
Executive Directors HTEE
ZHOU Jing & 120 - - 316 436
MUNG Wai Ming EREE 120 - - 316 436
240 - - 632 872
Independent Non-Executive BUFHTES
Directors
Willam Keith JACOBSEN KRH 120 - - - 120
WU Wang Li Rol 120 - - - 120
NG Wai Hung REHE 240 - - - 240
480 - - - 480
720 - - 632 1,352
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 11.EERESTHRABZ#ME

REMUNERATION (continued) (%)
2013
—E-=fF
Salaries Retirement
and other scheme Share-
benefits  contributions based
Fees ek /N payment Total
e 0 SRR DRGORA st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Executive Directors HTES
ZHOU Jing B
(Appointed on 4 January 2013) (R=ZF-=F-AWBEZRT) = 29 = = 29
MUNG Wai Ming EXEL]
(Appointed on 4 January 2013) (RZZE-=5—-ANARZEE) - 29 - - 29
LOH Jiah Yee, Katherine 43H
(Resigned on 15 February 2013) (R=Z-=5-F+HB#H) - 1,469 3 169 1,641
FLETGHER Yurk Nam, Sandy ZES
(Resigned on 1 March 2013) (R=E-=F=F—HE{) - 3,553 8 - 3,561
LEUNG Siu Hung, Joel Rk
(Resigned on 8 February 2013) N=Z—=F_ A/\RET) - 57 = (166) (109)
LI Zhixiong FEE
(Retired on 5 February 2013) (R=E—=F-ARRAEME) - 677 12 - 689
SHIH Chiu, David MR
(Resigned on 30 September 2012) (RZE-ZFNA=THET) - - - - -
- 5814 23 3 5,840
Independent Non-Executive BYFHTES
Directors
John Tewksbury BANIGAN John Tewksbury BANIGAN
(Resigned on 17 January 2013) (RZZ—=F—-A+tHET) 263 = = 110 373
KEUNG Paul Hinsum ZER
(Resigned on 8 February 2013) (RZE-=F_R/\BEE) 128 = = = 128
Donald Smith WORTHLEY Donald Smith WORTHLEY
(Resigned on 17 January 2013) (RZZ—=5—-AT+tHFE) 132 - - - 132
Wiliam Keith JACOBSEN EiEH
(Appointed on 4 January 2013) (R=Z-—=F-ANBEZ(E) 29 - - - 29
WU Wang Li Ro\E
(Appointed on 17 January 2013) (RZT—=F—ATLBEZ() 25 = = = 25
NG Wai Hung RIEH
(Appointed on 8 February 2013) (R=B-=F-AN\BEZH) 34 - - - 34
611 - - 110 721
611 5814 23 113 6,561

On 6 April 2011, Mr. LEUNG Chau Ping, Paul was re-designated
from the position as an executive director of the Company to a non-
executive director and resigned as chief executive. Since then and up
to the date of approval of financial statements, the position of chief
executive has not been appointed. During the current financial year
when no chief executive was appointed, the functions of chief executive
have been performed by the executive directors with the assistance of
the management of the Company.
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

12

REMUNERATION (continued)

Therefore, the executive directors together act as the chief executive
of the Company and are responsible for the Company’s day to day
management and overall activities. The remuneration of executive
directors for 2013 and 2014 are disclosed above.

There was no arrangement under which a director has waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, no emolument was paid by
the Group to the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

The five highest paid individuals during the year included two (2013:
two) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in Note 11
above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining three (2013: three)
non-directors and non-chief executive, highest paid individuals were as
follows:

MM1.EERERSTHAECZHE

(&)

A TESRBETARFTRSITH
AE BEARRIAEEERBEERK #H
TEER_ZE—=FR_ZF—NFZ2HH
B SRR o

BEESHRAAERRTANENR
BEo

BE_Z-NMF=A=+—HILFEAN"
AREBYWEAEENME - AMERKE
AR I A A 55 [ B 2 2 B ol R B 1 o

12. RS H AL

FARARSHEALTERERE (ZF—
FMB)EF AFRARSZIMEFER
EXME BT =R (ZF—=%F:
BIRBHIFEERFTRAERALZH
EA e

[11 2% 1]

2014 2013

—E-mF —T—=F

HK$’000 HK$ 000

BET T ST T

Salaries and other benefits e REAmET 1,566 2,145
Retirement scheme contributions RONET B 30 29
Share-based payment VAR 9 2 1+ - 39
1,596 2,213

The remuneration of the non-director and non-chief executive, highest
paid individuals fell within the following bands:

R FEFEMIFTHEARALZBEN
FIATEE -

Number of individuals

EE®AR
2014 2013
—E-mF —F=%F
HKS$Nil to HK$1,000,000 75 k= T 2 5 #51,000,0007T 3 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 75 1,000,001 7T 2 78 #1,500,0007T - -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 75 #51,500,001 7T 2 /8 #2,000,0007T - -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 75 #52,000,001 7T 2 78 #2,500,0007T - -
3 3

During the years ended 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013,
no emolument was paid by the Group to such individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.
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13.INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a)

Income tax in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss represents:

13. GEBBERZAEH

(a) REBBRZABHRAK:

2014 2013
—E-mF —T=%
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T PR T T
Current tax B 5 Bt 18
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —EBANEH
— Current year —REE - 799
— Qver provision in prior year —BAEFEBEEE (49,456) =
Current tax B 5 Bt 18
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax —HETEFREH
— Current year —REE 1,359 =
Deferred tax IEFE BB
— Origination and reversal of temporary —EANMEODERFERE
differences (73,188) (163,944)
(121,285) (163,145)

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
of the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for the
year ended 31 March 2013. No Hong Kong Profits Tax charge for
the year ended 31 March 2014.

As mentioned in Note 8(i), a subsidiary of the Company
completed the sales transaction in March 2011, and recognized
a profit tax payable amounting to approximately HK$49,456,000
in 2011. In 2012, the subsidiary of the Company incurred
significant loss for the year, including the impairment of the
outstanding trade receivable. The subsidiary of the Company filed
the relevant tax return and tax computation which net off the tax
payable and subsequent impairment loss of trade receivable to
the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department (the “IRD”) during
the year 2014. After the IRD assessment, the IRD agreed the
adjusted tax loss, and not charge for any profit tax as calculated
for the year 2011. As a result, the Group recognized an over-
provision of taxation for previous year in 2014.

Brazil income tax rate is 34% (2013: 34%) of the estimated
assessable profits arising in Brazil. No Brazil income tax has been
provided for in the financial statements as the Brazil's subsidiary
has no assessable profit for both years.
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13.INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(a) Income tax in the consolidated statement of (a)
profit or loss represents: (continued)

PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax at

25% (2013: 25%).

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates

prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

13. REBBRZAER (5)

REBBERZMEBAR:

(#8)

A B BT B8 A RIZBE#AN25% (=& —=
F:25% ) R EFER

RE T A BB A 2 RIARIAR A
ERE 2 BRR R

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) RAERABREHE2HERX
accounting loss at applicable tax rates: HEertEBR YR
2014 2013
—E—-{F —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Loss before taxation PR A B 1B (611,439) (489,821)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, EHEBERERREEZ
calculated at the rates applicable to HEFTE ZBRFAEEZ
loss in the countries concerned HEHIE (212,059) (174,580)
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARBTBRAZHIETE (4,488) (2,579)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A MB AL 2 RIS E 148,240 17,826
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised RERARBAREFBEZ
BB E 1,326 14,272
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses B F@E R ER R IBEE (4,848) (18,084)
Over provision in prior year BEFEBREEE (49,456) =
Tax credit HIBHE % (121,285) (163,145)
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13. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(c) Tax effect relating to each component of

other comprehensive loss

13. REBBERZABH (&)

(c) Hitt2EBRZARMD 2B
£/

|

2014 2013
—E-mE —F-=%
Tax Tax
(expenses)/ (expenses)/
Before benefit Net-of-tax Before benefit Net-of-tax
tax BiE amount tax WIE amount
amount (B%)/ HNBHEL amount (FX)/ HBHEE
BB AR BE BB  REpEE BE g®
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETR BETR BETT BT BETT
Exchange differences on BERINIE AR
translation of financial HBREMEE
statements of overseas ERER
subsidlaries (11,884) - (11,884) (49,534) - (49,534)
(11,884) - (11,884) (49,534) - (49,534)
14. DIVIDENDS 14. R &

The directors of the Company do not propose the payment of any

dividend for the year ended 31 March 2014 (2013: HK$NIil).
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15. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE OWNERS
OF THE COMPANY
The consolidated loss attributable to the owners of the Company
includes a loss of approximately of HK$576,807,000 (2013:
HK$366,459,000) for the year ended 31 March 2014, which has been
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

16. LOSS PER SHARE

(@) The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share is based on
the loss attributable to the owners of the Company as follows

15. A AR ABEER

ERARRUBREREZ AR A #
EABGEGRAGEREEREEE -2 — N
FZA=+-—"HLEFEHSEBEROB
#¥576,807,000c (=& —=F: B
366,459,0007T ) °

16. S REE

(a) EREAREIEBRIBBEATAR
AEE A FE(h B 1R e P E (b) 2 B £

and the recongiliation of the weighted average number of shares A 2 HRHE
as shown in Note (b):
2014 2013
—E-ME —E—=4
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T PR T T
Loss =
Loss for the purpose of basic and RUAGTEEREARKR
diluted loss per share BEEBZEE
— Loss attributable to the owners —RNBHEB AEEES
of the Company (490,133) (826,601)

Diluted loss per share equals to the basic loss per share for the
years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013 because the outstanding
convertible preferred shares, share options, warrants and other
potential ordinary shares in issue had an anti-dilutive effect on the
basic loss per share.

B B AR T I8 2 AT AR B S A - BB AR
T RARAETE A R E A B BB Y
BRz2EBREABBEBARBIYE.
HMEZE—ZT—NEER-FT—=F=A
=+ BUHEFEZBREEEERS

RERERES -
(b) Weighted average number of shares (b) M7 INFEFITE
2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
’000 ‘000
TR T &
(Restated)
(#&E31))
Number of Shares R EE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares R EEREREEZ
for the purpose of basic loss per share LB E 1,709,284 1,452,773
* The weighted average number of ordinary shares held in 2013, for the * BRI EBRERNEE —— =47

purpose of calculating basic loss per share, has been adjusted for the
six-for-one share consolidation during the year 2014.

o The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in 2014 and
2013, for the purpose of calculation basic and diluted loss per share,
has been retrospectively adjusted for the open offer on the basis of one
offer share for every ten existing shares held with an issue of five bonus
share for every share subscribed, which included the bonus element
and took place after the end of the reporting period.

I 107

BEBRMEFHHEER -1
FHETRE—RHAFIELBAE-

** R EGREXREGEHERAMNE R
ZE-MER-F—=FRFEE
RINEFHEERRFEE (BES
BHETRAGREERE—REEK
17) R 5t B 58 — IR AR (0 7 3 fRAT
R (GFAALFIES 7 R E R & R %
B)EWHAE-



SUSTAINABLE FOREST HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZE—ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y% BERRE
The Group RE
Machinery,
engineering
Freehold Furniture  and other
Lands and equipment Motor Construction
XA Property fixtures #3 TER  vehicles in progress Total
EELH nE GRREE HitR4E RE TREIR @t
(Note a)
(Hfita)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Cost BA
At 1 April 2012 RZ_F—=
NA—H 202,944 - 3,048 4,824 3,470 2,024 216,310
Additions NE = - 627 289 348 1,425 2,689
Disposals HE - - (289) (432) (1,260) - (1,981)
Transfer =122 - - 2,642 821 - (3,463) -
Write off ki - - (1,437) (642) - - (2,079)
Exchange movement 2 (19,858) - (46) (322) (283) 14 (20,495)
At 31 March 2013 RZE-=
=A=1+—H 183,086 - 4,545 4,538 2,275 - 194,444
At 1 April 2013 RZZE—=%
MA—A 183,086 - 4,545 4,538 2,275 - 194,444
Disposals & - - () (166) (310) - (481)
Acquisition of subsidiaries A )ENG] = 3,220 100 = = = 3,320
Exchange movement EHE2H (19,358) - 34 (234) (225) - (19,783)
At 31 March 2014 RZZ—mE
=A=1—H 163,728 3,220 4,674 4,138 1,740 - 177,500
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. 1% - BERZE (&)
(continued)
The Group (continued) REE (5E)
Machinery,
engineering
Freehold Furniture  and other
Lands and equipment Motor Construction
XA Property fixtures #3 IEK  vehicles in progress Total
EELH nE BRREE Rt AE ERIR st
(Note g)
(Hiita)

HK$000 ~ HK§000  HKS000  HKEO0D  HK§00D  HKE000  HKS'000
AETT  EETR  E¥TR  ABTr  BETR BT BETx

Accumulated depreciation RAMERAERFE
and impairment losses

At 1 April 2012 RZE——%F

mA—H - - 536 905 1,563 - 3,004
Charge for the year KEERE - - 1,339 452 509 = 2,300
Written back on disposals HERRE - - (45) (172) (325) = (542)
Wite off s - - (117) (76) - - (393)
Exchange movement 2 - - 1 (54) (146) = (199)
At 31 March 2013 N g3

=A=1+—-H - - 1,714 855 1,601 - 4,170
At1 April 2013 n-B-=f

MA—A - - 1,714 865 1,601 - 4,170
Charge for the year AEEHE - 2 2285 373 367 - 3027
Written back on disposals HEREE - - © (64) (236) - (302)
Exchange movement EH 2 - - 10 (53) (159) = (202)
Impairment (Note (c)) RE (M) 11,009 - 172 1,690 167 = 13,038
At 31 March 2014 RZZ—ME

=A=t+—-H 11,009 2 4179 2,801 1,740 - 19,731

Carrying amounts REE

At 31 March 2014 RZE—-NF

=A=1+—-H 162,719 3,218 495 1,337 - - 157,769
At 31 March 2013 R_E-—=F

=A=1+—-H 183,086 - 2,831 3,683 674 - 190,274
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

The

Notes:

(@)

Group (continued)

The freehold lands are held in Amazon Brazil where the 44,500-hectare natural
forest is located. As mentioned in Note 41, UTRB had litigations with third
parties, and they filed a precautionary injunction to prevent UTRB of selling its
freehold lands without properly paying possible claim to them.

17. ¥ -BERRZRE @)

REME (F)

Bfat:

(@)

KA ZERE L b AL 7 B 78 28 5 44,500 A HE
RRFRPRFTAE 2D - 380 AN BT 5E41 B it - UTRBER
B=HEHA MEHERBEHEEILES
LABSUTRBZE M EEE X AT a2 RIERTH S
EOKAFERE Lo

At 31 March 2014, the Group’s property in Hong Kong with the carrying (b) R-E—NE=ZA=+—H8 AEBUREF
amount of approximately HK$3,218,000 were pledged to secure the bank 7 2 BREE 478 %3,218,000 T £ EE B A
loans granted to the Group (Note 27). SEEBERRITER TR (HIzE27) ©
At 31 March 2014, the harvesting operation in Acre, Brazil remained (@] REZZ—NFE=A=+—H BfigmxE/
suspended. As the business environment continued to be difficult for the Group NRKEBEBE = - ARAEBEE A
in Brazil, the board of directors changed its operation model in Acre from BEHHRBKCLERE EFENEFETRE
own harvesting to leasing out part of the forest in Brazil so as to enhance the MeEeEiEX - B BT A HEEES
income stream of the Group. As the directors changed its operation model, DN EMBRAREE ZWARE - ARE
the board of directors impaired the freehold lands and plant and equipment in ERFHLEEN EEERNEE_T T
Brazil's subsidiary for a total carrying amount of HK$13,038,000 for the year FZA=T—HULFEZEEIBRF 2K
ended 31 March 2014. The estimates of recoverable amount were based on A FERE T R R R S AR 2 BRI AR (BRI (E
the freehold lands fair values less costs of disposal, using market comparison 58 /575%13,038,0007T ° AT UK [El & 58 515 A
approach by reference to recent sales price of similar assets within the 5 L BURR IR K A 48 L3 2 A FER
same industry. The fair value on which the recoverable amount based on is EXRANEF BERERITERNEUEEZ&
categorised as a Level 2 fair value measurement. MEBE-ERFAKEEREZ A TERE
BE_BATENE-
The analysis of carrying amounts of property is as follows: (d) MEZEEES AT
2014 2013
—E-lF =%
HK$°000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
In Hong Kong: B
- medium-term leases — FHEIFR A 3,218 -
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. W% BERSE (&)
(continued)
The Company ¥/
Furniture
and other
equipment Total
B R
Hit Fo
HK$’000 HK$'000
PSR IT BT T
Cost 2%
At 1 April 2012, 31 March 2013, R-_ZE——4#mA—H"
1 April 2013 and 31 March 2014 —E-——4#-A=+—8-
—T—=FMWA—-BHK
—E—mMFE=A=+—H 376 376
Accumulated depreciation AN E
At 1 April 2012 R-—E—=—FmA—H 354 354
Charge for the year REFHE 18 18
At 31 March 2013 and 1 April 2013 R-E——F#-A-+—AK
—E—=FMA—H 372 372
Charge for the year REZHFE 2 2
At 31 March 2014 R-_ZE—WF=A=+—H 374 374
Carrying amounts IREE
At 31 March 2014 RZE-—MFE=A=+—H 2 2
At 31 March 2013 R-ZE—=F=A=+—81 4 4

AN
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. B EE
The Group AEME
Sales
Patent contracts Trademark Total
HAE HEEY 5L et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT AT AT ABET
Cost %N
At 1 April 2012, 31 March 2013, R—ZE——&FpmA—Q-
1 April 2013 and 31 March 2014 —E—=%=A=+—H"
—T-=ZFMA—HK
—E-ME=A=+—8H 4,419 17,251 25,924 47,594
Accumulated amortisation and AT BERBESSE
impairment losses
At 1 April 2012, 31 March 2013, RZE——FMA—H8-
1 April 2013 and 31 March 2014 —T—=fF=fH=+—8H-
—T—=ZFWA—HK
—E-OFE=A=1+—H 4,419 17,251 25,924 47,594

Carrying amount
At 31 March 2014

At 31 March 2013

SREE
R-B-—mE=A=+—H - - -

RZE—=F=A=+—H = = =

The Group acquired the patent for the “curved floor panels”,
outstanding sales contracts and the registered trademark “FHT4%M”
through the acquisition of Originate Tech Global Investments Limited
and its subsidiaries on 2 August 2011. These intangible assets were
valued by an independent valuer as at the date of acquisition at HK$48
million.

In previous years, the results of manufacturing and sale of timber
products incurred loss. The net loss was primarily attributable to the
rapid slow down of the property market and falling property prices
in the PRC. As a result of the uncertainties in the PRC economy and
continued depressed timber demand and prices, the Group impaired
the value of the intangible assets related to manufacturing and sale of
timber products.
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
As there is no change for the recoverable amount of the intangible
assets, no reversal of impairment is provided for the years ended 31
March 2014 and 2013.

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s property interests held to earn rentals are measured using
the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as investment

18. B EE (&)

WEREE_E—NFEFER_FT—=F=1
= +—HIEFEFRBERE-

19. REY ¥
REBRBAMEESARRES AHE
HEATEMBNHE LHERAELR

properties. B o

The Group b=
2014 2013
—E-ME —ET—=%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT IT

At fair value BAFE

At 1 April 2013 RN-ZZE—=%FmMA—H - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 37 (b)) W g B A | (FI5ES37(b)) 23,699 =
At 31 March 2014 R-ZZE—WF=A=+—H 23,699 =
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZ—ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 19. REWZE (&)
All of the Group’s investment properties are situated in Hong Kong and REBABHRENEHMRES EHFHH
are held under medium-term leases. HERFE-
The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating ZEREMERCEHEEETE=7
leases, further details of which are included in Note 39(b) to the HE— A BEN GRS M BS R M TE39(0) °

consolidated financial statements.

All of the Group’s investment properties were pledged to secure bank AEBRMBREMELDEER EAEXE
loans granted to the Group (Note 27). BEERERZER (ME27) -
a)  Fair value measurement of investment properties a) REYFELFEE
i) Fair value hierarchy i) NEEER
The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s TRINTAEBIEENEZ R
investment properties measured at the end of the A - BRE T EERRE
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into KtB DA=ERAFEREBR
the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13 (EE R BB BRELERE
Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair value 1BRAFEHNE) - BEEATFE
measurement is classified is determined with reference to FTENBEERR N2RME
the observability and significance of the inputs used in the MR ASEES B
valuation technique as follows: BRESENE:
0 Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only 0 F—RHEEFRE—
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in Fm AEE (BIRET=R
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the FEEEHBERER
measurement date M52 REFHERE) 5t
/N |
. Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 . FoRME:FRER
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level A BUE (BIRALESE
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs. — Rz A ERE A\EIR)
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market B ARFERAERNTAE
data are not available R ABURFTE 2 AT
B TAIBRHAZREA
18T 3% BUR 2 W A\ BUR
0 Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using . F=HHE:FREAT
significant unobservable inputs AEREG AHEBAEZ
AFE
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

a)  Fair value measurement of investment properties (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

19. BEWE (&)

a) REYELAFETE (E)

NFEER(E)

Fair value measurements as at
31 March 2014 categorised into
RIE-ME=ZA=1+-APEARUTERZ

ATLETE
Fair value at
31 March
2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R-E-ME
=A=t+-RA2
ATE | E-F E=E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BRI BRI
Group r&E
Recurring fair value REEDNTEFE
measurement
Investment properties in Hong Kong  &/&H & 1% 23,699 23,699 =

During the year ended 31 March 2014, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or
out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of the fair value hierarchy as at the end of
the reporting period in which they occur.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair value
measurements

All of the Group’s investment properties were revalued as
at 31 March 2014 on market comparison approach by
reference to recent sales price of comparable properties on
a price per square foot basis using market data which is
public available. The investment properties were revalued
by Peak Vision Appraisals Limited, an independent
professional valuer, who has a recognised and relevant
professional qualification and recent experience in the
location and category of properties being revalued.
The directors of the Company have discussion with the
surveyors on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results when the valuation is performed at annual reporting
date.
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20. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

20. £ YEE

The Group RE
2014 2013
—E-pmF —F=%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T PR T T
At beginning of the year REH] 344,172 913,049
Changes in fair value less costs to sell N EEE R E KA (292,758) (482,190)
Exchange movement ) (33,876) (86,687)
At end of the year RELK 17,538 344,172

The Group’s forest assets, acquired through the business combination
of Amplewell Holdings Limited (“Amplewell”) and its subsidiaries
(“Amplewell Group”), are located in the Northwest of Brazil, the State
of Acre, Amazon Region (the “Brazil Forest”). At 31 March 2014 and
2013, the biological assets represent natural tropical forests. The total
area of the Brazil Forest is approximately 44,500 hectares. Under
the environmental laws in Brazil, 20% (2013: 20%) or 8,939 hectares
(2013: 8,939 hectares) of the Brazil Forest area is the permanent
preservation area and therefore is restricted from logging. At least
80% of the remaining area is designated as the sustainable forest
management area and the balance is the permissible clear cut area
that has no restriction on felling under the environmental laws of Brazil.
In the sustainable forest management area, minimum impact logging
techniques are used and forests are managed in a sustainable manner
which means that the harvesting rate is below the overall natural growth
of the forest. The main objective in sustainable forest management
program is to ensure the substance of the forests be preserved. The
maximum logging rate allowed under relevant regulations governing
sustainable forest management is 30 cubic meters per hectare, an
average, over a 25 to 30 year harvesting cycle.

On 27 March 2012, the board decided to suspend harvesting
operations in Acre for 1 year until the operating environment for
Universal Timber Resources do Brasil Ltda. (“UTRB”), a subsidiary
within the Group, is improved. UTRB and its staff had been harassed
by the alleged agent (‘Alleged Agent”) of a main contractor (“Main
Contractor”) in the tree feling service project in Rondonia. Not only
was the tree felling service project adversely affected by the Alleged
Agent, he also created a difficult and hostile environment for UTRB
and its staff in Brazil. Since the harassments began in February 2011,
the Alleged Agent harassed UTRB’s staff and their family with death
threats in numerous instances. The Group’s employees especially
in Brazil were scared and UTRB had experienced high turnover of
personnel. As such, it was decided to suspend harvesting operations
in Acre to address the concerns of its staff. For the year ended 31
March 2014, the Group recorded a revaluation loss on biological
assets of approximately HK$292.8 milion (2013: HK$482.1 million).
The decrease was primarily attributable to the decrease in log prices
of which decreased with a range of 17% to 32% during the year,
depreciation of Brazilian Real against Hong Kong dollars and due to the
change in operation model, the directors of the Company considered
the Group cannot obtain the FSC certification.
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20. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the fair value of the biological
assets decreased from HK$913,049,000 to HK$344,172,000. The
decrease was primarily attributable to the decrease in log prices,
which decrease 37% during the year and depreciation of Brazilian Real
against Hong Kong dollars.

The forest engineer adopted the following methodology in determining
the harvestable area of the Brazil forests in the technical report used for
the 2013 and 2014 valuation. This methodology or standard (Modeflora
— Digital Model of Forest Exploration) was developed locally in Brazil
by Embrapa (Brazilian Enterprise for Agricultural Research). Adoption
is not mandatory by the state but recommended to the forest engineer
professionals.

During the valuation process, Greater China Appraisal Limited (“GCA”)
referenced to a technical report on estimation of quality and quantity
of commercial and potentially commercial wood species and residues
resulting from the forest exploitation issued by CAAP FORESTAL
(“CAAP”). CAAP performs only once diagnostic sampling for the whole
farm area under current State regulation. 100% census of the inventory
will be performed inside each unit of production area in order to obtain
new operating license for each unit of production area. In general, it is
common practice by forest engineers to assume there is no change in
the forest inventory as the tropical natural forestry asset is very stable
within five to ten years, so there is not necessary to perform detailed
sampling every year. Rain forest is a long lasting asset if without human
intervention (Amazon forest is estimated to have existed for some 10
million years). Temporary hostile climate, e.g. strong wind, heavy rain
and flooding do not change the natural habitat of the forest. Disease
and fire might affect the forestry assets, but to the best knowledge
of the Company, no known fire and abnormal wood disease were
reported during the periods covered under the valuation. Temperature
might affect the quality/volume of the forestry asset, but in a long term
prospective (which usually over decades) instead of affecting within a
short period of time.

Notwithstanding the above, CAAP obtains satellite image of the farms
in August every year with spatial resolution of 15 m (49 ft). This is to
recognize if there is any abnormal situation (e.g. sudden large scale
clearing/disappearing of trees) in the farms. It indicated that any object
or abnormality with 15 m in size will be shown on the satellite image.
CAAP also monitors the daily updates on burns and fires in Brazil forest
area: http://www.inpe.br/queimadas/.
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20. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)

The Brazil Forest was independently valued by GCA, an independent
qualified professional valuer not connected with the Group. GCA has
experience in valuing similar forestry assets. The key consultant involved
in this valuation being a Certified Valuation Analyst of the International
Association of Consultants, Valuators and Analysts, and has no present
or prospective interest in the Group’s biological assets and no personal
interest or bias with respect to the Group. In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, GCA is independent and competent to determine the
fair value of the Group’s biological assets. As the value of the biological
asset is determined by the ability to generate a stream of benefits
in future, GCA has adopted a discounted cash flow methodology in
valuing the Brazil Forest. The following are the major assumptions used
in the valuation:

° a logging volume of 21.5 m® (2013: 21.5 m?®) per hectare in the
sustainable forest management program area.

° a post tax discount rate of 17.4% (2013: 16.5%) based on the
data and factors relevant to the economy of Brazil, the industry of
forest business and the harvestable resources in the Brazil Forest,
and the weighted average cost of capital.

° harvesting activities for the first 30-year cycle will resume from the
calendar year of 2015 and complete in 7 years (2013: 7 years).
Revenue or costs from subsequent harvesting cycle are not taken
into account.

o average logs price growth at a rate of 3% per annum (2013:
3% per annum) in the next 7 years (2013: 7 years) which is the
expected long term growth rate was estimated by reference to
the Consumer Price Index in USA.

° the cost of revenue mainly includes forest planning and
management, staffing costs, felling and skidding costs, loading
and transportation costs, tallying and pointing costs, harvesting
overhead costs, issue of forest origin document costs, annual
operating license fees and cost of harvesting residues. The cost
of revenue is assumed to increase in-line with the long term
growth rate of 3%, which is based on the long term inflation rate.
The market price is based on the market quotations of log sale
prices provided by the management.
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20. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)

Forest Stewardship Council (the “FSC”) certification
demonstrates fulfillment of social and ecological criteria, while
increasing the prices achievable for timber products. As the
directors changed the operation model, the Group will not obtain
the FSC certification in 2015, and the Group cannot enjoy a price
premium of 15%. Therefore, the fair value of the biological assets
decreased.

For the year ended 31 March 2013, based on current market
practices, the directors estimated that the Group could enjoy a
price premium of 15% over non FSC timber products from 2015
when the Group obtaining the FSC certification.

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the harvesting operation in
Acre, Brazil remained suspended. As the business environment
continued to be difficult for the Group in Brazil, the board
of directors changed the operation model in Acre from own
harvesting to leasing out the forest in Brazil so as to enhance the
income stream of the Group.

Fair value hierarchy
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of
the Group’s biological assets:

prices in

markets
(Level 1)

EEH S HRE
(-4

20. i%ﬁé(ﬁ

HFMNEREZES ([FSCl)REBET
REEFELE REEZE FRA]
b **ﬁ?uudwmﬁf‘%%EE& g
EERN AEEBTER T —
FE{SFSCRE ﬁﬁﬁﬁ;?ﬁw%z
EXnB Al £EMEEZAFE
BETRA ©

BE_ZT—=F=ZA=Z+—HLHF
B RERMSEA EFHFAE
BN =T —AFHRISFSCRE
EmERARIEFSCAMEm D
15%

RBE_Z-—NF=A=+—HIF
B BRGrEMN2RAREBDHAY
1% - AN AE BN E AN XK ERK
RBER EFERTRBMZLER
AHEARARRHERNEERE
PO FRM - FEARE AN B R AR
IR o

DFEER
TRIUPAEMENEEZ D FENES
g

Fair value measurement using

EATSBEZATLENE
Significant Significant
observable unobservable
inputs inputs
(Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EATERE EBEATTEER
BAYE BARE
(£=#&) (B=#) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BETT BETT

As at 31 March 2014 “EZ-mE=A=+—H
Recurring fair value measurement for: LEEATEE:
Biological asset EmERE

= 17,638 17,538

During the year ended 31 March 2014, there were no transfers
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3.
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfer between levels of fair value
hierarchy at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.
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20. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued) 20. EYEE (&)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorized within Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy:

REEER (B
DERANTEERE=R 2 ATHEFES
BE :

Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-MF —F—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Net carrying amount at 1 April REA—BZEREFE 344,172 913,049
Exchange movement bE o (33,876) (86,687)
Changes in fair value less costs to sell DNFE R S A 2 B E) (292,758) (482,190)
Net carrying amount at 31 March R=A=+—82
R FE 17,538 344,172

Exchange movement of biological assets is recognized in other
comprehensive income in “exchange fluctuation reserve”.

Under the discounted cash flow method, fair value is estimated using
assumptions regarding the benefits and liabilities of ownership over
the asset’s life. This method involves the projection of a series of cash
flows on an asset interest. A market-derived discount rate is applied to
the projected cash flow in order to establish the present value of the
income stream associated with the asset.

The directors of the Company have discussion with the valuer on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is
performed at annual report date.

The Group is exposed to a number of risks related to its natural forest.

(i) Regulatory and environmental risks

The Group is subject to laws and regulations in Brazil in which
it operates. The Group has established environmental policies
and procedures aimed at compliance with local environmental
and other laws. Management performs regular reviews to identify
environmental risks and to ensure that the systems in place are
adequate to manage those risks. The Directors are not aware of
any environmental liabilities as at 31 March 2014.

(ii) Supply and demand risk

The Group is exposed to risks arising from fluctuations in the
price and sales volume of logs. When possible the Group
manages this risk by controlling its harvest volume, according to
market conditions. Management performs regular industry trend
analysis to ensure the Group’s pricing policy is comparable to the
market and the projected harvesting volumes are consistent with
the expected demand.
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21. GOODWILL 21. HE
The Group KEHE
Sustainable Manufacturing
forest and sale of
management  timber products Total
(Note i) (Note i)
ARHER HER
BEER HEAMER @t
(Hizi) (Hiatii)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT
Cost B
At1 April 2012, 31 March 2013and ~ R-T——F#MF—-H —F-=%F
1 April 2013 =A=+-AR=-Z—=4WA—A 1,686,883 77,353 1,764,236
Arising from acquisition of subsidiaries  WEEMI B D RIFTE L - = =
At 31 March 2014 R-ZE-—MF=A=1+—H 1,686,883 77,353 1,764,236
Accumulated impairment losses RitHEFE
At 1 April 2012, 31 March 2013 and RZZ——fMA-RB Z2—=F
1 April 2013 =A=t—HBR-Z-—=FNA—H 1,384,765 77,353 1,462,118
Impairment losses recognised during ~ NERE R REEE
the year 302,118 - 302,118
At 31 March 2014 RZZ-MF=R=+—-H 1,686,883 77,353 1,764,236
Carrying amounts HREE
At 31 March 2014 RZZE-—NE=RA=+—H = = =
At 31 March 2013 R-ZE—=F=fA=1+—H 302,118 = 302,118
Notes: He# -
(i) Sustainable forest management (i) AHERMEEREL

Goodwill was allocated to the Group’s cash-generating unit identified according
to the operating segment. Goodwill as at 31 March 2014 and 2013 was
attributable to the cash-generating unit that comprises the sustainable forest

management segment.

The forest engineer adopted the following methodology in determining the
harvestable area of the Brazil forests in the technical report used for the 2013
and 2014 valuation. This methodology or standard (Modeflora — Digital Model
of Forest Exploration) was developed locally in Brazil by Embrapa (Brazilian
Enterprise for Agricultural Research). Adoption is not mandatory by the state
but recommended to the forest engineer professionals.

For the year ended 31 March 2014, goodwill relating to sustainable forest
management segment suffered an impairment loss of approximately
HK$302,118,000 (2013: HK$NIl) primarily as a result of the change in operation

model for the year.
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21. GOODWILL (continued)

Notes: (continuea)

(@M

Sustainable forest management (continued)

As the cash generating unit has been reduced to its recoverable amount of
approximately HK$169,076,000, any adverse change in the assumptions used
in the calculation of recoverable amount would result in further impairment
losses. The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. As the board of directors changed its
operation model, the estimated future cash flows decreased. The fair value less
costs of disposal is greater than the value in use in 2014.

For 2014

On 27 March 2012, the board of directors of the Company decided to
suspend harvesting operations in Acre, Brazil until the operating environment
for its Brazilian subsidiary improves. Up to the date of approval of financial
statements, the harvesting operation in Acre, Brazil remained suspended. As
the business environment continued to be difficult for the Group in Brazil, the
board of directors changed the operation model in Acre from own harvesting
to leasing out of the forest in Brazil so as to enhance the income stream of the
Group.

On 29 May 2014, the Company has entered into a memorandum of
understanding (“MOU”) with an independent third party that 2,000 hectares
of the forest was leased to the third party for logging with a consideration
of BRL350 per hectare. However, the MOU was lapsed before the date of
approval of financial statements. The Group will be actively negotiating terms
and conditions with potential lessees for the forest in Brazil.

Up to the date of approval of financial statements, the change in operation
model has not been crystallized and no lease relating to the Group’s forest
in Brazil has been entered into by the Group. The directors of the Company
considered the economic value of the future income stream from leasing out
the Group’s forest cannot be reasonably assessed at the date of approval of
financial statements. The Group has to preclude the economic value of the
future income stream from leasing out of the Group’s forest from measurement
of the fair value of the CGU for prudence.

The Group engaged an independent professional valuer to perform the
valuation for the fair value of the CGU. The original business plan regarding the
operation was assumed to be changed. As the MOU lapsed before the date of
the approval of the financial statement, the valuer cannot validate the feasibility
of leasing business. There is no reliable projection for the business and income
approach of the valuation methodology of the business value cannot be used.

In assessing the valuation of the CGU, the valuer adopted the asset approach,
which is breaking the CGU into pieces, i.e. the freehold land (included the
naked land, pastures and betterments) and the biological assets, so the
business value is the sum of them. The valuer adopted the market approach for
the freehold land and adopted the income approach based on the projection
developed based on the market participant’s point of view for the biological
assets.

The fair value less cost of disposal of the CGU valuation is approximately
HK$169,076,000 included the fair value of the biological assets and the
fair value of freehold land. During the year, an impairment loss of goodwill,
approximately HK$302,118,000 has been recognized in the profit or loss. The
fair value on which the recoverable amount based on is categorised as a Level
3 fair value measurement.
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21. GOODWILL (continued)

Notes: (continuea)

@M

(i)

Sustainable forest management (continued)
For 2013

As the recoverable amount of the sustainable forest management segment is
higher than the carrying amount, no impairment for goodwill for the year 2013.

The recoverable amount of the sustainable forest management segment cash-
generating unit was based on value in use and was determined with the
assistance of an independent professional valuer.

Value in use was determined by discounting the future cash flows generated
from the continuing use of the unit. The calculation of the value in use was
based on the following key assumptions:

- Cash flows were projected based on past experience and financial
budget approved by management. The financial budget is for 7 years.
The management considers that the harvesting activities have 30-
year cycle so long period of budget can be justified. Management
estimated that the cash flows after 7 years are immaterial to the overall
recoverable amount of the unit because the management planned to
complete the harvesting and selling activities for the first 30- year cycle
of the Brazil Forest within 8 years. Therefore, cash flows after 7 years
are not included in the value in use calculations. Management estimated
that there would be a negative growth of 71% in year 7 as a result of
the completion of harvesting and selling activities for the first 30-year
cycle of the Brazil forest.

- Revenue was projected based on management’s past experience and
their expectations for market development and the harvesting plan.

- Timber product average price growth at 3% per annum. The expected
long term growth rate was estimated by reference to the Consumer
Price Index in USA.

- A pre-tax discount rate of 25.75% based on the data and factors
relevant to the economy of Brazil, the forest industry, the timber
products in the Brazil Forest, and the weighted average cost of capital.

- The Group would obtain FSC certification in 2015. FSC certification
demonstrates fulfillment of social and ecological criteria, while increasing
the prices achievable for timber products. Based on current market
practices, the directors estimated that the Group could enjoy a price
premium of 15% over non FSC timer products from 2015 when the
Group obtaining the FSC certification.

Manufacturing and sale of timber products

The goodwill of approximately HK$77,353,000 arising from the acquisition of
Originate Tech Global Investments Limited and its subsidiaries represented the
future economic benefits from the synergy effect of the business combination.

The entire value of manufacturing and sale of timber products segment was
considered impaired as of 31 March 2012, and an impairment loss on goodwill
of approximately HK$77 million was recorded.
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22. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

22, B A RERE

The Company

AAH
2014 2013
—E-mF —F=%F
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
BT T VST T
Unlisted shares, at cost FE LR - FRA AR = =
Amounts due from subsidiaries U BT B A R IE 2,586,863 2,319,484
2,586,863 2,319,484
Less: Impairment losses B OREE R (2,566,967) (1,978,771)
19,896 340,713

Total investment cost are HK$18 (2013: HK$9).

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest- (@)
free and had no fixed repayment terms. In the opinion of the
Company’s directors, these advances are considered as

quasi-equity loans to the subsidiaries.

The movement in the allowance for impairment losses during the (b)

year was as follows:

BREK L ER 18T (ZF—=%F )BH9

7)) ©

FEULFT B A IR IA A A - 2B R
BEEEERY - ARREERR %
FRFRE BRMNE R BRH 2 R
BER -

FRRERERE 2 ZBHEINWT

2014 2013

—E-mF —F=%

HK$’000 HK$’'000

BT T BT

Balance brought forward A A A 1,978,771 1,618,236
Impairment loss recognised BRI EEE 588,196 360,535
Balance carried forward P ey S 2,566,967 1,978,771

For the year ended 31 March 2014, as a result of change
in operation model and decline in market prices of timber,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that an
impairment losses of approximately HK$588,196,000 (2013:

HK$360,535,000) was made.

124 |

HE-_Z-—MNWE=A=+—HI#E
B AREEEEA KAV MET
B ARREZEERA BEHOBE
588,196,0007C ( Z T — =4 : H 1
360,535,0007T ) Z R B ET1E °



KRMEZRERAR —T—= /"T—NFFH

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTG ER M

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZE—Z—NF=A=+—HILtFE

22. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

22. fiB A R HEE (&)

()  Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: © HWBARFBWOT:
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of Percentage of
registration and issued and equity attributable
business paid up capital to the Company
Name R/ EMR BRTR AR Principal activities
8 X BERAFE REBDL TEXK
directly indirectly
HE i
Amano Holdings Limited Cyprus 1,000 ordinary shares of - 100%  Inactive
(Note () EREH Euro1 each EEL¥
(HEE()) 1,000% & ik
BREEIET
Amplewell Holdings Limited  British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of = 100%  Investment holding
TREREBRAR EBERUHE US$1 each REER
1R B
BREMEIET
Anex International Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% - Human resources
Management Limited a8 1R i management
ZETERERFRAR ANBRER
Great Path Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of 100% - Investment holding
REARAT US$1 each BEER
HERAHS REEREREEIET
New On Creation Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares = 100%  Investment holding
HZEIRBRAR BB 10,000 & i A% REEKR
Qriginate Tech Global British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of = 100%  Investment holding
Investments Limited KERIHS US$1 each REER
EIRBRIIREBR AR 1RE B
BREEIET
SFH Trading Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share = 100%  Timber and wood
KREHAERAR B 1 E AR products trading
AMEABEREE
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22. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(©

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

22. BN RIHEE (&)

€ MEARFBOT: (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of Percentage of
registration and issued and equity attributable
business paid up capital to the Company
Name R/ MR BETR AN AL Principal activities
£1 EEMHY BERAFE READL TEER
directly indirectly
HiE i
Susfor-Oasis Timber China Paid up registered capital of = 100%  Manufacturing and sales
(Zhongshan) Co. Ltd.* H RMB5,091,000 of timber products
RIUTRRIENAEER BARTEMER AMEREERHAE
NN AR#5,091,0007C
Universal Timber Resources  Brazil R$12,646,996 = 100%  Sustainable management
do Brasil Ltda. i} 12,646,996 % 12 of and investment in
(‘UTRB”) natural forests, timber
(TUTRB ) and wood processing,
timber trading and
timber sales, marketing
and tree felling services
RARNAFEEE RI%
B AMRAEMI
AMEE  AMHER
5 R R R BRS
Applause Global Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of 100% - Investment holding
HERTHE US$1 each REZER
1R E AR
BREBEIET
Good Magic Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of = 100%  Investment holding
EERURE US$1 each REER
1R B
BREMEIET
View Concord Holdings Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% - Investment holding
Limited N 1R BER REER

RREEERAF
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22. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

22. fiB A R HEE (&)

€ HEARFBWOT: (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of Percentage of
registration and issued and equity attributable
business paid up capital to the Company
Name R/ EM K% BRITR AN AL Principal activities
% 3 BERAFE REBDLL TEER
directly indirectly
HE L
Elite Sign Investments Hong Kong 1 ordinary share = 100%  Investment holding
Limited N 1R ik REER
ERREBRAA
Champ Country Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares - 100%  Leasing of properties
BXAERAR BB 10,000 & i A% MERE
Bluestone Investment Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares = 100%  Leasing of properties
Limited B 10,0008% & i@ ik MERE
ERRAERRAR
Travel Inn Limited Hong Kong 500,000 ordinary shares = 95%  Travel and travel related
IREEBR AR B 500,000% & i ik business

*

Note:

(i) The subsidiary is applying for deregistration.
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23. INVENTORIES 23. 78
2014 2013
—E—-MEF —E—=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
Bt BETT BT IT
Sawn timber SEM @ 1,308 3,320
Finished goods 2UPK i b) 2,433 1,017
3,741 4,337
Notes: Hiat -
@ The sawn timber was purchased for trading purpose. (@) EMTHEBEREMEA
(0) These inventories were held for further processing or sale. (0) ZETFERAEE— P MIHERS -
(© The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense is as () ERRARAIZ2FESEIMET
follows:
2014 2013
—E-lmF ==
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Write down of inventories (Note (i) WoRFE (Hat() 6,153 44,840
Reversal of write down of inventories (Note (i) B EMORTT & (A7) (29,086) =
(22,933) 44,840
Carrying amount of inventories sold BEEFEREE 49,453 65,458

(

(i)

During the year ended 31 March 2014, obsolete and slow-moving
inventories approximately HK$6,153,000 (2013: HK$44,840,000) were
identified and written down to their net realisable value.

The reversal of write down of inventories made in prior years arose
due to an increase in the net realisable value as a result of the sales
occurred during the year.
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

24. EWE ZFIEREMEWRFIE

The Group The Company
& b N

2014 2013 2014 2013
~B-mFE ZF-=Ff ZF-mF -T-=F%
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT BETT BT
Trade receivables B E 5508 22,547 274 - =
Other receivables H o el 58 16,139 5,608 - =
Amount due from a director (Note () B —RESFIE (M) - 183 - =
Amount due from a shareholder (Note (i) EM— B IRRFE (Hat) - 422 - =
Prepayments and deposits BRRERES 654 4,096 456 769
39,340 10,583 456 769

All of

the trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered

within one year.

Notes:

()

(i

(a)

The amount due from a director was unsecured, interest free and had no fixed
terms of repayment. During the year ended 31 March 2013, the maximum
outstanding amount was approximately HK$183,000.

The amount due from a shareholder was unsecured, interest free and had no
fixed terms of repayment.

Trade receivables

The aging analysis of the trade receivables as of the reporting
date, based on invoice date, which approximates the respective
revenue recognition dates was as follows:

P U 5 5008 I H At e MR TR 15 TR A
R—FRYE -

Hiet -
0

(i

Bl —BEEREAERR  REREETE
R -BE-_T-—=F=A=+—HILLFE"
REZBHIBR = 2 A A 1183,0007T
Bl —ZRRKIEAERT 28 RERTE
EWE 5 HRIE

RERBE REZAH(DASE
W ERBE) T E 2 EIE 5 70A
2B AT :

2014 2013
—EB-pmE —T=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

BET T BT

0 to 30 days 0Z30H 19,235 197
31 to 60 days 31260H 141 -
61 to 90 days 61290H 58 -
Over 90 days Q0R LA £ 3,113 77
22,547 274

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit
and letters of credit, except for new customers where payment
in advance and cash on delivery are normally required. Invoices
are normally payable between 30 and 180 days after issuance.
Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and
has a credit control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. Further
details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in Note 38(a).
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment
loss is written off against trade receivables directly.

24. EWE ZFIER EMMEWEIE

(&)
(b)

W E 5 HIEZRE
BREKE SRR ZRERBRETIER
R AR RS 8% - 1 fin 25 5= B 38 /5 R 1= 35K
HZHEEN ARESREHERA
FEN E 5 SRIB M -

Trade receivables that are not impaired (c) LEREZEKESNKE
The aging analysis of trade receivables that are neither individually N7 A 4 AR 4 R (B Bl Sl B B R B 2 FE
nor collectively considered to be impaired are as follows: WE S HRIBZREDTIAT :
The Group The Company
F&E N
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE 2= CZB-mNF —ZT-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT BETT BB
Neither past due nor impaired 3 4 180 A 75 AR (A 19,235 197 - -
Past due but not impaired BH BRI E
Less than 1 month past due wEOR—EA 141 = - =
1 to 3 months past due BH—E={EA 58 = - =
Over 3 months past due BH=EAU L 3,113 77 - =
3,312 77 - -
22,547 274 - -

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history
of default. Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group for whom there was no recent history of
default. Based on past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these balances
as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.
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25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25. e R BEEEY
The Group The Company
PN | PN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE —T-=-F ZE-mF —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BETT
Cash at bank and on hand, BOIRFERE UK
and cash and cash equivalents BTN &R
in the statement of ZBe R EEN
financial position 8,965 216,540 7,722 216,281
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated ~ R&ABR & RER 2
statement of cash flows RekBEZEY 8,965 216,540
Cash and bank balances denominated WARESIEZ
in Renminbi ReRRITHET 236 119

Renminbi is not freely convertible into other currencies. However,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange Renminbi for other

AE%$ﬂE$%ﬁﬁEMEMD%ﬁW&
R B A B 2 ONPE B TR AR A R A TR

ERMEEERT  ANEEE EL@%%
REEITINEERS 2 IRITIEARBHIRAR

f 25 o

currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.
fEﬁL%%&fE"TMZﬂ

The interest rates on the cash at bank and deposits with banks ranged AP FFF0.01%

from 0.01% to 1.66% (2013: 0.01% to 8.4%) per annum. £1.66% (ZF—=F:0.01%%£84%) °
26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26. ERNEZREREMENRK
The Group The Company
N | NG|

2014 2013 2014 2013

“E-mFE = CZE-mf Z=ZZT—=F%

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

(k3 BETT BT BETT BRI

Trade payables [ERE 5508 @ 56,910 51,650 - -
Other payables and accruals HuEMNRER

BT &R 25,866 19,818 4,561 3,303
Amounts due to related R BERRFRIE

companies ) - 7,933 - -
Financial liabilities measured REHK A &

at amortised costs ZHBEE 82,776 79,401 4,561 3,303

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be repaid or Fr FEASI B 5 5008 I H 4tb JE 1 SRIE TR HR 7%

recognised as income within one year or had no fixed terms of
repayment.

K

R—FEANERIERASWA - S EFE
FKEF o
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26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

(a) Trade payables

An aging analysis of the Group’s trade payables as at the end of

the reporting period, based on invoice date, was as follows:

26. ENEZFEREMENTE

(&)

(a) BENEZRE
RIBEREEER  HERAHE
Z RSB RN E 508 2 BR ik 5 i 40

T
2014 2013
—E—-MEF —T—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T

0 to 30 days 0Z30H 17,402 3,930

31 to 60 days 31£60H 10 190

61 to 90 days 61£90H 4 -

Over 90 days (Note (i) Q0H LA E (H17E3)) 39,494 47,530

56,910 51,650

Note: Htat -

[0} Trade payables also included approximately R$10 million (equivalent [0} J& < & 5 X IH 788 #5 £910,000,000
to approximately HK$36 million at 31 March 2014 and approximately ETR(NWEER=_Z—NE=A
HK$40 million at 31 March 2013). This sum represented service fees =+ — B 2 7% #36,000,0007C & 1A
payable to a subcontractor for a tree felling service project in Rondonia, —E—=ZFE=ZA=+—Hz#E%
Brazil. UTRB had disputes with the subcontractor and it abandoned the 40,000,0007T) ° A M & FHE LR
site. No further work was subcontracted to them after the year ended BEFAZ RN 2 R ARRISE B B
31 March 2011 as UTRB was not assigned any area for clearing by the DEMEZ R E - UTRBHE - 8 7 %
hydropower plant of this project in the financial years ended 31 March EFFE RENEZSM - BRUTRB
2013 and 2014, and no amount was paid by UTRB either. UTRB is not REBEE-T—=FR-ZT—NF=A
aware of any claims or lawsuits filed by the subcontractor at the relevant =+—BIEMEREREARMZER 2K
courts. NBERmESREMER ZBFET

B BMREBE=Z——F=A=1+—
HEFEEAMERRSE-—ZTHE
Tt MUTRBIR I & 2 (SHEAI5RIE »
UTRBIE 1 A7 B 5 &2 B R 48 B A B
PR Z IR REK A ©
(b) Amounts due to related companies (b) ERBEARRE
The amounts were unsecured, interest free and had no fixed EHRBEAEER 2 REERTE
terms of repayment. FRER o
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27.LOANS AND BORROWINGS 27. ERREE
The Group The Company
AEH b N
2014 2013 2014 2013
“E2-mFE  —T-=F ZB-mF C—T-=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Wizt BT BT BETT BT
Secured interest-bearing loan BEEBZGBER @ 4,046 36,132 - =
Secured bank loans BERBTER ) 13,237 = - =
Unsecured interest bearing loan REBIE=HZ
from an independent third party EERTEER () 11,021 = - =
28,304 36,132 - _
The analysis of the carrying amount of loans and borrowings is as BEMBTEREEEI LT :
follows:
The Group
E
2014 2013
—E-IF —EF—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
Fr Tt
Current liabilities REAE
Portion of secured interest-bearing loan from an REBIE=HZ
independent third party HEA c# B BRI 4,046 =
Portion of term loans from banks due for repayment AR—F WE@Z%ETT
within 1 year BHERE 420 36,132
Portion of term loans from banks due for repayment AR — ifﬁ%ﬁ@z%ﬁﬁ
after 1 year which contain a repayment on demand EHERHS (%
clause R E B RIGER) 844 =
5,310 36,132
Non-current liabilities RBEE
Secured bank loans BEMRITER 11,973 =
Unsecured interest bearing loan from REBIE=H2
an independent third party AR #5\ N 11,021 =
22,994 -
Total HET 28,304 36,132
133
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27.LOANS AND BORROWINGS (continued) 27. ERREBE ®

At 31 March 2014, loans and borrowings were due for repayment as RZE—NFE=Z/A=+—H BEXKREE
follows: HIZ L/{—I— HEAEE
The Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-mF —ET—=F
$’000 $'000
Frx T
Secured bank loans BHEMIRITER
Portion of term loans from banks due for AR —F WE%‘EZ@HH R1T
repayment within 1 year BRI D 420 -
Term loans from banks due for repayment after 1 year B —F & EE 2 A HE 1T
B%
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERMFENR 429 =
After 2 years but within 5 years MEBRBRAFR 1,487 =
More than 5 years BEAE 10,901 =
13,237 -
Other borrowings RN EEN
Portion of borrowings due for repayment within 1 year ~ BR —FREE 2
BEHBD 4,046 36,132
Borrowings due for repayment after 1 year BER—FREBZEER
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERMFENR - -
After 2 years but within 5 years MEBRBRAFR 11,021 =
15,067 36,132
28,304 36,132
The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates as ZRERBEREERMEEE 2R E

stipulated in the respective loan agreements.

All of the banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment of covenants. If
the Group were in breach of the covenants, the drawn down facilities
In addition, certain of the
Group’s bank loan agreements contain clauses which give the lender
the right at its sole discretion to demand immediate repayment at any
time irrespective of whether the Group has complied with the covenants

would become repayable on demand.

and met the scheduled repayment obligations.

R EHIEIHEE

F)’Tﬁ&ﬁfmﬁiéxﬁ =

EERZw EFAN Zf“\

TEEMEERS) o
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27.LOANS AND BORROWINGS (continued)

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants, is
up to date with the scheduled repayments of the term loans and does
not consider it is probable that the bank will exercise its discretion to
demand repayment so long as the Group continues to meet these
requirements. Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity
risk are set out in Note 38(b). As at 31 March 2014 none of the
covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been breached (2013:
Nil).

All of the secured bank loans, including amounts repayable on demand,
and unsecured interest bearing loan from an independent third party are
carried at amortised cost.

None of the portion of bank loans due for repayment after one year
which contain a repayment on demand clause and that is classified as a
current liability is expected to be settled within one year.

(@ At 31 March 2013, the interest-bearing loan was secured by
share charge in favour of the lender over the entire issued share
capital of a wholly owned subsidiary, Acenergy Limited. The
Group may borrow up to HK$50 million within a 12-month period
commencing the date of the loan agreement. Interest rate is
18% per annum and maturity in one lump sum 18 months after
the first draw down under the loan agreement. Notwithstanding
the above, the Group may prepay any loan amount outstanding
after 12 months from the first draw down without penalties. The
principal of the interest-bearing loan was fully repaid on 8 May
2013.

(o) The Group’s bank borrowings were secured by mortgage over
the Group’s property of approximately HK$3,218,000 (Note 17)
and investment properties of approximately HK$23,699,000
(Note 19) in Hong Kong (2013: HKS$NIl).

(c) The interest expenses charged on unsecured interest bearing
loan from third party was calculated at 3% per annum. The
outstanding balances will be expired after 36 months.
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27. ERREBE (&)

AEBTHERRTETHERLH M
EEEMNPREEEHER TREER
SERBEETZEHATNBR TRITTA
ARETFEEEREREE - AEEEER
FEEBOFBEHNMEES80) - R=F
—OME=ZA=+—H AEBIEERE
HERAEEENZEA(ZE—=F &) -

FEEERRTER(BRARERER
Z R MBS F =7 mAR AR R E R
R SHAC AR AR ©

BHAR - FREEZRVRITERID (R
BREREFGIEIBER/RBDEE)E
TERN—FRAEN-

@ M-E—=F=F=+—H8 A
BRI —R2 & B 2 AlAcenergy
Limitedz 2 ZE ZE TR AE AR IR 7D
R ERTFERA -BERBZAH
Bt —EASHER AEERZA
f& A8 #50,000,0007T * F F & A18
B BRBIEER D ZE KIRKE
T\l A2 B —E R E - £ T E
REMIBERLT  ANEETREHINIER
B+ —EAREESNERNERE
REBMBAESE st EERAER
T =FRANREEEE-

() AEEZRITEEZRAEFEREER
EBBEXB3,218,000t 2 ¥ %
(B 5E17) R (B {E 4975 23,699,000
TLZIEEWE (MEF1OEER (=

T-=F EEER)
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28. SEASONALITY OF OPERATIONS 28. X FHHEE

The Group’s forest operations in Brazil is located in the Amazon and
is subject to weather conditions during the rainy season ranging
roughly from December to April each year. Forest logging activities in
the Amazon are substantially scaled down or stopped completely in
some areas. Log prices usually increase during the rainy season due
to diminished supplies. This affects many sawmill operators that have
to stock up logs and tie up significant working capital, but benefit
forest owners who can plan ahead to reserve stock pile prior to the
start of the rainy season. The Group incorporates this seasonality in its
forest management plan to avoid supply shortage as well as to take
advantage of seasonal price differentials in logs.

AEBREBZMERBUREHFE R®
MEXRRMRAMRS MRE—RSE
FHt_AZMA - HERMREKEE R
BRI NETHEENFTRE L A
MER—BRNAZE LT TTARHERD
e W BZRBEABEEE  SHFL
LEARBREAMERGERELEES B
HIERK RANERESRTE BEA
AAERMEARERITRAM AEE KL
FEERFRMAGZMNE RS AR % H
FERZER - I ] X A A EEIIE B &

29. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 29. MEMBRRARZFIER

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents:

(a) FEMBMRRRZABABER
=

2014 2013
—E-MF —F—=
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T PR T T
Provision for Hong Kong Profits REZBEBFESREME
Tax for the year - 799
Provision for PRC Enterprise Income KEEMPREPE
Tax for the year FriSHi 1 1,359 -
Balance of Profits Tax provision BEFEAERBEEER
relating to prior years 799 49,456
2,158 50,255
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29.INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(continued)

29. REMBRRKZAEH (@)

(b) ERBELEHBRE:
W& BRRRER ZRIEHER
EZHEKED REFAEBHOT

(b) Deferred tax liabilities recognised:
The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position and the movement
during the year is as follows:

Consolidated statement of
financial position

mEMBRRE
Property,
plant and
equipment Biological

Y- WE assets Total
REE EYEE e
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
BT BT T BT T
At 1 April 2012 R-TE——FmMA—H 68,898 270,666 339,564
Credited to profit or loss FTABRER - (163,944) (163,944)
Exchange movement PE 5 6,741) (25,583) (32,324)
At 31 March 2013 R—E—=F=A=+—H 62,157 81,139 143,296
At 1 April 2013 N-ZT—=%FmMA—H 62,157 81,139 143,296
Acquisition of subsidiaries gy pNG)| 21 - 21
Credited to profit or loss FFABRER ) (73,187) (73,188)
Exchange movement b 5, & (6,572) (7,952) (14,524)
At 31 March 2014 R=_E—WF=A=+—H 55,605 = 55,605

At 31 March 2014, the Group has tax losses of approximately
HK$112,233,000 (2013: HK$496,425,000) that are available for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which the
losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised as it is
not probable that future taxable profits against which the losses can
be utilised will be available for the companies in which losses arose.
The Group has tax losses of approximately HK$17,354,000 (2013:
HK$64,090,000) available for offsetting against future profits that may
be carried forward for up to five years, for PRC enterprise income tax
purpose. The remaining tax losses do not expire under current tax
legislation.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other significant deferred tax
liabilities that is required to be provided for in the consolidated financial
statements for the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013.
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R-ZTE—NME=ZA=+—H8 AEFBEL
2 HRIEEBY A B 112,233,000t (=
T — =4 : ##496,425,0007T ) * 7] HLE
EBIBZ AR BRERT G AR
FAYEIE 8K B 18 FE SR B F 2 B 18T 1] a4t
EXEBEEAGEA i EERELEHE
BE-RPBECEMBHEME  AEEH
BB 817,354,000 (Z 2 —=F : B
64,090,0007T ) 2 Hi 15 &5 18 + AT B2 B 14 )& 5
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30. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

31.

30. BiKEE

The Group and the Company REBRARQF
2014 2013
—E—-MF ===
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ST T
At beginning of the year REFH] - 6,030
Issue of warrants BITREEE 23,337 -
Exercise of warrants (Note j) IT{EREREDE (K7ati) (1,075) =
Change in fair value NTEEE (20,278) (6,030)
At end of the year RER 1,984 =

Note: HiaE -

i) The warrants were measured at fair value at each exercise date and the end
of the reporting period. The valuation was carried out by GCA independently
based on Binomial Option Pricing Model. The warrants will be expired on 6 May

2018.

REEERSTRASRBRSHREERZ
NFER B - hEmEENER AR
EEEXBLET BRREEFER=_F—N\

FRANBER-

AMOUNTS DUE TO SHAREHOLDERS 31. B REMNIE
The Group
rE
2014 2013
= ik =F—=
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k3 BT R BT T
LOH Jiah Yee, Katherine (“Ms. Loh”) #MRE ([#21]) @ - 26,774
Winner Global Holdings Limited Winner Global Holdings Limited
(“Winner Global”) (Twinner Global |) (b) 13,410 52,358
LIM Ping Wai MR (©) - 8,336
New Premier Holdings Limited New Premier Holdings Limited
(“New Premier”) (New Premier | ) (@) - 74,327
Assure Gain International Limited Assure Gain International Limited
(“Assure Gain”) (TAssure Gain | ) (e) - 5,612
Corporate Insights Limited EEREERERAA
(“Corporate Insights”) (MZm)) ] - 836
Splendid Asset Holdings Limited Splendid Asset Holdings Limited
(“Splendid Asset”) (T'Splendid Asset | ) @) - 63,325
13,410 231,568
Less: Amount due within one year shown & : 3l &R ABE—ER
under current liabilities EHA 2 IR (13,410) =
Non-current liabilities EmBEE - 231,568
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31. AMOUNTS DUE TO SHAREHOLDERS

(continued)

Notes:

(@)

The amount was unsecured, bearing interest at 5% per annum and repayable
on 31 December 2014. On 1 March 2012, an extension agreement was signed
and the maturity date was extended to 31 December 2014. The amount was
repaid on 11 April 2013.

The amount was unsecured, bearing interest at 5% per annum and repayable
on 31 December 2014. On 1 March 2012, an extension agreement was
signed and the maturity date was extended to 31 December 2014. Ms. Loh is
beneficially interested in 100% of the share capital of Winner Global.

The amount was unsecured, bearing interest at 5% per annum and repayable
on 31 December 2014. On 1 March 2012, an extension agreement was signed
and the maturity date was extended to 31 December 2014. The amount was
repaid on 11 April 2013.

The amount was unsecured, bearing interest at 5% per annum and repayable
on 31 December 2014. On 1 March 2012, an extension agreement was signed
and the maturity date was extended to 31 December 2014. Ms. LIM Ping Wai
is beneficially interested in 100% of the issued share capital of New Premier.
The amount was repaid on 11 April 2013.

The amount was unsecured, bearing interest at 5% per annum and repayable
on 31 December 2014. On 31 December 2011, an extension agreement was
signed and the maturity date was extended to 31 December 2014. Ms. Loh is
beneficially interested in 100% of the issued share capital of Assure Gain. The
amount was repaid on 11 April 2013.

The amount was unsecured, bearing interest at 5% per annum and repayable
on 31 December 2014. Ms. Loh is beneficially interested in 100% of the issued
share capital of Corporate Insights Limited. The amount was repaid on 11 April
20183.

The amount was unsecured, bearing interest at 5% per annum and repayable
on 31 December 2014. On 1 March 2012, an extension agreement was
signed and the maturity date was extended to 31 December 2014. Ms. Loh
is beneficially interested in 100% of the issued capital of Splendid Asset. The
amount was repaid on 11 April 2013.
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32. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES

32. BENEERNTANE

2014 2013
—g-mE —T-=%
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
Htat BT T T T
Value Creation Partners Company Limited  Value Creation Partners

Company Limited (a - 2,152
Jack Lau Limited Jack Lau Limited b) - 1,565
- 3,717

Notes: et -
(@) Value Creation Partners Company Limited is a company controlled by Ms. (@) Value Creation Partners Company Limited/4&

Loh, a former Executive Director of the Company. The amount was unsecured,
bearing interest at 5% per annum and repayable on 31 December 2014. On
1 July 2011, an extension agreement was signed and the maturity date was
extended to 31 December 2014. The amount was repaid on 11 April 2013.

(b) Jack Lau Limited is a company controlled by Ms. Loh, a former Executive (b)
Director of the Company. The amount was unsecured, bearing interest at 5%
per annum and repayable on 31 December 2014. The amount was repaid on

11 April 2013.

33. PROMISSORY NOTES

—HKBARBRERTERELTEN 2R

Al BRREREER  RENXREFFE R
BAR-ZF-—NFE+-_A=+—HEE-R=
T——FtA—H EFRFERGH M2H
FEEE—_F-—HFE+_A=+—H-EH
REER-_T—=FMA+—HMEE-

Jack Lau Limited — R AR A RIAIE#ITE
BRLTTIERI 2 AR - BRANRESELR .
BREFNEEFBREAR-_Z—WNF+=A
= +—HRER - FEREER-_T—=FMH
At+—BEE-

33. AT EHE

The Group and the Company REERARD T
2014 2013
—E-MF —ET—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T PEHET T
At beginning of the year REH) 6,648 6,517
Accrued effective interests ZETERFE 134 131
At end of the year RELR 6,782 6,648

Carrying amount repayable FE(EE FIAREE
Within one year —FR 6,782 6,648
Over one year —F1& - -
6,782 6,648
140



KRMEZRERAR —T—=/ T NFFR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZE—ZT—NF=A=+—HILFE

33. PROMISSORY NOTES (continued)

The Group and the Company (continued)

On 31 July 2009, the Company issued promissory notes in an
aggregate principal amount of HK$232,000,000 as part of the
consideration for the acquisition of Amplewell. The promissory notes
bear interest at 2% per annum. The interest shall be repaid together
with principal in one lump sum upon maturity on 31 January 2011. On
1 September 2010, the Company entered into a letter with the holder
of the promissory notes to extend the maturity date of the promissory
notes to 31 July 2012. On 1 September 2011, further extension to
31 July 2013 was granted from the holder. The promissory notes
may be assigned or transferred (in integral multiple of HK$1,000,000)
to any third party (other than a connected person as defined in the
Listing Rules) subject to the Listing Rules and the applicable laws. The
Company may repay all or part of the principal amount and interest
at any time prior to the maturity date (i.e. 31 July 2013) by giving the
holder not less than seven days’ prior written notice specifying the
amount and date of repayment provided that the amount shall be at
least HK$1,000,000. Otherwise, the payment of principal and interest
payment of promissory notes shall be made in full upon the maturity
date.

The fair value of the promissory notes at the date of issuance was
HK$191,911,000, which was determined by GCA. Valuations were
made on the basis of effective interest method which is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability
and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate used in the calculation of the
fair value is 15.74%.

The promissory notes are held by a substantial shareholder. On 23
September 2009, the Company made repayment of promissory
notes with carrying amount of HK$84,529,000 at par value for
HK$100,000,000. On 2 November 2009, the Company made
another repayment of promissory notes with carrying amount of
HK$90,188,000 at par value for HK$105,000,000. The excess of the
repayment amount over the carrying amount of HK$30,283,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2010 was accounted for as distribution to the
shareholder.

On 12 April 2010, the Company made another repayment of
promissory notes with carrying amount of HK$19,076,000 at par value
of HK$20,822,000. The excess of the repayment amount over the
carrying amount of HK$1,746,000 for the year ended 31 March 2011
was accounted for as distribution to the shareholder.

Given that the Company has the legal obligation to settle the full face
value of the promissory notes for the aforesaid acquisition, the directors
considered that it is transaction with shareholder in the capacity
as owner. The excess shall be accounted for as a deemed capital
distribution to the shareholder and charged to the contributed surplus
account.

AU
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34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. I
Number of
convertible
Number of Number of Number of preferred
ordinary ordinary ordinary shares of
shares of shares of shares of HK$0.01
HK$0.0533 HK$0.32 HK$0.01 per share
per share per share per share SREERY
SREERY SREEEY SREEER 0.017T2
0.05337 2 0.327T2 0.017T2 ARRELR Total
EZERHE EERYR  ZBREA #R Fohg
Notes '000 '000 '000 HK$'000 '000 HK$'000 HK$'000
[iF:3 T T T BETT T BETT BETT
Authorised: EE:
At 1 April 2012 RZE——#mA—H 8,437,500 = - 450,000 27,534,000 275,340 725,340
Increased in authorised ordinary shares & & & @ ARE /N @ 3,562,500 - - 190,000 - - 190,000
At 31 March 2013 and 1 April 2013 RZB-=%
=A=+-Bk
—E-=%#NA-H 12,000,000 = - 640,000 27,534,000 275,340 915,340
Share consolidation D b (12,000,000) 2,000,000 - - - - -
Capital reorganization AAE4
— cancellation of paid up capital —HHEARER ) - (1,391,695) 1,391,695 (431,425) - - (431,425)
~ cancellation of unissued shares —HEHARTRG ()i - (608,305) - (194,658) - - (194,658)
- increased in authorised ordinary shares —3& A £ &M (i) - - 28,608,305 286,083 - - 286,083
As at 31 March 2014 RZZ-M4E
ZA=t-H - - 30,000,000 300,000 27,534,000 275,340 575,340
Issued and fully paid: BRIRMR:
At 1 April 2012 RZZ——F#mA—H 6,702,364 - - 367,459 2,686,861 26,869 384,328
Conversion of convertible preferred shares 3 ] # & % 1% @ 261,321 - - 13,937 (1,393,710) (13,937) -
Issuance of shares pursuant to RERARARTRG
the equily lne faciity @ 121,047 - - 6,504 - - 6,504
At 31 March 2013 and 1 April 2013 RZB-=%
=A=+-Bk
“T-=#RmA-AH 7,085,632 - - 377,900 1,293,151 12,932 390,832
Issue of new shares in connection BRARBERTHR
with the open offer M 1,180,939 - - 62,983 215,525 2,155 65,138
Shares issue upon exercise of ordinary T E BIRARIEEZ %
share warrants RIkRH © 83,599 - - 4,459 - - 4,459
Share consolidation i &b ) (8,350,170) 1,391,695 - - - - -
Capital reorganization BAEHR
— cancellation of paid up capital —HHARAR © - (1,391,695) 1,391,695 (431,425) - - (431,425)
Shares issue upon exercise of ordinary — R{THEE BRI EZR %
share warrants iR il - - 101 1 - - 1
As at 31 March 2014 RZE-ME
ZA=t-H - = 1,391,796 13,918 1,608,676 15,087 29,006
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34. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(@)

Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 11 April 2012, the authorised
share capital of the Company was increased from HK$725,340,000 divided
into 8,437,500,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.0533 each and 27,534,000,000
convertible preferred shares of HK$0.01 each to HK$915,340,000 divided
into 12,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.0533 each and 27,534,000,000
convertible preferred share of HK$0.01 each.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 30 September 2013, the share
consolidation was approved and effective from 2 October 2013 every six
ordinary shares of HK$0.0533 each in the authorised and issued share capital
of the Company were consolidated into one ordinary share of HK$0.32 each in
the authorised and issued share capital of the Company.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 30 September 2013, the capital
reorganization was approved and effective from 2 October 2013 in the following
manner () the issued ordinary share capital of the Company was reduced
through a cancellation of paid up capital of the Company to the extent of
HK$0.31 on each of the ordinary shares of HK$0.32 such that the nominal
value of each issued ordinary share was reduced from HK$0.32 to HK$0.01;
(i) all of the authorised but unissued ordinary shares of HK$0.32 each were
cancelled; and (iii) the authorised share capital of the Company was increased
to HK$575,340,000 by the creation of an additional 28,608,305,027 unissued
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each so that the authorised share capital of the
Company comprised a total of 30,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each and 27,534,000,000 convertible preferred shares of HK$0.01 each.

During the year ended 31 Maych 2013, an aggregate of 261,320,704 new
ordinary shares of HK$0.0533 each were issued upon the conversion of
1,393,710,434 convertible preferred shares of HK$0.01 each.

On 19 December 2011, the Company and an independent third party
(“Investor”) entered into (1) the equity line facility agreement (“ELF Agreement”)
and (2) the debt facility agreement (‘DF Agreement”). Under the ELF
Agreement, the Company may require the Investor to subscribe up to HK$350
million, subject to a floor price of HK$0.149 per share (“Floor Price”), worth
of the Company’s shares during a maximum of 3-year period after the
commencement date of the ELF Agreement. Pursuant to the DF Agreement,
the Investor agreed to grant an initial loan of HK$30 million (“Initial Loan”) and
additional term loan of up to HK$80 million (‘Renewal Loan”). On 21 December
2011 and 19 January 2011, the Company and the Investor entered into
supplemental ELF Agreements reducing the maximum commitment amount
from HK$350 million to finally HK$115 million. During the year ended 31 March
2013, 121,947,271 shares were issued to and subscribed by the Investor
under the ELF Agreement.
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34. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(®

On 11 April 2013, the Company issued a prospectus (the “Prospectus”)
pursuant to which the Company proposed an open offer (the “Open Offer”)
to issue i) not less than 1,180,938,718 and not more than 1,227,737,503
new ordinary shares of the Company (“Offer Shares”) at a subscription price
of HK$0.0534 per Offer Share to qualifying ordinary shareholders on the
basis of one Offer Share for every six existing ordinary shares held on 10
April 2013 with bonus issue of ordinary share warrants with exercise price
of HK$0.0534 per ordinary share on the basis of one bonus share warrant
for every Offer Share subscribed; and i) not more than 215,525,161 new
convertible preferred shares of the Company (“Offer CPS Shares”) at a
subscription price of HK$0.0100125 per Offer CPS Share to qualifying holders
of convertible preferred shares on the basis of one Offer CPS Share for every
six existing convertible preferred shares held on 10 April 2013 with bonus issue
of convertible preferred share warrants with exercise price of HK$0.0100125
per convertible preferred share on the basis of one bonus convertible
preferred share warrant for every Offer CPS share subscribed. Pursuant to
the announcement of the Company dated 6 May 2013 (the “Announcement”),
the Open Offer became unconditional and 1,180,938,718 Offer Shares,
1,180,938,718 ordinary share warrants, 215,525,161 Offer CPS Shares and
215,525,161 convertible preferred share warrants were issued on 7 May 2013.
The dealing of the Offer Shares was commenced on the Stock Exchange on 8
May 2013. Further details of the Open Offer were disclosed in the Prospectus
and the Announcement.

During the current financial year and before capital reorganization, 83,598,813
ordinary share warrants were exercised to subscribe for 83,598,813 new
ordinary shares of HK$0.0533 of the Company at a consideration of
approximately HK$4,465,000 of which approximately HK$4,459,000 was
credited to share capital and the balance of approximately HK$6,000 was
credited to share premium account.

During the current financial year and after capital reorganization, 606,240
ordinary share warrants were exercised to subscribe for 101,040 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company at a consideration of approximately
HK$32,000 of which approximately HK$1,000 was credited to share capital
and the balance of approximately HK$31,000 was credited to share premium
account.
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company terminated the share option scheme adopted by the
Company on 9 September 2002 (“Old Scheme”) and adopted a
new share option scheme (‘New Scheme”) pursuant to an ordinary
resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company at the special
general meeting held on 27 November 2009. There was no share
option granted under the Old Scheme. The principal terms of the New
Scheme are as follows:

(a) Purpose
The purpose of the New Scheme is to provide incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operation and to recruit and retain high caliber
employees and attract human resources that are valuable to the
Group and any entity which any member of the Group holds any
equity interest (“Invested Entity”).

(b) Eligible participants
Eligible participants of the New Scheme include the Company’s
directors and other employees of the Group or Invested Entity,
any customers, supplier of goods or services to any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity who, in the sole discretion of
the Board have contributed or will contribute to the growth and
development of the Group or any Invested Entity.

(c) Maximum number of shares

The total number of shares (.e. 670,236,433 ordinary shares,
before the share consolidation, which should be consolidated
into 111,706,072 ordinary shares upon the share consolidation
effective from 2 October 2013) which may be issued upon
exercise of all options granted and to be granted under the
New Scheme represented 10% of the total number of issued
ordinary shares of the Company as at the date of passing the
ordinary resolution on 11 April 2012 (being the date on which
the mandate limit of the New Scheme was refreshed) and
represented approximately 8% of the total number of issued
ordinary shares of the Company as at the date of this report for
the year ended 31 March 2014.

(d) Maximum entitlement of each eligible
participant
The maximum number of shares issuable under the New Scheme
to each eligible participant within any 12-month period, is limited
to 1% of the total number of ordinary shares of the Company in
issue at any time.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZE—ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Maximum entitlement of each eligible
participant (continued)

Any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any
of their respective associates, which would result in the ordinary
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
already granted and to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such person in excess of 0.1%
of the ordinary shares of the Company in issue at any time and
with an aggregate value (based on the price of the Company’s
shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000 within
any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

Option period

An option shall be exercised within 10 years from the date of
grant or such shorter period as the directors may specify at the
time of grant.

Acceptance of offer

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or
to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

Exercise price

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet on the date of offer of the share options;
and (i) the average closing prices of the Company’s shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii)
the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

The validity of the New Scheme

The New Scheme has a life of 10 years and will expire on 27
November 2019 unless otherwise terminated in accordance with
the terms of the New Scheme.

In assessing the theoretical aggregate value of the share options
granted and fully accepted during the year ended 31 March 2014, the
result of Binominal Option Pricing Model performed by GCA was used.
During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group recognised share-
based payment expenses approximately HK$446,000 (2013: reversal of
HK$349,000) for employees.
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

35. B AETHE (@)

(@  Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their (@  RARTTOEREARESE R EABRENE T
related weighted average exercise prices are as follows: BITFEEZEBINT
Number of share options
BREsA
Outstanding
at 31 March
Exercise Exercise 2013 and
price price  Outstanding 1 April 2013 Outstanding  Exercisable
pershare  pershare  at1 April R-g-z% Adjusted  at 31 March at 31 March
before share  after share 2012 =B=1-AR upon share 2014 2014
consolidation consolidation H=F-Z% -8z consolidation H-%-DF R-Z-BF
Date of Grant Exercise period Rbafka  Riaks RA-A Granted  Exercised Lapsed BA-A Granted  Exercised Lapsed HBHAHE =p=t-B =ZA=t-8
REAH b & SRORE  SROEE  BAGE BEY Bfif BAN  HAGE BRE B BN B MAME A
18 January 2010 18 January 2011 to HK$0.940 HKS$5.640 1,900,686 = = (1,388,821) 520,865 = = = (434,055) 86,810 86,810
3% 12 January 2020 AR A¥SH0T
= “T--5-A12A%
Z2-%E-f+1CH
18 January 2010 18 January 2012 to HK$0.940 HKS5.640 1,909,688 = = (1,388,823) 520,865 - = = (434,055 86,810 86,810
b S 12 Janvary 2020 BR0MOT  AMSAAT
-AtzR Z§-Cf-AtzRE
13 January 2010 13 January 2013 fo HK$0940 HK$5.640 1909691 - - (1,388,624) 520,867 - - - (434,056) 86,811 86,811
12 January 2020 AROQOT AT
ZI-=£-f1=R%
Z3-%5-At12R
18 January 2010 16 July 20100 HK$0.940 NA 5,105,428 = = = 5,105,428 - - (6,105428) NA - -
3% 12 January 2020 AE0940T TR T@R
CE-TELATREE
Z22%E-f+1zH
16 July 2011 to HK$0.940 NA 5,106,427 - - - 5,105,427 - - (6,105427) NA = =
12 Janvary 2020 00T &R 0 1
“3--5tAtERE
-AtzB
7 May 2010 15July 201010 HK$0.710 VA 5,106,427 - - - 5,106,427 - - (5,105,427) NA - -
Z3-%% 6 May 2020 AROTI0T AR TER
BAtA “B-TELATRAR
“RFERARE
7 May 2010 18 January 2011 to HK$0.710 HKS4.260 1,166,271 = = (885,406) 280,865 = = = (234,055 46810 46810
3% 6 May 2020 BEOTOT  A%4200T
RALA
7 May 2010 7May 2011 to HK$0.710 NA 825,658 - - (825,658) - - - = NA = =
—3-%% 6 May 2020 AEOTI0T TER TéR
RAtA 2
7 May 2010 15.July 2011 1o HK$0.710 VA 5,105,428 - - - 5,106,428 = - (5,105,428) NA - -
_3-%% 6 May 2020 AROTI0T AR TER
TAtA “I--EtAtRAZ
“3-3F5AMA
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 35. BIRfETE ()

(a) Movements in the number of share options outstanding and @ T EARTTERERESE R E AR nEFE
their related weighted average exercise prices are as follows: BITFEEZEEHWT: (F)
(continued)

Number of share options
BRAsA
Outstanding
at 31 March
Exercise Exercise 2013 and
price price  Outstanding 1 April 2013 Outstanding  Exercisable
pershare  pershare  at 1 April WoE-zF Adjusted  at 31 March  at 31 March
before share  after share 2012 ZA=t-AR upon share 2014 2014
consolidation consolidation A-F-=% Z%-zf consolidation H-%-0F R-F-BF
Date of Grant Exercise period RbafE  Riaks BA-A Granted  Exercised Lapsed BA-A Granted  Exercised Lapsed HRAAHE =A=t-B =A=t-A
RHRE i< SROEE  SROEE  BAGE BRH B B&N  HAGE BRE B BN B HROE kit d
7May 2010 18 January 2012 to HK$0.710 HKS$4.260 1,166,271 = = (885,406) 280,865 = = = (234,065 46810 46810
3% 6 May 2020 BEOTIOT  AR%42007T
HALA i Sl 2 e
Z2-RERARR
7 May 2010 7May 201210 HK$0.710 NA 825,659 = = (826,659) = = - - NA = =
—3-%% 6 May 2020 BEOTI0T TéR TER
At %
7 May 2010 13 January 2013 fo HK$0.710 HK$4.260 1,166,276 - - (885,409) 260,867 - - - (234,056) 46811 46811

6 May 2020 BROTOT  ARL260T

7May 2010 7May 20130 HK$0.710 NA 825,650 - - (826,659) - = = = NA = =
3% 6 May 2020 AEOTI0T AR 1]
nAtR “F-=
14 September 2010 14 September 2010 to HK$0.375 HKS$2.250 63,662,500 - - (23525000 11,200000 = - (11,000000 (166,667) 33,333 33333
Z2-%E 27 November 2019 BRI AK250T
AATEA “E-TEARTOEE
ZE-AET-AZTEE
18 February 2011 16 December 2011 to HKS0.42 NA 1433333 - - - 1,433,333 - - (1,433,333) NA - -
3£ 17 February 2021 047 AER FER
ZATAR -5tz AtARZ
“3--5-BttA
18 February 2011 16 December 2012 to HKS0.42 NA 1,433,333 - - - 1,433,333 - = (1,433,333) NA = =
B 17 February 2021 BB04T &R A
ZAtIE EtZAT7EE
—£ZA+tA
18 February 2011 16 December 2013 to HK$042 NA 1,433,334 - = = 1,433,334 = - (1433334 NA = =
= B 17 February 2021 A &R 0 1
—A+/A “§-ZECAAAR
Z2--£-AttA
30 August 2013 to HK80.0634 HKS0.3204 - - - - - 166551732 - - (138793110) 27,758,622 27,158,622
29 August 2013 AR B30T

“F-ENAZTEE

99790 - - PRI BIBI 16812 C G0 (OSL 21087 28180
Weighted average METHERE HKS0521 - - HKS04H  HKSOSSIT  HKS00534 - HiSoesTT HKS08914  HKS0.3914
P R0 - - RRUME BEOGTE  BHO0SME T BRONUE  BEONIUR
The number of share options exercisable at 31 March 2013 R-ZE—Z=ZF=ZA=+—HA{THEZEBR
was 36,893,570 and its weighted average exercise price was 2B 536,893,57017 ' EMNAEFHITHEE
HK$0.677. RBHE0.677TT
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 35. BT E (@)
(b)  The vesting period for the share options is as below. (b) HEREZEFEBEAWNT -
No. of share
options granted
Date of grant & Vesting conditions
BEBH BREZR BERS
No. of shares
options vested Vesting date
ERERREHE BEAH
13 January 2010 10,210,855 5,105,428 15July 2010 =2 —ZF+ A+H
—T-T¥—-fA+=H 5,105,427 15 July 2011 =2 ——itﬂ E
45,040,069 18,398,633 13 January 2011 ‘T**E*ﬂ T=E
13,320,716 13 January 2012 —£——#—F+=H
13,320,720 13 January 2013 :?*EE*HJrEE
7 May 2010 10,210,855 5,105,427 15 July 2010 ZE—FF+ A+ HH
—T-TERA+A 5,105,428 15 July 2011 =2 f*itﬂ +hH
14,488,035 2,000,000 7 November 2010 —2—ZF+— A+t H
4,162,677 7May 2011 ZE——45R A tH
4,162,678 7May 2012 Z2——$h A +H
4,162,680 7May 2013 ZE—=FRAAtH
28,144,944 9,381,644 13 January 2011 :7 —%—A+=8
9,381,646 13 January 2012 —E——%#—fA+=H
9,381,654 13 January 2013 —E—=%—FA+=H
14 iSeptFeﬁrrJib;;{ 2010 79,350,000 79,350,000 14 September 2010 —E—ZTF N A+ A
18 February 2011 5,105,428 1,701,809 30 June 2011 —E——FSA=1H
—Z——%-At+tNH 1,701,809 30June 2012 =S ——F, A=1H
1,701,810 - =#XA=1H
820,588 273,529 73 =r=F
273,529 31 July 2012 = ; =+—H
273,530 31July 2018 =E—=F+A=+T—H
1,000,000 333,333 6 September 201 1 :z—— NLAKNA
333,333 6 September 2012 —E——F /L A/XH
333,334 6 September 2013 :g—ziﬂﬁl 7~H
800,000 266,666 5 December 2011 —E——%+ =A% H
266,667 5 December 2012 :g*:¢+:ﬁ IH
266,667 5 December 2013 ZE—=4+_-AH A
4,300,000 1,433,333 16 December 2011 ZE——F+= A /< H
1,433,333 16 December 2012 :* —#+=A+5H
1,433,334 16 December 2013 —F—=%F+= f+7<H
1,000,000 333,333 2 January 2012 :f—_¢ A=H
333,333 2 January 2013 =¥—HZH
333,334 2 January 2014 mE—A=A
1,300,000 433,333 9 January 2012 —E——F— AN H
433,333 9 January 2013 =2 —=%—HA LB
433,334 9 January 2014 —E—ME—A N A
30 August 2013 166,551,732 166,551,732 30 August 2018 ZE—=F\A=+H
—T-=%¥\A=1H
Total share option granted 368,322,506
BEREERERZ
Less: Lapsed (190,068,080)
B BAK
Exercised (9,097,500)
BT
Adjustment upon share (140,964,109)
consolidation effective on
2 October 2013
R=Z—=F+7=H
RIDEHAERERE
Outstanding at 31 March 2014 28,192,817
RZE-NFE=A=1+—
mARITE
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 35. B AETHE (@)

(o)  (continued) L) (&)
The option outstanding as at 31 March 2014 have a weighted R-B—MFE=A=+—HER1TE
average remaining contractual life of 9.36 years (2013: 8.32 BREZMEFLHOHRTENTHEAS
years). 9.36F (=T —=F:832%F) °
There was no exercise for share options for the years ended 31 BE_Z—NFE_FT—=F=A
March 2014 and 31 March 2013. =T —BIEFEREEREETE-
No other share options granted under the New Scheme were BHE-_Z—HNFR-_ZF—=F=A
cancelled during the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013. The =+—HLIEFE SEEMRESN
Group had no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or B AR c AN B W A
settle the options in cash. ERNEERAANE BRI

HERRRE
() The fair value of services received in return for share options ) MUELHERERRREAFEZR

granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share
options granted is measured based on binomial option pricing
model. The contractual life of the share option is used as an input
into this model. Expectations of early exercise are incorporated
into the binomial option pricing model.

ZERLBEREZATEFE-BEX
H AR 2 st A AR ZEA
EEEAGE -BREZSOFHE
RBAZEAZ R MBEHERT
FEEFAZBAREEEEAZF -

Date of grant

R A
30/8/2013
=2—=
NA=tH
Fair value of share options and assumptions BAAE 2 A FE R RR HK$0.0038
75 #£0.00387T
Share price I (B HK$0.033
75 #£0.0337T
Exercise price 1TfEE HK$0.0534
7B #£0.05347T
Expected volatility (expressed as weighted average ~ TEHAIE (1R1E — B M TEE
volatility used in the modeling under R AR R B T AR IR S 1R )
binomial option pricing model) 35.28%
Option life (expressed as weighted average life EREFE (RE B BEEE
used in the modeling under binomial option R AR P A NfE S EH)
pricing model) 10 years®F
Expected dividends TEEIRR B HK$Nil
VST T
Risk-free interest rate (based on 10-year ERBRFE (A FH
Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes) BEBINERESFIRALE) 2.335%
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(c)  (continued)

The expected volatility is based on annualized standard
deviations of the continuously compounded rates of return on the
share prices of five comparable companies in Hong Kong and
Brazil Exchange with similar business operations. No dividends
are expected as the Company had no history of payment of
dividends.

The share options granted during the year ended 31 March
2014 were immediately vested. There were no market conditions
associated with the share option grants.

35. B AETHE (@)

(©

(%)

FEHIRETDAREEREERE SRS
P)’T?ﬁé%ﬁ‘,%ﬁ%i*%@z}i%—]étb@

REIZBRERRFEES LR FE
REZDEE - AN ARBBELE
IR B B RC 8 IR & IR HE
s
RBE_Z-—NF=A=+—HIF
VTiHjZ ﬁﬁx%ﬂﬂﬂ%ﬁ%"&ﬂjﬁ%
P e 7 48 B B8 A 4R 7 455 R £ ©

36. RESERVES 36. f# i
(a) The Group (a) =£E
Shares held
bythe
Company for
setflement of
acquisition Gapial Exchange Share Non-
consideration Distributable: redemption fuctuation opfion controling
Shae  ARE Contrbuted resene resene resene resene  Accumulated inferests
premium L suplus AR hasmE Eikd e losses Siodod  FERKR Total
RiER Rk ks [ ] fe ffe ZifR et #a a5t
Notes HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000
BT BB BETT BT YT YT YT BT AT BT BT
At1 Aprl 2012 2458674 (115920 10003 2216 8,000 11,638 19524 (1,903,154) 490,981 8 491,067
Change in equity for 2013
Loss for the year - - - - - - - (326,601) 326,601) (] (326,676)
Exchange differences on
trandlation of financia )
statements of overseas subsidieries EXZE - - - - - 495530 - - 49530) “ 49534
Total other comprefiensive income LRI04 - - - - - 495530 - - 49530) “ 49534
Total comprehensive loss
forthe year - - - - - 495530) - (326,601) (376,131) (@] 376,210)
Transactions with owners
Issuance of shares pursuant
to the equty fine facllty M 11,667 - - - - - - - 11,667 - 11,667
Equity-sefted share-based payment - - - - - - (349 = (349 = (349
Forfeiture of share options - - - - - - (9321) 9321 = = =
Total transactions with owners 11,667 - - - - - (9670) 93 11318 - 11,318
At31 March 2013
2470341 (115,920) 10008 2216 8000 3789 9854 204 126,168 7 126,175

I, 15




SUSTAINABLE FOREST HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZE—ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

36. RESERVES (continued)

(a) The Group (continued)

36. f# i (

8)

(@) A&%H (&)

Shares held
by the
Company for
settlement of
acquisition Capital  Exchange Share Non-
consideration Distributable  redemption  fluctuation option controlling
Share XD FEN  Contributed reserve reserve reserve reserve Accumulated interests
premium WERE surplus TEAK RAHE EXED BRE losses  Sub-total  FERRR Total
R EE FERS R4Es L1 L1 i i ZitER it 3 @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ABIR 8T 8T LA 8T BRI AT ABIR ABIR ABIR BRI
At 1 April 2013 H=%-ZEmB-E 2470341 (1159200 10,008 2,216 8000  (37,892) 9850 [2,220434) 126,168 1 126175
Change in equity for 2014 “E-MERERD
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - - - [490,133) (490,133 [21)  (490,154)
Exchange differences on BEBMELR
translation of financial gt td
statements of overseas EXZE
subsidiaries - - - - - (11,884) - - (11,884) - (11,884)
Total other comprehensive Et2EUAEE
income - - - - - (11,884) - - (11,884) - (11,884)
Total comprehensive loss FEE2AFRAE
for the year - - - - - (11,884) - (490,133)  (502,017) (21)  (502,038)
Transactions with owners HEEARTZRS
Issue of new shares in RARRERTHRE
connection with
the open offer 49 81 - - - - - - - 81 - 81
Capital reorganization RAE4
- cancellation of -HERHER
share premium el (2,467,340) - | | 2,898,765 - - - - - 431,425 - 431,425
Share issue upon exercise of  {TFEEERARERL
ordinary share warrants BRHB 30,340/t 1,112 - - - - - - - 1,112 - 1,112
Share issue expenses BRER (4,160) - - - - - - - (4,160) - (4,160)
Equity-settled share-based NREEEZRAHR
payment - - - - - - 446 - 446 - 446
Forfeiture of share options RhBRE - - - - - - 8,640) 8,640 - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries HEREAT 7 - - - - - - - - - 89 89
Deemed distribution to HRABANRRE
shareholders through ARTRE
the open offer - - (23,337) - - - - - (23,337) - (23,337)
Total transactions with owners EEFAETZRAEE (2,470,307) - 2875428 - - - (8,194) 8,640 405,567 89 405,656
At 31 March 2014 R=2-BE
=B=t-8 34 (115,920) 2,885,431 2,216 8,000 (49,776) 1,660  (2,701,927) 29,718 75 29,793
152
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36. RESERVES (continued)

36. f#fE (@)

(b) The Company (b) &2 TF
Shares held
by the
Company for
settlement of
acquisition Capital
consideration Distributable  redemption Share
Share  AATHKA  Contributed reserve reserve option  Accumulated
premium WERE surplus THAK BARE reserve losses Total
RHEE fike LE b Bt BE  BRERS 23 EE &t
Notes HKS'000 HK§$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
Wit it S AETT BETT BETT EETT BETTL BETT BETT
At 1 Apr 2012 R-F--§RmA-A 2,458,674 (115,920) 62,947 2216 8,000 19,524 (1,923,316) 512,125
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - (366,459) (366,459)
Issuance of shares pursuant to RERARERARE
the equity line facilty 34(e) 11,667 - - - - - - 11,667
Equity-settled share-based payment NREEEZRHAR - - - - - (349) - (349)
Forfeture of share options R ERE - - - - - (9.321) 9,321 -
AL31 Mach 2013 Ro2-=£=p=t+-A 2003 (115920 62047 2216 8000 9% RA0dH 1o
At 1 April 2013 W-8-=£mA-A 2,470,341 (115,920 62,947 2,216 8,000 9,854 (2,280,454) 156,984
Loss for the year FERE - - - - - - (576,807) (576,807)
Issue of new shares in connection with RABZERTHRH
the open offer 4 81 - - - - - - 81
Capital reorganization BAES
- cancellation of share premium -HHARER el (2,467,340) - 2,808,765 - - - - 431,425
Share issue upon exercise of TEEARARERRRT
ordinary share warrants R 30,491 1,112 - - - - - - 1,112
Share issue expenses BARAER (4,160) - - - - - - (4,160)
Equity-settled share-based payment NRESEZRAHT - - - - - 446 - 446
Deemed distribution to shareholders ~ HEBFBARRE
through the open offer ARFRR - - (23,337) - - - - (23,337)
Forfeiture of share options RUERE - - - - - (8,640) 8,640 -
At 31 March 2014 H=8-BE=A=1-R 3 (1150200 2,938,375 2216 8,000 1,660  (2,848,621) (14,256)
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36. RESERVES (continued)

(c) Nature of purposes of the reserves

(i)

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed
by Section 40 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981. The
share premium account of the Company is distributable to
the owners of the Company in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
excess of the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the Group reorganisation in June
1991, over the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued in exchange thereof, and the capital reorganisation
during the year ended 31 March 2014. Under the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981 (as amended), the contributed
surplus is distributable to shareholders in certain
circumstances.

Distributable reserve

Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 15 July 2003,
the share premium account of the Company was reduced
by an amount of HK$103,948,000 to HK$Nil and of which
HK$98,953,000 was applied towards the elimination of
the accumulated losses of the Company as at 31 March
2003, with the remaining balance of HK$4,995,000 being
credited to a distributable reserve of the Company. The
reduction of share premium account was effective on 6
October 2008.

Capital redemption reserve

The capital redemption reserve represents the amount paid
by which the Company’s issued share capital has been
diminished on the cancellation of the shares repurchased.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of the overseas subsidiaries. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in Note 3(t).

Share option reserve

Share options reserve comprise the fair value of the
estimated number of unexercised share options granted
to directors and employees of the Group recognized in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for share-
based payments in Note 3(p)(iii).

154

36. f#fE (@)
(c) f@#fE

(@

(i)

(i)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

ZHEREH

B aE
BMOBEEREZEASARE
— QAN —FREEFLIGE
B o R AR5 B AR A2
ABRAADKTARRES
/\o

Efze

RRAB 2 EBERBRAEE
R—NAN—FRALETEESE
AP U B B B8 X BRI AR D 2 A F
ERAARRRRMZERN
TR E Z5ERE
EE-NMFE=A=+—H1k
FRZBEAEBA - RIZEARE
—NN\—FREE (EFTAR)
ERABARETERT 2K
TR

75 R EE
BER_ZEZ=FA+H
BBREBZHRRZEER AQ
7] 2 IR 0 5 (B BR B Bl Rk S
103,948,000t &8 ¥ T 0
& R #98,953,0007T B A 1E
WMEAATN _EE=F=AH
=t+—BZ 2 EE MK
75 #4,995,0007T BI5F AR ]
Z AR R o BURUR D &
BERER-_ZEZ=F1+ /B4
e

KRB O
BAEOFEEAARBEET
P 7S 1) R 22 P B [0 S £ 456 R 8
FRse &8

EZRE#

BE O By (s R IR M BB N
BRAMBHRSESEEZ —HIE
HERE - xR TR B M EES()
P& S AT BUR R IR -

BIRERE

A % 15 B2 15 AR IR B 2E3(p)
(i) FL A B9 S A5 PR 49 & 51 R
RERZEBETASEEERE
BRITHEBREGTHEZA
F1E o



KRMEZRAERD A

—T—= /T PIEER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZE—ZT—NF=A=+—HILFE

36. RESERVES (continued)

(c)

Nature of purposes of the reserves (continued)

(vii)  Shares held by Company for settlement of acquisition

consideration

The Company issued shares for acquisitions of Originate
Tech during the year ended 31 March 2012. At the end
of the reporting period, 280,000,000 shares, valued
at HK$0.414 (the issue price) per share amounting to
HK$115,920,000 were held by the Company awaiting
disposal. Proceeds from the disposal of these shares shall
be returned to the Company in accordance with the terms
of the acquisition agreement.

(d) Distributability of reserves

(e)

At 31 March 2014 and 2013, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for the distribution to the owners of the Company
calculated in accordance with the Bermuda Companies Act 1981
(as amended) was HK$Nil and HK$147,130,000 respectively.

Capital risk management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher level of borrowings
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light
of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of a net
debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. For this purpose the Group defines
net debt as total debt (which includes loan notes and other
financial liabilities) plus unaccrued proposed dividends, less bank
deposits and cash. Adjusted capital comprises all components of
equity less unaccrued proposed dividends plus net debt.
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36. RESERVES (continued)

(e) Capital risk management (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group’s strategy,
which unchanged from 2013, was to maintain the net debt-to-
adjusted capital ratio as low as feasible. In order to maintain or
adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to the owners, return capital to the owners, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt. The net debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio at 31 March 2014 and 2013 were as follows:

36. f#E (8
(o) EXRAKRETE (&)

HE_Z-—MNF=HA=+—HIF
B AEERRE T —=FEHEMA
HVERES - A RE AR FRYLRAE
B R FEFEAER T - BT
BRLE AEERHBRAERS AX
NZBETHE REEAREER
BTN EBEERE- N =-F
—mERZZE-=F=A=+—8H"

FEBHEAEEAR LRI :

2014 2013
—E-IF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ST T
Trade and other payables ERE S FIE R
ELAth e < RRIE 82,776 79,401
Loans and borrowings BERREE 28,304 36,132
Amount due to shareholders FE 15 AR 3R 3K TE 13,410 231,568
Amounts due to related companies e —REEE R R FKIE - 3,717
Amount due to non-controlling shareholder FE - JEFE AR AR 3R SR 1A 1,235 -
Promissory notes NS 6,782 6,648
Financial liabilities MBasE 1,984 -
Total debt (ETF L 134,491 357,466
Add: proposed dividends 0 R ARE - -
Less: cash and cash equivalents BRERBEEEEYD (8,965) (216,540)
Net debt B5F5 125,526 140,926
Total equity HemEsE 58,798 517,007
Total capital BB 184,324 657,933
Net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio B FER L
AR E R & 68% 21%

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital

requirements.
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37. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

a)

Travel Inn Limited

37. KEEHME A F

a)

On 18 February 2014, the Group obtained control of Travel Inn
Limited by acquiring 95% equity interest and voting rights in
Travel Inn Limited from an independent third party. Travel Inn
Limited provided travel agency services. The acquisition was
made with the aim to diversify Group’s businesses.

The following summarized the recognised amounts of identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed as at 18 February 2014.

RERERA A
RZZF—WF_A+/\H A&LEE
BRBE = BB IREE AR A A
2 95% A% AN 2 % $5% 22 A i EAS L4
Il o BREERS A PR A Bl AR B2 12
RIS - fEL B EEZ L BRAS
EES X

P F] BBl B BE KR AR B ER =
Z—NE_A+/\AZERRBEHEE
SR o

HK$'000

PEHE T T

Property, plant and equipment L ER N 3,281
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 5118 2 Bt fE UK IE 618
Provision for taxation TRIER 28
Cash and cash equivalents ReERFAEEZEED 746
Trade and other payables FEH B 5508 K H Ath fE < 30IE (740)
Loans and borrowings ER&ER (905)
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFHIEEE 1)
Amount due to non-controlling shareholder JE < SE4E AR AR 3R 5K IH (1,235)
Total net identifiable assets AR FEERTE 1,772
Non-controlling interest PR R i 89)
Gain on bargain purchase EEWE 2 s (503)
Total consideration wRE 1,180
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37. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

a)

37. WEEMIB D 8 (&)

Travel Inn Limited (continued) a) REKREBERAR(E)
HK$'000
ok e
Consideration transferred BEEENE 1,180
Less: Group’s share of fair value of identifiable net & : A& B 25 (5 TR BRI # R F EE 2 A FE
assets acquired (1,683)
Gain on bargain purchase on acquisition ESE (503)
Purchase consideration settled in cash LIRS ENZRE (1,180)
Cash and bank balances acquired gz Re MR EFEY 746
Net cash outflow on acquisition W aE 2 3R &7 FRE (434)

The gain on bargain purchase is mainly attributable to the
following:

i) The immediate exit opportunity offered to the vendor; and

ii) The ability of the Group in negotiating the agreed terms of
the transaction with vendor.

No significant acquisition-related costs were incurred.

The Group had elected to measure the non-controlling interest in
Travel Inn Limited at the proportionate share of the identifiable net
assets.

None of the trade receivables was impaired and it was expected
that all contractual amounts could be collected.

Included in the loss for the year is profit of approximately
HK$85,000 attributable to Travel Inn Limited. Revenue for the
year includes HK$175,000 in respect of Travel Inn Limited. Had
the business combination been effected on 1 April 2013, the
revenue and loss of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2014 would have been approximately HK$65,199,000 and
HK$490,012,000 respectively. The directors considered these
pro-forma numbers to represent an approximate measure of the
performance of the combined group on an annualised basis and
to provide a reference results for comparison in future periods.
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37. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

b)

Good Magic Limited b)

Acaquisition of assets and liabilities through acquisition of
subsidiaries

On 18 February 2014, the Group obtained control of Good
Magic Limited by acquiring 100% equity interest and voting rights
in Good Magic Limited from an independent third party. The
Group accounted for the acquisition of subsidiaries as an asset
acquisition. The acquisition was made with the aim to diversify
Group’s businesses.

The following summarized the recognised amounts of identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed as at 18 February 2014.

37. WEMEB QAT (@

Good Magic Limited
EWENE LA ARIEEERERE

R-ZE—WE-_A+N\B A&EE
BBMEBILE = HEGood Magic
Limited 2 &= BB A 7S 21 12 45 SR 4 T BR
1S ELE I - A EASHIE A AU
FEARAEEWE -FLWEE T
S BRAEEER-

TR —F—m&E - A+ A=A
HRBWBEENCRIEABZOMRE

REH o

HK$’'000

ST T

Property, plant and equipment L ER N 39
Investment property EEE 23,699
Other receivables H b e W 5k 18 27
Cash and cash equivalents ReERFAEEZEED 103
Trade and other payables FE(S B 5508 & H Ath FE S 5B (110)
Loans and borrowings ER&ER (23,388)
Total net identifiable assets AR EERLTE 370
Total consideration BB 370

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the acquisition of Good Magic Limited is as follows:

15 B Good Magic Limited#8RAIR & &
ReEEU M FEAITMT :

HK$'000

BT

Purchase consideration settled in cash LAZR & B 2 BB (E (370)

Cash and cash equivalents acquired ks Re KRS FEY 103

Net cash outflow on acquisition Wi 2 38 & F R (267)
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, loans and borrowings, trade
and other payables, financial liabilities, promissory notes, amounts due
to shareholders, amount due to related companies and amount due to
non-controlling shareholder.

The Company’s major financial instruments include other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents, other payables, financial liabilities and
promissory notes.

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risk associated with these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. Management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(a) Credit risk

The Group
The Group'’s credit risk is primarily attributable to bank deposits
and trade and other receivables.

For trade and other receivables, management has a credit policy
in place and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on
an ongoing basis. In respect of trade and other receivables, credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over
a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s
past history of making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are due within 30 — 180
days from the date of billing.

Debtors with balances that are more than 6 months past due are
requested to settle all outstanding balances before any further
credit is granted.

None of the Group's financial assets are secured by collateral or
other credit enhancements.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than the
industry or country in which the customers operate and therefore
significant concentration of credit risk primarily arisen when the
Group has significant exposure to individual customers.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group had concentration of credit risk by customers as
for 99% (2013: 100%) and 84% (2013: 72%) of the total trade
receivables were due from the Group’s five largest customers
and the largest customer respectively as at 31 March 2014. The
Group had concentration of credit risk by other receivables as
for 83% (2013: 4%) of total other receivables were due from two
largest parties as at 31 March 2014.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables
are set out in Note 24.

The Company

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for
their own cash management, including the raising of loans to
cover expected cash demands, subject to parent company’s
board approval. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from an
independent third party to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

38. I RAEER (&)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REBELRER (&)
The following tables detail the remaining contractual maturities NRFTIAREE KRR T IENTE TS
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s and the BENREHEEE ANFISRE L
Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities which are based on R HiIREE A ARARE 2 RE (f
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments FEAEOFE (B F e - BIRE
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates RFEHBEER ZRITAR)HE
current at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date 2R B ) AR AE R RARE R
the Group and the Company can be required to pay: WERERN&FE B R :
The Group e
2014
—E-pE
Total
contractual More than More than
undiscounted Within 1 year but 2 years but
cash flow 1 year or less than less than
Carrying &S#%XE%H  on demand 2 years 5years  More than
amount ReRE —£R —-F# MmE#E 5 years
REE Fat o] FRER BRER BREER BENL
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Trade and other payables R ESHER
H 508 82,776 82,776 82,776 - - -
Amount due to non-controlling [APER O E S
shareholder 1,235 1,235 1,235 - - -
Promissory notes AN RE 6,782 6,828 6,828 - - -
Loans and borrowings EXREE 28,304 29,958 5,712 577 13,678 9,991
Amounts due to shareholders FEAT B A R 308 13,410 13,915 13,915 - - -
132,507 134,712 110,466 577 13,678 9,901
2013
—T-=5
Total
contractual Within More than More than
undiscounted 1 year 1 year but 2 years but
cash flow or on less than less than
Carrying BHRET demand 2 years 5 years
amount Rene —FRA% —F 14 4 1
REE B EEk BRER BRER
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BET T BT T BT T
Trade and other payables ENEZHIER
H e 508 79,401 79,401 79,401 - -
Promissory notes OS] 6,648 6,693 6,693 = -
Loans and borrowings ERREE 36,132 41,050 41,050 = =
Amounts due to shareholders & % 22 078 231,568 252,306 - 252,306 -
Amounts due to related BRN—RBELQA
companies 3,717 4,050 - 4,050 -
357,466 383,500 127,144 256,356 -
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

38. IR ER (&)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REBELRER (&)
The table that follows summarises the maturity analysis of term TREAREREREZER 2B H
loans with a repayment on demand clause based on agreed EFRBEE R a2 9 & BUE
scheduled repayments set out in the loan agreements. The KIEHZEBHAR T - EHSEERE
amounts include interest payments computed using contractual B DREAE ZF BN - EEE
rates. Taking into account of the Group’s financial position, the REB ZHEHRR  RAREERA
directors of the Company do not consider it probable that the RITPAAIRE R TEEKBIRERZ
bank will exercise its discretion to demand immediate repayment. s - AQRESHE BEEH
The directors of the Company believe that such term loans will be ERSeRBEER MRS 25T EE
repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out KB EEE -
in the loan agreements.
Maturity Analysis - Term Loans subject to a ANHESM—BSREREERARZ
repayment on demand clause based on scheduled BFHER (RTEERBEH)
repayments
The Group AEE
Total
More than More than contractual
1 year but 2 years but undiscounted
Within less than less than More than cash
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years outflows
-5#% mER ANRERES
—E0R EMER BREER L% it t: ]
$000 $000 $'000 $000 $'000
I I i T T
31 March 2014 “E-WE=A=1—H 83 83 249 674 1,089
31 March 2013 “T-ZF#ZA=t-H = = = = =
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

38. IRAEER (&)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REBELRER (&)
The Company P/ NN
2014
—E-NE
Total
contractual Within More than
undiscounted 1 year 1 year but
cash flow or on less than
Carrying BHREE demand 2 years
amount HeneE —FRy —F#%
BRTEE Fok:c] EEXR BERER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BET T BET T BET T
Other payables H & IR 4,561 4,561 4,561 -
Promissory notes ZARES: 6,782 6,828 6,828 -
11,343 11,389 11,389 -
2013
—F—=
Total
contractual Within More than
undiscounted 1 year 1 year but
cash flow or on less than
Carrying EHAREEA demand 2 years
amount Be s —F RN —Fi&
FHEE kS FEE K ERERN
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT IT BT IT
Other payables HAth FE (T F0IR 3,303 3,303 3,303 =
Promissory notes EARES: 6,648 6,693 6,693 =
9,951 9,996 9,996 -
For warrants, undiscounted gross inflows are not presented BEGRRAEZ 2V ARMIBIRSAA
since the Group is unable to estimate the ultimate timing and @B5E - A AR E B R BE M TR
amount of subscription money of the warrants. There are no cash TEBREIE RN S5 R
outflows for the warrants. REEMER SR
(c) Foreign currency risk (c) MER B

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk related primarily to
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and trade
and other payables that are denominated in currencies other than

the functional currency of the relevant group entities.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c) Foreign currency risk (continued)

38. IKEARERE (&)
(c) HNERK (&)

(i) Exposure to currency risk () EEmEE
The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s TREFAER R AR TR ®R
exposure at the end of the reporting period to currency risk EHFEAE AR E AHER
arising from recognised assets or liabilities denominated Bz e B AINEEGHE
in a currency other than the functional currency of the ZEEREEXBEMARE
entity to which they relate. Differences resulting from the BEk R T eERARE
translation of the financial statements of the entities within NEE2HBERERERAE
the Group into the Group’s presentation currency are 2y EEHEEER-
excluded.
The Group RE
Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in Hong Kong SN R R (AR )
dollars)
2014 2013
—E-ImF —T—=F
United United
States States
Dollars Renminbi Dollars Renminbi
EPH AR¥ ETT AR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BT BET T
Trade and other receivables ~ FEUNE 5 T/ I8 I
H A & I 5k - - 541 173
Cash and cash equivalents ~ BR& RIREEED 48 85 7 115
Trade and other payables ~ FEFIE 5 508 K H At & {3 5018 (2,609) (1,735) (2,981) (1,205)
Gross exposure arising rom E4XEBRREEMBREZ
recognised assets and EERE R
liabilties (2,561) (1,650) (2,433) ©17)
The Company AA T
Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in Hong Kong SNEE R B (DA B R)
dollars)
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E-=F
United United
States States
Dollars Renminbi Dollars Renminbi
EPH AR¥ EL ARE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT BB T
Other receivables H fth FEURIR - - 110 =
Cash and cash equivalents ~ R& RIBEEHEY 39 80 = 79
Other payables H b 508 - - - -
Gross exposure arising rom E4XEEHREENAGZ
recognised assets and e R
liabilities 39 80 110 79

165



SUSTAINABLE FOREST HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #Z—=%

—HE=ZA=+—HLFE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c) Foreign currency risk (continued)

38. I RAEER (&)

(c) SMERBR (&)

(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) BREEDI
The following table indicates the instantaneous change TRIIGEREHEEZ R Y
in the Group’s and the Company’s loss for the year and AEBRARBBEEATEZ
accumulated losses that would arise if foreign exchange HNEE TR 3= 3R B R R AT
rates to which the Group and the Company has significant BHEMEEFHERTE K
exposure at the end of the reporting period had changed SERARN TZIKEJ*JE‘E'E&%
at that date, assuming all other risk variables remained STEESEEA CARES-
constant. In this respect, it is assumed that the pegged RUEMS BERJAKETT
rate between the Hong Kong dollar and the United States MBBEREISREET
Dollars would be materially unaffected by any changes in Rﬁ’r@f?ﬁfﬂﬁimz{%ﬁ #
movement in value of the United States Dollars against B BRETE
other currencies.
The Group ~E
2014 2013
—E-MmEF —T—=%F
Effect on Effect on
loss after loss after
Increase/ tax and Increase/ tax and
(decrease) accumulated (decrease) accumulated
in foreign losses in foreign losses
exchange HEBRHZ exchange %
rates BER rates BiER
SR Rt EE HNES e & 2 EE
R/ (TR) e A/ (TRE) -7
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Renminbi AREE 5% 69 5% 38
(5)% (69) (5)% (38)
The Company ¥ NN
2014 2013
—E-NE —T=F
Effect on Effect on
loss after loss after
Increase/ tax and Increase/ tax and
(decrease) accumulated (decrease) accumulated
in foreign losses in foreign losses
exchange HRBiE exchange HBRFE
rates BER rates =058
HEER RiTEER HNES e ES
R/ (TR) g A/ (TK) -7
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Renminbi AR 5% 3 5% 3
(5)% (3) (5)% ©)
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c)

(d)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

(i)  Sensitivity analysis (continued)
Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on
each of the Group’s entities’ loss and equity measured in
the respective functional currencies, translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rate ruling at the end of the
reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis excludes differences that would result
from the translation of the financial statements of the
entities within the Group into the Group’s presentation
currency. The analysis is performed on the same basis for
the year ended 31 March 2013.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from financial
liabilities issued at a fixed rates and variable rates that expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate
risk respectively. The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by
management is set out below. The Group does not expect any
changes on interest rate which might materially affect the Group’s
result of operations.

During the year, the Group and the Company had not entered
into any interest rate swap contracts.
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38. KEAMERE (&)
(c) SERPE (&)

(i) BBEDH (1E)
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SEETEEBIRZA 2
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B o
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(d) FEREE
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38. IKEMERE (&)
(d) FIZREK (5

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(d) Interest rate risk (continued)
FIEFIE

TR EER R B
# 52 FIRER

()  Interest rate profile 0]
The following table details the interest rate profile of the
Group at the end of the reporting period:

The Group P
2014 2013
“E-mE =%
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate rate
BERA=E ERFI=
% HK$’000 % HK$'000
BETR BETT
Fixed rate borrowings: EEEE:
Promissory notes ESRES 15.74% 6,782 15.74% 6,648
Loans and borrowings BRREE 3-18% 15,067 18% 36,132
Amounts due to AN
shareholders 5% 13,410 5% 231,568
Amounts due to related FEfTBE R RIUR
companies - - 5% 3,717
Variable rate borrowings: FEFIERER:
Loans and borrowings BRREE 0.94%-2.25% 13,237 = =
The Company N
2014 2013
—E-NF —E-=F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate rate
BBRA=E ERHE
% HK$’000 % HK$'000
BETT BETT
Fixed rate borrowings: EEEE:
Promissory notes ENER 15.74% 6,782 15.74% 6,648
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) BT
The Group rEHE
At 31 March 2014, it is estimated that a general increase/ RNR_E—MNE=F=+—8"
decrease of 1% in interest rate, with all other variables W F RERE EFH TR —E

mEATE FEHERTE Al
B AEBEZFEEEREER
STEE e M, m D NE
133,000 (Z T — =4 : /B
).

held constant, would have increase/decrease the Group'’s
loss for the year and accumulated losses by approximately
HK$133,000 (2013: HKSNIl).
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(d)

Interest rate risk (continued)

(i)  Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to the exposure to
interest rate risk for the non-derivative financial liabilities
in existence at that date. The 1% increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates over the period until
the end of the next reporting period. The analysis was
performed on the same basis for year 2013.

The Company

As the Company has no significant bank deposits and
interest-bearing liabilities, the management considers the
risk is not significant.

(e) Natural risk

()

The ability to harvest wood and the growth of the trees in the
forests may be affected by unfavourable local weather conditions
and natural disasters. Weather conditions such as floods,
droughts, cyclones and windstorms and natural disasters such
as earthquakes, fire, disease, insect infestation and pests are
examples of such events. The occurrence of severe weather
conditions or natural disasters may diminish the supply of trees
available for harvesting, or otherwise impede the Group’s logging
operations or the growth of the trees in the forests, which in turn
may have an adverse effect on the Group’s ability to produce the
products in a timely manner and maintain sufficient operations.

Fair value measurements recognised in the
statement of financial position

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s financial
instruments measured at the end of the reporting period on
a recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13 Fair value measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified is determined
with reference to the observability and significance of the inputs
used in the valuation technique as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1

inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

()

Fair value measurements recognised in the (f)
statement of financial position (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)
° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable
inputs are inputs for which market data are not available

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs

38. I RAEER (&)

RUBRREABRZALE

ah & (#)

AFEER (B)

 EIRMEERAE-RBA
BE (BRREERE—RZT
BERGA BB AU AEAE
ATATEEHABEN B 2R
FlE-FABRREARERE
45 BUR 2 8 A SR

s FZRMEEEREXTAEH
R A BB EZATE

The Group and The Company REBEBRARQT
2014 2013
“E-mE —T-=F
Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

- $-E =R

2%  FE F°E F=E a5t

HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS000  HKE000  HKS000  HK$'000
BRTR BRTR BETR BRTR ARTn ARTn ARTT  ARTR

Recurring fair value measurements & EHATEE

Financial liabilties HKaRE - 1,984 - 1,984 - - - -

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of
the reporting period in which they occur during the years 2013
and 2014.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(f)

(9)

Fair value measurements recognised in the
statement of financial position (continued)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair value
measurements

The fair value of financial liabilities in Level 2 is calculated by the
Black-Scholes model. The Black-Scholes model is implemented
by applying computational method. In this case, the Binomial
Tree method is adopted because of its capability of considering
various factors including early exercise, dilution effect and its
superior computational efficiency.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other then fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s
financial instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are not
materially different from their fair values as at 31 March 2014 and
2013.

39. COMMITMENTS

(a)

Commitments in respect of capital
expenditure

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no material
capital commitments (2013: HKSNIl).
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39. COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments
The Group and the Company as lessee:

39. &I (#)
(b) REHNRIE
REBRARN G ABERFEA :

The Group and the Company leases certain of its office
premises under operating leases. Leases for these properties are
negotiated for terms ranging one to two years.

At the end of the reporting period, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as

follows:

AEBRARRIREBLEAOERSE
THMRAEYE -ZFMEZHBORLE
EERAH—EMF-

RIS ERAE B - ARBE S AT REE A
EHAEN 2 BEREHESEEN
T

The Group The Company
rEE NN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—e-mF -T-F —$-mF -T -F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT BT BT
Within one year —FR 521 530 500 520
In the second to fifth years, E_FERF
inclusive (BEERME) - 500 - 500
521 1,030 500 1,020
The Group as lessor: REBATHEA:

The Group leases its investment properties under operating
lease arrangements to tenants, with leases negotiated for terms
ranging from one to two years. The terms of the leases generally
require the tenants to pay security deposits. At the end of the
reporting period, the Group had total future minimum lease
payments receivables under non-cancellable operating leases

AEBRBELEHELFHBEREY
ETHEP KREMHEFHN T —=
M - HE R —RERBLIMAE
e ReEMRAEER  A&E
BIREE S P AT 2 Al
HE AR TERE . ERRE

with its tenants falling due as follow: KRR E T FRAAEE -
The Group The Company
rEE NN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—B-mF —T-=F ZB-mF —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BB T BET T BETT
Within one year —ER 73 = - =
In the second to fifth years, E_FFRF

inclusive (PREEME) - - - -
73 = - _
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40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Partnership harvesting agreement

On 18 July 2011, UTRB entered into an agreement (the “Partnership
Harvesting Agreement” or the “Agreement”) with R2R IndUstria e
Comércio de Produtos Florestais Ltda. (“R2R”). Under the Agreement,
UTRB will harvest logs on forest area supposedly owned by R2R under
a Sustainable Forest Management Plan and pay R2R Florestal a total
of R$9,602,000 (or approximately HK$41 million) by installments. R2R
was responsible to obtain the necessary harvesting permit (‘AUTEF”)
within 30 days of the Agreement. R2R was late in presenting the
AUTEF to UTRB and failed to produce documentations that support
its ownership of the subject forest area. In addition, UTRB'’s harvesting
team discovered various environmental crimes in the subject forest
area during its preparatory inspection. A total sum of R$840,000
(or approximately HK$3,869,000) was paid by UTRB under the
Agreement while the remaining balance was withheld due to the above
breach and irregularities. In the meantime, R2R sent various notices
demanding for performance under the Agreement. On 17 January
2012, UTRB served a termination notice to R2R and demanded for
the return of the deposits paid. On 23 February 2012, R2R sent UTRB
an amicable settlement offer where reducing the outstanding balance
to R$1,621,000 (or approximately HK$6,910,000) as final settlement
for the immediate termination of the Agreement. According to the
opinion of inhouse and external legal counsels, UTRB has adequate
legal ground to terminate the Agreement, demand for the return of the
deposit and ask for penalties.

R

40. S REE

BHEKKHR

R=—ZZE——F+ A+ /\H ' UTRBH&H
R2R Industria e Comércio de Produtos
Florestais Ltda. ([R2R 1) zT 3 135 ([ £
AR E] 3 [ ]) - BIE % UTRB
1R IR TE BRORIBIE Al I B AR M B 5T
SEA 2 HZMMRERKRA X5 HA
R2R fif & $£9,602,0007 5 §8 (= 4978 #&
41,000,0007T) ° R2RE B X B Hi#E 51
308 WEV{F AT & (R &5 Al 2% ([{XARET ]
#F ) o R2ZRAKAE R M UTRBA L AR FFA]
B R B L RAEE A H A Pl R AR [
ZXHE e SN UTRBZ X R EIBFE 1T E
{E 1R I B BT i FR MR b [ 38 3R 25 TR IR (R 58
77 ° UTRBE 1R 1% 173 5% 2 1 & $£840,0005
25 F (3R 4)75#53,869,0007T ) * MERrEE A L
MBEBAREBRITAMIME - RULERE A
ROREHZHBMERETHE R=F
——F—A++ 8 UTRBHER2RZE |
BAVERREEMNFI€ RZTE—=—F=
A=+ =8  R2RAUTRBZ H M fF g% -
15 AR EEHRERE1,621,000F 52/ (4
75 #6,910,0007T ) SA & & 37 B 48 1 15 =%
BRERFE - RBADRINEEZEZERZE
R UTRBA BMEREBEKRIEHZE  EX
REFT S RBHSIE-
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41. LITIGATIONS 41. F=A
Service agreement PR 75 165 %

On 30 May 2010, UTRB entered into a service agreement (“Service
Agreement”) with F Um Terraplanagem (“Terraplanagem”). Under
the Service Agreement, Terraplanagem would carry out earthwork
service in the hydropower plant in Rondonia, Brazil for a service fee
of R$892,500 (or approximately HK$3,069,000). After signing the
agreement, Terraplanagem did not provide any earthwork service
and UTRB had to hire another company to complete the earthworks.
However, in the land search of the freehold lands of UTRB, it revealed
that Terraplanagem submitted a claim to a court against UTRB to
pay for alleged outstanding service fee of approximately R$1,291,000
(or approximately HK$4,439,000) and filed a precautionary injunction
to prevent UTRB of selling certain area of its freehold lands with
carrying value of approximately R$10,391,000 (or approximately
HK$35,734,000) as at 31 March 2014 without properly paying possible
claim to itself. At the moment, UTRB did not receive any writ from the
court in due course. Up to the date of this report, the court hearing has
not yet been scheduled. UTRB will investigate the issue and defend
itself vigorously in coming legal proceeding. To the best understanding
of the Company, the claim was at a preliminary stage. The Company
will inform its shareholders in due course. For the sake of prudence, the
claim of approximately R$1,291,000 (or approximately HK$4,439,000)
has been provided and included in other payables.

Labour claim

During the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the Company revealed
that a labour claim against UTRB for US$600,000 (or approximately
HK$4,655,000 or approximately R$1,354,000) was filed by Leandro
Dos Martires Guerra (‘Leandro”), a former director of the Company.
At the moment UTRB did not receive any writ from the court in due
course. The court made an order to UTRB for paying Leandro the claim
of US$600,000 (or approximately HK$4,655,000 or approximately
R$1,354,000). UTRB filed a legal appeal after consulting legal counsels.
The Company will inform its shareholders in due course. For the sake of
prudence, the claim of US$600,000 (or approximately HK$4,655,000 or
approximately R$1,354,000) has been provided and included in other
payables.
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RZZE—ZTFHA=+H ' UTRBEHF
UmTerraplanagem ( [ Terraplanagem | ) &]
SRR Wk (TR el ) o R R %1%
% ' Terraplanagemi§ R B AR % E 1 2
KNBEEMRELHFTIRRE BREEA
892,500% 2 f ( 2k #9/% #3,069,0007T ) °
R % 5] 512 © Terraplanagemit A 42 1T
A+ 5 TI2RTS - MUTRB RS T~ER S —
FMARIATER T T A REUTRB
ZOKAERTHHEIT L EMEr - H235
Terraplanagem[a) 74 B I 2 #T ¥TUTRBZ &
B ZRIMTEBHRENZRBEEL
1,291,000 28 /8 ( =k #) 7 4,439,000t )
WE BRFEHMEZIES  UBIUTRBE R E
HE XN sREFMEEENR =
F=A=+—HZEMEEA10,391,00085
28R (4978 #535,734,0007T ) K& T ok A
O+ i o B ATUTRBY o i i 0 12 8 % B
RS e BERRE B A JEbT m R
BRaER Z 8k - UTRBAS 8% 1tk =5 37 15 7A B
1R 2 ERFAREITRIUTE - LA
NAEIFARE  REEERI R - N AT
BENASHERERE - BEERR  AQEE
491,291,000 F 22/ (k475 % 4,439,000
TL) Z RIEEH BB B 5 A H i fE 3R
B o

REBEE-E-—NE=A=+—HI-#K
FE AR A B AR F R E ELeandro
Dos Martires Guerra ([ Leandro | ) [@7&FR
R E B UTRBZ 4 &) = 8 #600,0003
7T ( 3k #9786 #4,655,0007T 3 491,354,000
EM) o B ATUTRBIL 5k i i 52 & 0%
B 2 Rl SR < A BT B 8 < Z SKUTRB[A
Leandro -} & {8600,0003 T ( 3¢ %9 75
#4,655,0007T 8% #71,354,000F 55 /) °
UTRB# A REMEERE E5F - A2 A
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41. LITIGATIONS (continued)

Logistical agreement and long-term supply
agreement

On 19 July 2010, SFH Trading Limited, a subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a logistical agreement and a long-term supply agreement
with Viewscm Corporation Ltd. (“Viewscm”). According to the logistical
agreement, Viewscm was appointed as the sole logistics service
provider to SFH Trading Limited for export of logs and timbers from
hydroelectric power plant area in the state of Rondonia, Brazil to
China. However, after Viewscm formulated the logistic plan under the
logistical agreement, the proposed transportation cost from Viewscm
did not meet the target cost of SFH Trading Limited. Thus, SFH Trading
Limited did not use any logistics service by Viewscm. Also, according
to the long-term supply agreement, SFH Trading Limited would sell
logs to Viewscm in Brazil and the origin of the logs should be from the
hydroelectric power plant area. The Group was engaged by the Main
Contractor to provide tree felling service in the hydroelectric power
plant area. The relationship with the Main Contractor deteriorated since
occurrence of the harassments from the Alleged Agent of the Main
Contractor and operating staff and officers of our Group were rejected
access to the hydroelectric power plant area. As such, SFH Trading
Limited could not sell any logs to Viewscm.

Viewscm asserted claims against SFH Trading Limited by reason
of the alleged breaches of the logistical agreement and long-term
supply agreement by SFH Trading Limited. The alleged breaches of
the logistical agreement and long-term supply agreement were dealt
with under arbitration proceedings which hearings were held at South
China International Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission and
Shenzhen Arbitration Commission respectively. On 20 March 20183,
South China International Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission
issued an award of approximately RMB784,000 (or approximately
HK$991,000) in favour of Viewscm for the alleged breach of logistical
agreement by SFH Trading Limited and on 12 April 2013, Shenzhen
Arbitration Commission issued an award of approximately RMB703,000
(or approximately HK$888,000) in favour of Viewscm for the alleged
breach of long-term supply agreement by SFH Trading Limited.

On 19 September 2013, SFH Trading Limited received two court
orders for the enforcement of arbitration awards issued by South
China International Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission
and Shenzhen Arbitration Commission totaling approximately
RMB1,487,000 (or approximately HK$1,879,000) and related
legal expenses in favour of Viewscm. The Company will inform its
shareholders for new development in due course. The total claims
of approximately approximately RMB1,487,000 (or approximately
HK$1,879,000) has been provided and included in other payables.

SFH Trading Limited has been inactive since 1 April 2012 and was in
net liabilities position as at 31 March 2014.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZE—ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE

42. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS

The Group had the following transactions with related parties during the

year.

(a) Key management personnel remuneration

The key management personnel of the Group are the directors
(2018: directors and employees) of the Company. Details of their
remuneration as set out in Note 11 (2013: Note 11 and Note 12)

to the financial statements are as follows:

42. ERXBEEATRS
REBAREECHEBEALETUATR
g]o
(a) TEEEASZFHMH

AEBZFEBTERABRARRES
(ZE2E—=F FFREEB) ‘W BW
EMFEN(ZE—=F: {11 LW
FH12) P iR & 2 2 Bl & #1540
T

2014 2013
—E-pmF —E=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT IT
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits % & £ b 52 Hi (& 8 13 7 720 7,248
Post-employment benefits BE IR - 23
Share-based payment VAR 9 2 1+ 632 113
1,352 7,384
(b) Financing arrangement (b) RMEZH
The Group
b3
Amounts due Related
to related parties interest expenses
ENBEEALRE HEANEREX
2014 2013 2014 2013
—EB-mF —T-=fF ZE-@mF —T-=
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
M BET T BETIT BET T BETIT
Amounts due to shareholders  JEffAZ R X IAE () 13,410 231,568 990 10,640
Amounts due to FEATBRE A A FA
related companies (i) - 3,717 6 668
Amount due to non-controling  FEF IE22 A% % SR F0A
shareholder (i) 1,235 - - -
14,645 235,285 996 11,308
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZE—Z—NF=A=+—HILtFE

42. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c)

42. ERFEEALIRS (8

(b) Financing arrangement (continued) (b) REZH (&)

Notes: Wizt -

[0} The interest expenses charged on amounts due to shareholders were (i) FEAH IR BRRRIE 2 | 2.5 52 042 4F Fi =
calculated at 5% per annum. The outstanding balances of the amounts 5ERTE o FE AR RIBR R4 B4
due to shareholders at the end of the reporting period are disclosed in HH 2z WAREREERTENES1HEEE -
Note 31.

(i) The interest expenses charged on amounts due to related companies (ii) FETRRE A RIRIE 2 M B THIRF
was calculated at 5% per annum. The outstanding balances of amount HM=sEAE - R —REAE R RIFHIE
due to a related company as at 31 March 2013 is disclosed in Note 32. R-E—=F=ZA=+—HZHKE

BRERRIEMI TES2H T

(i) The amounts was unsecured, interest free and no fixed terms of (i) ZEAERR - S8 R E EE
repayment. KHR e

Other related party transactions (c) EMBAEALRS

2014 2013

—E-MF 2=
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
k3 BET T PR T T

Interest on promissory notes EANERZFE (i 134 131

Sales of a motor vehicle HE—w)qE (i) - 348

Sales to related companies MEZREEARIHE (i) 4,368 60,569

Purchase from a related company M—REEQFREE (i) 1,589 15,065

Notes: Htat -

(i)

(i)

This represents interest on promissory notes issued to Winner Global
and was calculated at a coupon rate of 2% per annum (effective interest
rate: 15.74%). The outstanding balance at the end of the reporting
period is disclosed in Note 33.

A director of the related company is the spouse of Ms. Loh, a former
Executive Director of the Company.

A director of the related companies is a director of a Group’s subsidiary.

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the above transactions
were conducted on terms mutually agreed by the Group and the
related parties.
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43. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

(@)

After the end of the reporting period, the Company completed
the issue of 139,179,601 shares through the open offer at the
subscription price of HK$0.32 per offer share on the basis of
one offer share for every ten existing shares held with an issue of
five bonus share for every offer share subscribed. The Company
also completed the issue of 150,867,613 convertible preferred
share (“CPS”) through the open offer at the subscription price of
HKS$0.01 per offer CPS on the basis of one offer CPS for every
ten existing CPS held with five bonus CPS warrant for every offer
CPS subscribed. The open offers were completed in May 2014
and funds of HK$46.4 million before expense were raised.

After the end of the reporting period, the board changed the
operation model in Acre, Brazil, from own harvesting to leasing
out the forest in Brazil to enhance the income stream of the
Group.

44. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2014

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised IFRSs
that have been issued but not yet effective:

Amendments to IFRSs

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012

Cycle?

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013
Cycle?

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments*

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with

Amendments to IFRS 9

and

Amendments to IFRS 10,

customers’
Mandatory Effective Date of IFRS 9 and

IFRS 7 Transition Disclosures*

Investment Entities'

IFRS 12 and IAS 27

Amendments to IFRS 11

Accounting for Acquisition of Interests in
Joint Operations®
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44. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2014 (continued)

Amendments to IAS 16 and Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
IAS 38 Depreciation and Amortisation®

Amendments to IAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee

Contributions®

Amendments to IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities'

Amendments to IAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of
Hedge Accounting’

IFRIC 21 Levies'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with limited
exceptions.

¢ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014.

N Available for application — the mandatory effective date will be determined when
the outstanding phases of IFRS 9 are finalised.

o Effective for first annual IFRS financial statements beginning on or after 1
January 2016.

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

’ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these new and revised IFRSs is expected to be in the period
of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9, “Accounts and Audit”, of the
new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into operation
from the company’s first financial year commencing after 3 March
2014 (i.e. the company’s financial year which began on 1 April 2014)
in accordance with Section 358 of that Ordinance. The group is in
the process of making an assessment of the expected impact of the
changes in the Companies Ordinance on the consolidated financial
statements in the period of initial application of Part 9. So far it has
concluded that the impact is unlikely to be significant and will primarily
only affect the presentation and disclosure of information in the
consolidated financial statements.

I 170

BREENEI6HE BRERBH IR NE
REBEER

F38 2 B

BIfR g 5h R TREMGE: BEHH
F19R 2B
BIfR g5 R
FE 2B
BIfR g5 R
FI9H 2B
BREBRE2E AR
ZEEFAR

TREAERCRAEZHH

TETARERUH G

! MR- F—-A—HR2Z&RIZFEH
AR

: RZE—MFLA B2 &R ZFEH
AR (B D BBISMERIN)

? RIEB—WFLA—BRZ&ERIZFEH
AR

¢ AT AR ER A — 58 1R AR 2 B S 0 B R B T R
ERIFORER T HIR TAREE -

° RZB—RFE-A—BRZEEHFERE
BB RE R B MR AR

o RIB—RF-—A—BRZE&RIGZFEH
AR

’ RZB—tF—A—HRZERIRZFES
AR

AEB AR EHA RIS B
BREEARERRAME 2 ARTE
ESCHERMZEEATARAGEH ZE

BBREREARE-

Bt N 3T E B R R K] (E622F ) FEE
[SEtREZ ] 2R ERIBZ GBI B 358145
HARR-ZT—NE=Z A =B EFHANE
EFREZRERER (R RNR T —ME
MA—BRBENTBEE) SEIEEFAD
AHEBIR B B BV e i 2 476
MBHRERZBATERETE 25 &R
B ETKAEEBEN URBEEE
HERAUBHRRZENZHRBEIFERE-



SUSTAINABLE FOREST HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

Five Years Financial Summary

LFEERE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #HZ—ZT—NF=A=+—HIEFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& 2751))

RESULTS E 3

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+-HLFE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-NFE —E—=F —ZE2—=-F ZT——F ZT—ZF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T PSR IT BT IT PSR IT BT IT

Revenue WA 63,946 76,550 115,616 866,655 342,580
(Loss)/profit attributable to RARIEER AEMN
the owners of the Company (&518) & H (490,133)  (326,601) (2,327,909 341,486 273,303
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
As at 31 March
R=A=+—~H
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
=E-MOFE 2= —T-_F —_T—— —E-FF

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$O000
BMTT  ETT  BETT  BETT AT

Total assets BEE 251,052 1,068,024 1,727,833 4,186,991 3,338,236
Total liabilities waE 192,254 551,017 852,438 930,622 831,606
Net assets FEE 58,798 517,007 875,395 3,256,369 2,506,630
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to VIN/NEIEZE DN

the owners of the Company el HE = 58,723 517,000 875,309 3,256,293 2,506,568
Non-controlling interests FEVERR AR R M 2 75 7 86 76 62
Total equity R 58,798 517,007 875,395 3,256,369 2,506,630
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